
CITY OF ELKO 
CITY MANAGER 

1751 COLLEGE AVENUE 
ELKO, NEV ADA 89801 

(775) 777-7110/FAX (775) 777-7119 

The Elko City Council will meet in regular session on Tuesday, May 8, 2018 

Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801, at 4:00 P.M., P.D.T. 

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Council. 

In accordance with NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda was posted on the City of Elko 

Website, http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada's Public Notice Website, 

https://notice.nv.gov, and in the following locations: 

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE 
571 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801 

Date/Time Posted: May 3, 2018 at 8:50 a.m. 

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY 
720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801 

Date/Time Posted: May 3, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. 

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
1448 Silver, Elko NV 89801 

Date/Time Posted: May 3, 2018 at 8:40 a.m. 

ELKO CITY HALL 
1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 

Date: Time Posted: May 3, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. 

Posted by: Kim Wilkinson Administrative Assistant ~ a/~ 
Name Title Signature 

The public may contact Kim Wilkinson by phone at (775)777-7110 or email at 
kwilkinson@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The 
agenda and supporting material is available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College A venue, Elko, NV or 
on the City website at http://www.elkocitynv.gov/ 

Dated this 3rd day of May, 2008 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify the Elko City Council, 17 College nue, Elko, Nevada 89801, 
or by calling (775) 777-7110. 

Curtis Calder, City Manager 



CITY OF ELKO 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
4:00 P.M., P.D.T., TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 

ELKO CITY HALL, 1751 COLLEGE A VENUE, ELKO, NEV ADA 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko City Council has been properly posted 
for this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements. 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this 
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive 
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: April 24, 2018 Regular Session 

I. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Proclamation by the Mayor in recognition of Kids to Parks Day, and matters 
related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY-NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN 

B. Proclamation by the Mayor in recognition of Arson Awareness Week, and matters 
related thereto. INFORMATION ITEM ONLY - NO ACTION WILL BE 
TAKEN 

C. Update on the NV League of Cities by Executive Director Wes Henderson, and 
matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NO ACTION WILL BE 
TAKEN 

D. Special Recognition of the contributions by NYTC Staff and Crews for their 
participation in the recent "Take Pride in the Community Event," and matters 
related thereto. INFORMATION ITEM ONLY - NO ACTION WILL BE 
TAKEN 

E. Presentation of the 2017 Public Works Year in Review by Public Works Director 
Dennis Strickland, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ITEM ONLY 
- NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN 

05/08/2018 City Council Agenda 1 



F. Presentation by Police Chief Ben Reed and Joelle Gutman regarding the newly 
formed Rural Regional Behavioral Health Policy Board, and matters related 
thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a funds transfer from the General 
Fund to the Recreation Fund for the purchase of lighting for the Sports Complex, 
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

At Council's direction, we have identified funds that are available to assist with 
the completion of the Sports Complex. The City has currently awarded a bid for 
the construction of the Elko Sports Complex and accordingly, we have allocated 
the excess sales tax received in FYl 8 to the purchase of the outdoor lighting for 
the project. These lights are outside of the bid package that is currently awarded. 
However, the installation of the lighting is included in the awarded bid. It will be 
necessary to order the lighting prior to the end of FYl 8 to ensure timely delivery 
for installation. This purchase was not budgeted in FYl 8. JJ 

III. APPROPRIATIONS 

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

B. Review and possible approval of Print 'N Copy Warrants, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

C. Review and possible approval of Great Basin Engineering Contractors Warrants, 
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

D. Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to purchase 
a new Type III Fire Apparatus from Boise Mobile Equipment in the amount of 
$319,940.00, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The City of Elko Fire Department would like the approval to begin the purchasing 
process for a new Type III Fire Engine. The new Fire Engine will replace the 
current Rescue 10, which is 18 years old, and will be built by Boise Mobile 
Equipment, at the price of$319,940.00. The apparatus will feature seating for four 
firefighters, 500 gallons of water, 750 gallon per minute pump, pump and roll 
capabilities, and increased compartment space. Due to a process and build time of 
6 months to a year, the Fire Department would like to order the apparatus, and not 
require payment until delivery. This purchase will be done utilizing the HGAC 
purchasing program. JS 

E. Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to apply 
with the Elko County LEPC for the United We Stand Grant, in the amount of 
$24,285.00, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

05/08/2018 City Council Agenda 2 



The City of Elko Fire Department would like to apply with the Elko County Local 
Emergency Planning Commission for the 2019 United We Stand Grant. The grant 
will apply for an Incident Management Software Program, five mobile and three 
handheld aircraft radios, and two Hazardous Materials Containment Kits. The 
Incident Management Software will be able to be utilized by all Elko County 
Emergency Response Agencies as well as the Emergency Operations Center. The 
aircraft radios will be used by the Elko Fire Department in the Emergency 
Apparatus to enhance the communications between aircraft, expedite response to 
an incident, and have airport communications anywhere in the City. The two 
Hazardous Materials Kit will be utilized by the Hazmat Team to combat Chlorine 
Leaks and Leaks from low-pressure cylinders. The City of Elko would initially 
pay for the cost of the items in the grant, and the City would be reimbursed from 
Elko County. JS 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a second amendment to 
Revocable Permit No. 3-17, filed by WANRack, LLC to occupy a portion of the 
City of Elko Right-of-Way, to accommodate installation of a new fiber optic wide 
area network between school facilities, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

Council reviewed the application for a revocable permit at their September 26, 
2017 meeting and approved to enter into a license agreement with Wamack. A 
first amendment to the license agreement was approved by Council on November 
28, 2017. Wamack has changed the Scope of Work to include additional routes 
and therefore requiring a second amendment with new exhibits. CL 

B. Review, consideration, and possible issuance of final acceptance for the Golden 
Gate Petroleum of Nevada, LLC Water and Sewer Line Installation, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The project has been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications. 
Staff recommends Council approve the issuance of final acceptance. RL 

V. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 15-18, a 
resolution authorizing the expenditure of funds by the Redevelopment Agency 
from its Special Revenue Fund in the amount of $250,000, for the work proposed 
for the Centennial Park Expansion Project, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

05/08/2018 

RDA approved expenditure of $250,000 for the Centennial Park Expansion Project 
at their February 27, 2018 meeting. As per the Redevelopment Plan, City Council 
must give consent on the expenditures. CL 

City Council Agenda 3 



B. First reading of Ordinance No. 829, an ordinance amending Title 3, Chapter 2, of the Elko 
City Code "GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE" specifically Section 3-2-11 IBP, IC 
Industrial Districts, filed and processed as Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 1-18, and 
to direct Staff to set the matter for public hearing, second reading, and possible adoption, 
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 1, 2018, and took action to 
forward a recommendation to Council to adopt an ordinance, which approves the zoning 
ordinance amendment. CL 

VI. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Review and consideration of a request to waive or reduce the vendor fee(s) for the 
Elko Farmer's Market, including the Market's approval to be located at the parking 
lot behind Sherman Station on Saturday June 16, July 21, August 18, and 
September 15, 8:00 a.m.-12:00 noon, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

A letter from Sue Kennedy and Dan Lotspeich has been included in the agenda 
packet for review. Additionally, a letter of support from the Elko Area Chamber 
of Commerce and the current lease agreement between the City of Elko and the 
Chamber have been included for review. The Elko Farmer's Market is considered 
a Special Event, pursuant to Elko City Code 4-1-6. 

Since the Elko's Farmer Market is proposing to use public property, a $34.50 per 
vendor per event fee is required. By contrast, events held on private property are 
charged $6.00 per vendor per day. Although technically public property, the 
Sherman Station parking lot is included in the lease area and operated/controlled 
by the Chamber. The Elko Area Chamber of Commerce is willing to sponsor the 
event(s), if necessary. CC 

VII. 5:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Second reading, public hearing, and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 828, an 
ordinance amending Title 4, Chapter 6, entitled "Room Tax", and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

At its April 24, 2018 meeting, City Council held first reading of Ordinance No. 
828. All transient lodging facilities have been mailed a copy of Ordinance No. 828. 
so 

B. Second reading, public hearing, and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 830, an 
ordinance increasing the corporate limits of the City of Elko, Nevada, pursuant to 
the provisions of N.R.S. 268.670 annexing thereto a certain tract ofland partially 
contiguous to and not embraced within the present limits of the City of Elko 
described as follows: a parcel of land located southwest of the intersection of P 
and H Drive and West Idaho Street in Section 30, T. 34 N., R. 55 E., MDM, Elko 
County, Nevada, consisting of32.74 acres, filed by Legend Engineering on behalf 

05/08/2018 City Council Agenda 4 



of Ed and Sharon Netherton and JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc. and processed as 
Annexation No. 1-18, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on March 27, 2018, and 
directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter to 
the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission considered the annexation 
on April 3, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation of approval with 
findings back to the Council. Council held First Reading of the ordinance on April 
24, 2018. CL 

VIII. REPORTS 

A. Mayor and City Council 
B. City Manager 
C. Assistant City Manager 
D. Utilities Director 
E. Public Works 
F. Airport Manager 
G. City Attorney 
H. Fire Chief 
I. Police Chief 
J. City Clerk 
K. City Planner 
L. Development Manager 
M. Administrative Services Director 
N. Parks and Recreation Director 
0. Civil Engineer 
P. Building Official 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this 
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive 
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

NOTE: 

05/08/2018 

The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, or other Presiding Officer of the City Council 
reserves the right to change the order of the agenda, and if the agenda has not been 
completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another specified date and time. 
Additionally, the City Council reserves the right to combine two or more agenda 
items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion relating to an 
item on the agenda at any time. 

City Council Agenda 5 



ADJOURNMENT 

05/08/2018 City Council Agenda 

Curtis Calder 
City Manager 

6 



City of Elko 
County of Elko 
State of Nevada 

) 
) 
) ss April 24, 2018 

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of Nevada met for a regular meeting 
beginning at 4:00.p.m., Tuesday, April 24, 2018. 

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Chris Johnson. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor Present: 

Council Present: 

Chris J. Johnson 

Councilman John Rice 
Councilwoman Simons 
Councilman Robert Schmidtlein 
Councilman Reece Keener 

City Staff Present: Curtis Calder, City Manager 
Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager 
Debbie Henseler, Business License Technician 
Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director 
Jonnye Jund, Administrative Services Director 
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer 
Aubree Barnum, Human Resources Manager 
Mike Hess, Landfill Superintendent 
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
Mike Palhegyi, Police Lieutenant 
Jeremy Draper, Development Manager 
Jeff Ford, Building Official 
Matt Griego, Fire Chief 
John Holmes, Fire Marshal 
James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director 
Dave Stanton, City Attorney 
Candi Quilici, Accounting Supervisor 
Jim Foster, Airport Manager 
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 1 of26 



item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive 
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

There were no public comments. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: April 10, 2018 Regular Session 

The minutes were approved by general consent. 

I. PRESENTATIONS 

A. A reading of a proclamation in recognition of Arbor Day, and matters related 
thereto. INFORMATION ONLY -NON-ACTION ITEM 

Mayor Johnson read the proclamation. 

B. A reading of a proclamation in recognition of Parkinson's Awareness Month, and 
matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NON-ACTION ITEM 

Mayor Johnson read the proclamation and presented a copy to a representative. 

The representative said there are a number of folks in Elko, Elko County and surrounding areas 
that participate in their Parkinson's Support Group. There are caregivers trying to help these 
folks as much as they can. The goal is quality of life and to continue living. He thanked the 
Mayor and Council. 

III. PERSONNEL 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of the revised Personal Appearance 
Policy, Chapter 2.23 of the City of Elko Personnel Policy Manual, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The Personal Appearance Policy has been revised to better align with our 
organization's workforce and acceptable personal appearance standards. AB 

Aubree Barnum, Human Resources Manager, explained the changes to the policy. Staff 
recommended approval. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, to 
approve the revised Personnel Policy, Chapter 2.23, Personal Appearance Policy, as 
presented effective April 24, 2018. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

IV. APPROPRIATIONS 

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval to award a bid for the Reuse 
Pipeline and Sanitary Sewer to the Elko Sports Complex-Railroad and River 
Crossing project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 2 of26 



Bids were opened on April 13, 2018. A Bid Tally Sheet is included as 
supplemental agenda information. SAW 

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, explained there were four bids presented. There was a 
bid tabulation sheet in the packet. The bids were evaluated by staff and it was determined that 
Ruby Dome was the low, responsive bidder. The recommendation is to award that contract to 
Ruby Dome Construction in the amount of $1,117,267.50. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, to 
award the bid to Ruby Dome Construction for the Elko Sports Complex River Crossing 
Project, in the amount of $1,117,267.50. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

C. Review, consideration, and possible authorization for the creation of a force 
account for the construction of the Sports Complex, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

At the April 10, 2018 Council meeting, Granite Construction was awarded a 
contract for the construction of the Sports Complex. Due to the size and 
complexity of the project, Staff would like to establish a Force Account of 
$100,000 to allow for the approval of Change Orders beyond our standard policy. 
Prior to approval, the Project Management Team will review all change orders for 
the City. BT 

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, explained it was suggested that they do this to keep this project 
similar to what was done for the Police Station construction. There was a force account on that 
project. With this being a similarly large project, they are hoping to do the same. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein, to 
authorize the use of a force account for the construction of the Sports Complex in the 
amount of $100,000. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

D. Review, consideration, and possible authorization for Arts and Culture Advisory 
Board to contribute $500 toward the completion of landscaping improvements 
around the Sesquicentennial Sagebrush, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

At their April 4, 2018 meeting, the Arts and Culture Advisory Board took action 
to forward a recommendation to the Council to allocate $500 from their budget to 
go towards the completion of improvements around the Sesquicentennial 
Sagebrush to be completed during Clean Up Green Up. JD 

Jeremy Draper, Development Manager, explained this was something that the Arts and Culture 
Advisory Board has been working to get completed for some time. There was a landscaping 
component that could not be funded at the time. The Arts and Culture Advisory Board would 
like to contribute some funds. 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 3 of26 



** A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to 
allocate $500 to the Sesquicentennial Sagebrush Landscaping Project. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

E. Review, consideration, and possible authorization for Staff to solicit bids for the 
Public Works Department Preventive Maintenance Project 2018, to apply Micro 
Slurry Seal to select City streets, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

Micro Slurry Seal is a preventive maintenance treatment, which will be applied to 
approximately 40,466 l.f. of selected city streets, plus the parking corridor 
between 6th Street and 7th Street, which were identified and adopted as part of the 
City of Elko street inventory. This work will be completed after July 1, 2018. DS 

Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director, explained they will be near that 40,000 number. We 
will see come bid day but the selection of streets will be based on the inventory and priority one 
streets will be selected and treated as needed. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to 
authorize staff to solicit bids for the Public Works Department Street Maintenance Project 
2018. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

C. Review, consideration, and possible authorization to enter into an Agreement to 
Install Improvements and Performance/Maintenance Guarantees for subdivision 
improvements associated with the Tower Hill Subdivision Unit 1, and matters 
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

04/24/2018 

Elko City Code 3-3-44 requires the subdivider to have executed and filed an 
agreement between the subdivider and the City for the required subdivision 
improvements, included stipulations on the timeframe for when those 
improvements are to be completed, and to post a performance guarantee in 
accordance with Elko City Code 3-3-45. As a condition of the Planning 
Commission's approval of Tower Hill Unit 1, the Performance Agreement is to be 
submitted to the City Council in conjunction with the final plat. The subdivider 
has indicated that he would provide a cash security to satisfy 3-3-45 of Elko City 
Code. The agreement has been drafted based on that assumption. 

A second requirement forwarded by the Planning Commission is for the 
developer to enter into the Agreement to Install Improvements and 
Performance/Maintenance Guarantees within 30 days of approval of the final plat 
by the City Council. JD 

City Council Minutes Page 4 of26 



Jeremy Draper, Development Manager, explained the developer, Scott MacRichie, was in the 
audience with his legal counsel, Katie McConnell. There are two agreements presented as 
backup to the agenda item. The first is from our attorney and the next one is from the developer 
with some things they would like included in the agreement. He went over a staff memo in 
detail that was sent out earlier in the day. 

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, confirmed the agreement for Tower Hill that was 
executed by JTM in December 2016, was not structured the same as the Eight Mile Estates. 

Mr. Draper agreed and said they had used it as a starting point and made modifications from 
there. He continued going over the memo. Just last week, Tom Ballew provided backup that 
Tower Hills is getting closer to completion. All of the underground utilities are completed. The 
type II base was being spread. Based on the engineer's estimate that was provided for the 
project, we show about 4 7% of the required improvements have been completed to date. 

Mr. Wilkinson clarified that none of the work has been certified by the engineer of record and 
none of the testing required to back up the certification from an engineer of record has been 
submitted to the City at any point during this entire process. 

Mr. Draper continued going over the memo. The submitted information indicates that it is in 
discussions allowing for the option to reduce the performance guarantee to reflect certified 
improvements. None of the work has been certified or accepted by the City to date. City Staff 
has had difficulty enforcing the code as it pertains to the requirements of a performance 
agreement, security for the performance agreement and with executing the agreement within an 
acceptable timeframe consistent with City Code. City Staff is attempting to ensure consistent 
application of the code and stress the importance of the performance agreement. In this case, the 
developer has taken over four years to partially complete phase one of the subdivision. The City 
of Elko has not accepted any of the work at Tower Hill Subdivision. The developer has not 
caused any of the work to be certified by the engineer ofrecord. There is $500,000 total cost yet 
to be completed. The developer was unresponsive to prior attempts to execute a performance 
agreement in a timely manner. The prior agreement was provided to the developer in January of 
2015. That was not executed until December 2016. Once executed the required security was not 
provided to the City. 

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, wanted the developer to discuss their side of this. 

Councilman Rice asked the practice prior to this, the decision by staff is now that this 
requirement will be uniformly enforced. The practice prior to this was that it was not uniformly 
enforced? 

Mr. Draper answered last Fall we had Mr. Schmidt in front of council. His agreement required 
that full guarantee in place. He had already completed the improvements and he still had to 
provide that full guarantee to us. 

Mr. Wilkinson said right now we have some developers that have security in place for the full 
amount of the work to be completed. Other subdivisions are in advance stages of completion. 
There have been some inconsistency. A lot of the inconsistencies is due to unresponsiveness of 
developers. We need to have a developer indicate to the City what type of security they are 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 5 of26 



going to provide for those performance agreements so we can execute those agreements within a 
30 day timeframe. 

Councilman Schmidtlein asked how this development has gotten this far without having the 
bonds put in place. City staff has allowed this project to proceed and now we are in a middle of 
a nightmare trying to straighten it out. 

Katie McConnell, attorney representing JTM, the developer, said Mr. Schmidt's agreement was 
brought up. Mr. Schmidt was present and she wasn't sure ifhe wanted to speak to his agreement 
or not. The Planning Commission action on this item was that a draft of the agreement be 
submitted to City Council. The Planning Commission action did not indicate that the agreement 
had to be approved. Based on that action they have submitted their own draft with their 
proposed language, which is only one paragraph difference than the City's draft. There was a lot 
of information provided to her from Mr. Draper this morning. It is important that Council 
understand what is at stake here. Should the City allow a reduction in the performance guarantee 
commensurate with the amount of work that is completed at the time the performance agreement 
is signed. They have 30 days for that performance agreement to be signed. What is a 
performance guarantee? It would seem to be a guarantee that the work is going to be performed. 
We are working with a subdivision that is going to be almost entirely completed in the next two 
weeks, and probably completed by the time the performance agreement is signed. This is not a 
subdivision that is going to be completed. She went over City Code regarding performance 
agreements and required improvements. The Elko City Code does not provide any guidance for 
a subdivision in which all or part of the work is completed prior to the execution of the 
performance agreement. The code only contemplates work that will be completed or will be 
constructed, not that has been completed or has been constructed. When we are looking at the 
options for the performance guarantee, we look at the performance bond. It was stated that City 
Staff contacted LP Insurance in Reno and that they have "clearly stated that it is entirely possible 
to bond for work that has not been accepted as completed by the City." JTM tried to get a 
performance bond from their insurance company, Adobe Insurance, and they said we can't do it. 
She called LP Insurance yesterday, and the response that she got was that the City staff and City 
Attorney contacted them and asked them some questions. She asked what was said. They said 
this project is the result of "staff letting things slide" and it is not definitively capable of bonding 
such a project and a bond like this is "a lot more work" and it is like "pushing a boulder up a 
hill" to get assurity to bond for this. She called them back today regarding "clearly stated that it 
is entirely possible to bond for work," and she answered that is not definite and "there is always 
a chance that the bond will be declined and the developer is going to be paying hefty premium to 
get a bond like this." That is a bond for work that is already completed. Next is the irrevocable 
letter of credit. Mr. Draper provided an email today that said he talked to somebody at Nevada 
Bank and Trust. She called Nevada Bank and Trust and spoke to Tom Gust. He sent a letter to 
JTM saying Nevada Bank and Trust no longer offers revocable or irrevocable letters of credit of 
terms to anyone. Mr. Gust also said that he had no idea who may or may not be looking at 
implementing letters of credit in this area, he can only say that he has not done a letter of credit 
here since 2009. We do not refer to specifics unless there is only one institution doing a 
particular project that they do not do. JTM did their due diligence in looking for these things and 
had answers that it is not available. The next one is a deposit of funds of the full cost of the 
required improvements. That is essentially paying for the project two times. Once when the 
contractors are paid and a second time to the City so they can ask for it right back. Mr. Draper 
hit on a lot of the issues that have gone on between the parties. In 2013, JTM began a project 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 6 of26 



called Eight Mile Estates. They only issued a 10% maintenance bond for the project. The memo 
today said it has since been determined that agreements structured in this manner do not meet the 
requirements stipulated in code and place the City at risk by not having the appropriate 
agreement and security in place to ensure completion of subdivision projects. That was the first 
time they heard of that. She mentioned several other subdivision agreements that did not provide 
security for the full cost. The City allowed this pattern and course of conduct at least until 
November 2016. The code has not changed. This is a practice that has gone on for about a 
decade. August of 201 7, there was an email that said the performance guarantee must be for the 
full cost of the required improvements but the next sentence said that the City can allow for a 
reduction in the performance guarantee. This was after construction had already begun. 
December 201 7 City Staff contends that the City Attorney had determined that the method of 
securing the project was reviewed and was not in strict compliance with Elko City Code 3-3-45. 
When she inquired about it she was told it was an operational issue_. 

Tom Ballew, High Desert Engineering, spoke about the project and what has been completed. 
He also explained what still needs to be completed. Certification will come at the completion of 
the work unless he is directed to do something in the interim. Standard procedure is to do that 
when the work is complete. 

Mr. Wilkinson asked how many days does it take to get concrete strength tests back. 

Mr. Ballew answered typically they take three cylinders at each location. The first is broke at 
seven days. If they see an issue they may break one at fourteen but typically they wait until 
twenty-eight to break the second one. The third would be a spare in case they need it. 

Mr. Wilkinson said they are twenty-eight days out from knowing if the concrete meets strength, 
as of today, correct? 

Mr. Ballew answered possibly. They see concrete strength at seven days, sometimes that meets 
the requirement. 

Councilman Schmidtlein asked what has been certified to date. Is the 4 7% completed what you 
have certified? 

Mr. Ballew answered he has certified all of the underground. This certification package has not 
been submitted to the City. They have done all of the pressure testing on the water lines. They 
have done the manual testing on the sewers. They have done all of the compaction testing on the 
subgrades and the gravels under the sidewalks. The items he lists as 100% includes the testing 
and the inspection to be able to say that is 100%. He has not provided that to the City because 
that is normally done at the end of the project. 

Ms. McConnell said JTM has relied on what the statements of the City in developing this 
subdivision. The code has not changed but the interpretation has changed and now a bond for 
the full amount would now be required. She is requesting to allow for a provision in the 
performance agreement for some type of a reduction in the amount of the performance 
guarantee, however that performance guarantee be presented to the City, for items that are 
completed, certified at the time the agreement is executed, rather than the full cost of the 
improvements. They are not disputing that JTM should enter into an agreement within 30 days 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 7 of26 



of the Council action on the map. They just asked for what they have done for at least the last 
ten years. This changed mid-course for JTM. This is what the City allowed for all developers. 
JTM will have completed most or all of the improvements within the timeframe that the 
agreement will be executed. They are not asking for this forever. They get that this is what City 
staff is now implementing. She felt this was a reasonable request. There was never a meeting 
with the developers explaining that this will change. This has all come from internal 
communications between staff and her client. She requested that Council approve her draft. The 
dollar amount is not in there because it is not known what that dollar amount will be when the 
agreement is executed. Mr. Ballew's notes today say the project is more than 64% completed as 
of today. 

Councilman Rice asked if JTM is seeking a performance bond cost that would cover the 
remaining work. 

Ms. McConnell repeated that they want to bond what has not been completed at the time the 
agreement is executed. Everything has been paid for up front so why do they need to pay for it 
twice? The work will be certified by the engineer at the time the agreement is executed. We 
have done this backwards basically. 

Councilwoman Simons asked if the work will be completed at the time the agreement is signed? 

Ms. McConnell said that is correct. 

Mr. Wilkinson made some points to Council about what their determination should be. We need 
to have a date certain with an approval of a preliminary plat. You have to have a security 
amount for the work that is not completed: the full amount. The Development Manager looked 
at that project and determined that it is approximately 50% completed on a dollar amount. We 
are talking about a security of a half a million dollars, $521,000, assuming the rest of the work 
can be certified and can be accepted by the City. If we are going to approve a final plat today, 
we need to have a performance agreement in place supporting that final plat and moving 
forward. If we are going to determine what the final amount will be at some point in the future, 
it still has to come back to City Council for a final amount determination. In the meantime we 
are just being strung along. It is difficult to get these performance agreements executed and 
secured in a timely manner. That is why they will all be coming back to City Council going 
forward. 

Councilman Rice said Mr. Ballew stated that the project is about 64% complete as of today. He 
asked Mr. Wilkinson where he got the $521,000. 

Councilman Schmidtlein answered that is roughly 50% of the project. 

Mr. Wilkinson said he thought there was about $25,000 that is not included in the engineer's 
estimate that is a public improvement on the state route. 

Mr. Draper said that was included in the $521,000. 

Councilman Rice asked Mr. Wilkinson if this was handled as he wanted it to be handled by the 
staff. 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 8 of26 



Mr. Wilkinson answered no. 

Councilman Schmidtlein wanted some clarification. If we come to some sort of agreement 
accepting 50% completion, they can obtain a bond to complete the work at a reduced amount. 
He wanted to see the 10% bond posted for the work completed. 

Ms. McConnell said it's not a 10% bond. It is 10% of the whole project needs to be posted as a 
maintenance bond. Mr. Ballew pointed out that the 50% completion was from last week. We 
are at 64% completion. 

Councilman Schmidtlein said that was true but Mr. Ballew cannot certify the concrete that has 
been poured for 28 days. Sixty-four percent may be complete but he cannot guarantee it at this 
moment. 

Ms. McConnell said they have thirty days to execute the performance agreement. It doesn't have 
to be executed today. They are asking for the permissive language in the agreement that says 
whatever is deemed complete between Mr. Draper and Mr. Ballew, that we allow a reduction of 
that security, that performance guarantee. That doesn't have to come back because the engineer 
certifies what the amount was to begin with and what has been done. The $521,000 came from 
Mr. Draper, it didn't come from Mr. Ballew. Mr. Wilkinson said the developer has strung the 
City along but up to now the property is still his property. 

Howard Schmidt, 6094 E. Torrey Pines Circle, Draper, UT, felt everyone was kind of missing 
the point. This subdivision has not been recorded and it is not City property. The City doesn't 
need a bond on it until this plat is recorded. The code is anticipating that they will record this 
plat and record the public improvements and post the performance bond, and then develop and 
start selling lots. The City owns the street right away and we certify that all these things are 
going in. That has been done many times. Generally speaking, we found it is difficult to get the 
bonding. The City has allowed us to meet all of the agreements, come up with an agreeable plat 
that is ready to record and then to the work and put in all of the improvements. The skin is on 
him to put it in. The City looks at it and accepts the work and then they post their 10% bond. 
He was hit with that last year and he had to come up with $350,000 at the last minute to record a 
plat. Until the project is completed, it is their project. They ran into one at Golden Hills that 
frustrated the City but the City didn't have to go fix that. They just waited until somebody came 
along and bought it, fixed it and got it accepted. As long as the improvements are done before 
the plat is recorded, that meets the City Code. As long as the work is done and accepted, that can 
be recorded. 

Mr. Wilkinson said what is lost is these performance agreements are intended to stipulate time 
for completion so that we have orderly and timely development in the City of Elko. They are 
also required so that we get maps recorded, we get right-of-ways and easements, etc., so that the 
City can choose at it's option to complete improvements when they are not completed. When 
you are extending the growth of your city from the core area, and people are subdividing and 
coming to the City and saying they want to subdivide it and they don't perform, everything 
behind that dies. You can't develop it. It isn't just about certifying a plat. It is about setting the 
stage for development and seeing that development move forward in a timely manner and allow 
for additional development to continue. 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 9 of26 



Mr. Stanton said everyone agrees this was done backwards. We shouldn't be here discussing 
this right now. If you take a look at 3-3-45-Al, it says performance or surety bond in an amount 
deemed sufficient by the City Engineer to cover but in no case be less than the full cost of 
required improvements, engineering, inspections, incidentals expenses and replacement and 
repair of any existing streets and utilities or other improvement which may be damaged during 
construction of required improvements. The latest date to provide this performance guarantee is 
prior to certification of the final plat. It is really not intended to work that way because it is still 
the full amount. You don't want to require the full amount, change the code. This code, as it is 
written right now, says the full amount. The fact that it may have been not strictly enforced 
years ago, that happens. It is not unique to Elko. The City has started enforcing this uniformly. 
Cities get into trouble by picking and choosing who you are going to give a break to. Then you 
start running into discriminatory enforcement issues. Just because we may have been lax in the 
past, that happens and it is not a constitutional issue. Enforcing something disparately, treating 
one person differently, that's an issue. That is his concern here. This language reads full cost of 
required improvements and so on. He doesn't see any other way to read that. It makes sense to 
enter into a performance agreement before you start the work. You post the bond to make sure if 
there are any problems down the road that the City can come in and fix them. We are being 
asked in this case, to take the developers word for it. To have a developer come in and say they 
have done the work and keep going until they are in crisis mode and they have to do all of this 
work that should have been done a long time ago. In this case, as everybody has seen, there is an 
agreement dated December 30, 2016, that this developer signed and the amount of the 
performance guarantee is the full amount of the engineer's estimate. There was an 
understanding on the part of this developer that the full amount of the performance guarantee 
would be deposited with the City. The final plat expired because of a time limit in the NRS. 
Now we are in a separate process and we are being asked to disregard what our City Code says. 
If the City Council is going to interpret this differently than the way he is reading it, he asked 
that the Council make that finding on the record. Otherwise he sees that it is the full amount of 
the performance guarantee. This should have been done a long time ago. Those are the legal 
issues as he sees them. If we are going to enforce this we need to do it consistently. The City 
Council can change the code if it decides to have some sort of a mechanism to allow a developer 
to come in and say they have done the improvements and give me a reduced performance bond. 

Councilman Rice pointed out the agreement wasn't signed by the Mayor. 

Mr. Stanton said he understood that it wasn't executed by the Mayor. He was saying that the 
developer has presented an argument that this is a new thing. It is not. 

Councilman Rice said we need to always comply with these things. This matter seems to have 
been arbitrarily enforced among developers. He understood the risk faced if the City were to 
revise the way this agreement were enforced with this developer and it would open the door for 
others. He did not want to do that. Since we haven't uniformly enforced the code for the last 
number of years, is one direction we can take to say that on a date, that the Council has 
instructed staff this code, every code will be uniformly enforced? 

Mr. Stanton didn't think that would work. It was a matter of it not being strictly enforced in the 
past. We are talking years ago and then a decision was made and he provided a legal 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 10 of26 



interpretation of how this code read. After that he thought it has been strictly enforced. That 
was a number of years ago. There has been consistent treatment for some time. 

Councilwoman Simons agreed that everything they do sets a precedence. If they do something 
for one person it will always come back to bite you. In this situation, she felt bad and maybe an 
exception should be made. If we have said "A" all along and then we try to switch to "B," that is 
kind of on us. If it were up to her she would say that we should rewrite the code to have other 
options. Maybe there are more ways of doing things. Comparing our Code to Reno may not be 
the way to go. We need to rewrite the code and from now on be completely consistent. This 
should never have happened but over the last decade this isn't new. This happened. We need to 
find an option that works for development. It isn't fair with anybody. 

Mr. Stanton said if we make an exception here we need to be consistent. One thing the Council 
can do is determine what the term "Full Cost" means. If a council interprets its own code in a 
certain way that makes sense, then that will be given a lot of deference. Council can interpret the 
definition of "Full Cost" before making a decision on this matter, that will have to be applied to 
everybody. 

Councilman Rice asked there is the possibility to create a way where they are enforcing the code 
the way it is written, but then require the performance bond to be a certain percentage. 

Mr. Stanton said it has to be an interpretation of the term "Full Cost" because that is in the code. 

Councilwoman Simons thought you could interpret it as full cost of what still needs to be done. 

Mayor Johnson said a developer builds the property and builds it to a particular standard, it is 
inspected by the City and the engineer and then it is turned over to the City of Elko to provide 
maintenance until the end of time. The intent of the City of Elko' s side is to be sure that it is a 
quality project is to have some of these things in place so that these quality assurances are in 
place so that the City's best chance of being able to replace the street in so many years, that the 
street will make it that length of time. The City counts on the tax revenues. The City of Elko is 
not only taking over streets, it is also taking over the water, sewer and storm drain under the 
same basis. It is a partnership from the very beginning. He wasn't sure if it was fair for the 
developer to build all the way to when the final plat is and then say, here, you are going to take 
this and maintain this until the end of time without the City's involvement up front. Now that it 
is on our desk, we cannot ignore or provide a deviation from the code but he thought there was a 
way out that he was interested in. There may be a couple of places that are in the engineer's 
estimate as far as what is the exposure to the City. The City's exposure will be in quality of 
streets and the longevity of the streets. How much of that is the total project? Is there exposure 
to the taxpayer as far as storm water runoff? He wasn't sure if this could be resolved today. We 
can look at that interpretation that Mr. Stanton was talking about. It is important that the City is 
involved from that maintenance aspect. 

Mr. Wilkinson thought a possibility might be that we had a prior approval and we had a prior 
performance agreement that wasn't secured. Some work was conducted but it is not completed 
or certified or accepted by the City. We also have a letter from an engineer of record that 
indicates a certain amount, about half of the total dollar value, is still outstanding. We are in 
another approval process today. It might be something that the Council could say that under this 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 11 of26 



new approval process for this final plat, the work that is required to complete that would be what 
is listed and referencing Mr. Ballew's letter and relying on Mr. Draper's assessment of the 
engineer's estimate, and that a performance agreement with security for the full amount would 
be that $521,000 under this approval. It might be something that the Council can consider. Then 
they would have to put up that full security for the full amount under this performance 
agreement. They would be able to complete work and the engineer would be able to certify that 
work. They could request draw-downs down to the remaining amount of the ten percent 
maintenance for the project. That might be a way to look at it. 

Mr. Stanton said the council has to make a finding. The term "Full Amount" in that code 
provision allows the City to do that. The full amount means the full amount of remaining 
improvements as opposed to full amount from the beginning of the project. There is a big 
difference in numbers there. Courts will defer to Council's interpretation as long as it makes 
sense. The Council needs to keep in mind that if they do that in this case, we have to do that 
consistently unless until this code provision is rewritten. 

Mr. Wilkinson said moving forward, these agreements will be presented to the City Council at 
the front of the project so the Council's interpretation of the full security required will be based 
on a beginning of a project. The developer has dodged a bullet here by not entering into the 
agreement in the first place. Going forward we can't have the City put in that position. 

Ms. McConnell said they have no objection to a proposed agreement that would allow the 
guarantee to be the amount for the remaining improvements. We have thirty days to enter into 
the agreement and the project will be done. The code says, 3-3-45, prior to a certification of a 
final plat approval of the Mayor, we are still dealing with that timeframe. We are not there. The 
subdivider shall have provided the City a financial guarantee of performance for the completion 
of require subdivision improvements. What better guarantee than it being done. Mr. Draper, 
when he went through this with City Council, he said he met with Dave Stanton after June 20, 
2017 to discuss the interpretation. That was his statement on the record. They did not get 
notified in this change in interpretation until January 2018. The emails they provided, they were 
statements from City Staff saying a reduction in the performance guarantee would be allowed. If 
the Council does not allow for some reduction, they are discriminating against her client. It is 
still his property and he has not dedicated anything to the City. He could have scrapped this 
whole project right now and not record the final map. The City has no obligation to go in there 
and fix it until that is recorded. 

Mr. Wilkinson pointed out that JTM has tied onto City infrastructure with utilities. He tied onto 
an existing waterline. If that were to fail or there were any issues with that, the City has no 
recourse. There is a whole host of issues. The Code says, upon final approval of the plat, the 
Mayor shall certify the map. What is envisioned is after a final approval of the plat, if that were 
to occur tonight, the City Clerk is to obtain the Mayor's certification of the plat, not thirty days 
from now, not two years from now. It envisions that a performance agreement is in place, it is 
secured and the Mayor will certify the plat, as long as we have all the other certifications in 
place. If you go to final plat approval that is what it says. But this is a continuation of how 
developers deal with the City. Typically the developer will ignore City Staff and continue to do 
the work. This developer was notified in August 2017, before the prior approval expired, that 
they needed to put the full bond amount up. And they were notified that they could ask for a 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 12 of26 



reduction as allowed for under City Code. It wasn't January 2018. There were discussions prior 
to that. 

Councilman Rice felt the City has utterly failed in its responsibility to enforce the agreement. 
Mr. Wilkinson was talking about the developers but the city has been negligent in its 
responsibilities as well. 

Mr. Wilkinson agreed but what was being proposed today is that they pick a point in time and 
say this is the full amount under this approval of this final plat, based on an engineer's letter of 
what is completed. That may be a good point in time for the Council to take action and say the 
full amount required is $521,000, etc. There is work continuing and we don't know if it meets 
certification. 

Councilwoman Simons felt the code already said a point in time. It says prior to certification of 
final plat approved. It already specifies in code a point in time. 

Mr. Wilkinson said that was the time by which the performance guarantee needs to be deposited. 
That's not he reads the method of determining the amount of the performance guarantee. He 
doesn't see a mechanism in the code for reducing the amount for work done. It isn't really 
designed to work that way. There is a provision in 3-3-44 that allows for the bond to be reduced 
as the work is done and the City certifies it as complete. 

Mayor Johnson asked if they can get a certification or work completed. 

Mr. Ballew answered he could do that at any time. He could certify what has been completed. 
Mr. Wilkinson made a good point on the testing of the concrete. Until they get those breaks they 
cannot say it has met that requirement. 

Mayor Johnson wants to stay within the code as much as possible. What is the City exposure 
with this? What decision they make today will be carried on into the future. This needs to be a 
decision they can live with. 

Councilman Keener said he is coming back to the $521,000 number even though the developer 
has more than that. 

Councilman Rice read the recommended motion. The revision of that recommended motion 
would be to approve the agreement, full cost being $521,000. 

Councilwoman Simons asked if they need to say how they arrive at that number. 

Mr. Stanton answered there has to be some rationale for that. There is an interpretation of the 
City Code so there should be some rationale in the discussion for arriving at that number based 
on the Code. 

Councilman Schmidtlein noted that the engineer can certify to date that 50% of the project is 
completed. 

Mr. Wilkinson said he would factor in the current approval process. 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 13 of26 



Ms. McConnell said the dollar amount has not been certified by their engineer. They would 
request that they be given a date and certify to that date with a dollar amount that can be put in. 
That $521,000 was staff's interpretation or what they provided. That was not coming from their 
engineer of record. 

Mr. Wilkinson thought the City had the authority to determine whether a full bond amount being 
presented is adequate or not. When they review the unit costs to what it may cost the City to do 
that. Mr. Ballew does a great job in presenting the engineer's estimates. Mr. Draper went 
through the engineer's estimate in detail and has arrived at his number. It seems to be a 
reasonable number based on Mr. Ballew's letter. We verify the cost estimate submitted to the 
City. 

Mayor Johnson said the way the Code it written, the City Engineer interprets what the cost of the 
project should be. Then it is a matter of percentage between the City Engineer and what the 
project engineer is willing to certify. We are close. We may be off by five or ten percent in 
tonight's discussion. Now it is a matter of receiving the certification from the project engineer 
and that will define what number is left for the payment performance bond and what is left to be 
completed. 

Councilman Rice struggled with how to word the motion. He was looking at a date of April 25. 
Mr. Ballew will tell us what the completion is tomorrow and the remainder will be $521,000. 
That is 50%. We may be five or ten percent off from that when they receive the numbers. 

Mr. Wilkinson thought what they could do is say the full amount will be determined on April 
25th

, based on certifications from the engineer of record, and that the full amount determined on 
April 25th is the full amount of the required public improvements required to support their 
approval of Final Plat Application. 

Mr. Ballew said his interpretation of this is that at close of business tomorrow, they will come up 
with a value of what is done. Typically, what he would do at that point is prepare his 
certification and he would call Mr. Draper and have him do an inspection with him to verify 
what he came up with. At that point they would make their agreement and he would make any 
corrections that need to be done. Then he would submit officially to the City. Do they want that 
certification as of close of business today or close of business tomorrow? In any event, it will be 
the next day before you get the certification. 

Mayor Johnson asked what day would work best. 

Mr. Ballew answered he would do it as of Friday night. Then if need be, he could spend some 
time on the weekend working on what he needed to do and get hold of Mr. Draper on Monday. 

Mr. Wilkinson said they are going to approve a plat tonight. A date of the work that is 
completed is that approval date. Whether it takes a day or two to get a certification. Maybe we 
aren't going to approve a plat tonight but he felt if the plat is approved tonight, the engineer's 
estimate should be based on work completed as of today. Certifications take place starting 
tomorrow. 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 14 of26 



Ms. McConnell said they would request the Friday night as Mr. Ballew stated. They want to 
make sure that the total amount of improvements is reduced by the amount of the improvements 
completed as of April 27, 2018. 

Mayor Johnson said he was leaning to, as a finding, that a guarantee may be reduced upon 
certification of the project completion. The City Council will accept a security or guarantee on 
April 25 th or April 27th of the project costs to complete. 

Mr. Wilkinson noted that the full amount for final plat approval, which would be today, is the 
determined at the end of business today. 

Mr. Stanton gave some language suggestions. He felt Council did have a rational interpretation 
of the Code. There can be some language that says, "approve the agreement to install 
improvements as it is written in the agenda item, provided the amount of the performance 
guarantee shall be determined as follows: A) the full cost of required improvements, 
engineering, inspections, incidental expenses, and replacement and repair of any existing streets 
and utilities, or other improvements which may be damaged during construction of required 
improvements shall be ______ ." We will fill in that amount and that will be the full 
amount. "B) the performance agreement shall contain a provision permitting the reduction in the 
performance guarantee, not exceeding 90% of the value of improvements completed and 
approved as determined by City Staff." We will also contain a provision that says, ''the amount 
of the performance guarantee shall be determined by City Staff based on the engineer's estimate 
provided on April 27, 2018." 

Councilman Schmidtlein stated "certification?" 

Mr. Wilkinson corrected that it would need to be today. 

Mr. Stanton agreed today, April 24th• 

Mr. Draper said the maintenance guarantee per code is ten percent of the performance guarantee. 
The maintenance guarantee should still be based on the million dollar number. 

Councilman Schmidtlein agreed it should be based on the original amount. 

Mayor Johnson said the only way we are getting around this is because we have the provision of 
certifications. 

Mr. Stanton said the full amount is going to be the $1.9 and then there is going to be a reduction 
based on what Mr. Ballew certifies. The maintenance guarantee is going to be based on that full 
amount. Where he said "blank" in the motion, that would be the full $1.9 million. 

Councilman Rice asked what that number was. 

Mr. Draper answered $1,095,770. That is in the agreement as it is right now. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to 
approve the agreement to install improvements as it is written in the agenda item, provided 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 15 of26 



the amount of the performance guarantee shall be determined as follows: A) the full cost of 
required improvements, engineering, inspections, incidental expenses, and replacement and 
repair of any existing streets and utilities, or other improvements which may be damaged 
during construction of required improvements shall be $1,095,770; and, B) the 
performance agreement shall contain a provision permitting the reduction in the 
performance guarantee, not exceeding 90% of the value of improvements completed and 
approved as determined by City Staff. The amount of the performance guarantee shall be 
determined by City Staff based on the engineer's certification provided on April 24, 2018. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

VIII. 5:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Review, consideration, and public hearing for Notice of a Proposed Lease of Real 
Property for City owned land of less than 25,000 square feet located at 2953 
Manzanita Dr. to C-A-L Stores Companies, Inc., and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

C-A-L Stores Companies, Inc. dba C-A-L Ranch Stores currently holds a lease 
agreement with the City of Elko to use City property located at 2953 Manzanita 
Drive for storage of goods. The current lease extension does not expire until 
August 21, 2020; however, C-A-L Stores is currently working on extending their 
existing private building lease and would like to secure this lease as part of the 
package. 

NRS 268.064 provides that the governing body may lease the property subject to 
the provisions outlined therein. 

Council adopted Resolution No. 11-18 which states that it is in the best interest of 
the City to lease the property without offering the property to the public, and that 
the lease may or may not be at fair market value. RL 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, explained at the last meeting, Council approved Resolution No. 11-
18. Public notices were published with regard to that, setting tonight as a public hearing. If this 
is approved then we will go back to an earlier agenda item, dealing with the C-A-L Ranch lease, 
which will complete the process. 

Mayor Johnson called for public comment without a response. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, to 
conduct public hearing and declare the continued interest to lease City owned property 
located at 2953 Manzanita Drive, to C-A-L Stores Companies, Inc. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

B. Review, consideration, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 12-18, a 
resolution of the Elko City Council adopting a change in zoning district 
boundaries from R (Single Family and Multiple Family Residential) to PQP 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 16 of26 



(Public, Quasi-Public) approximately 1.314 acres of property located northwest of 
the intersection of College A venue and Golf Course Road, filed by The City of 
Elko, and processed as Rezone No. 1-18, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

The Planning Commission considered the Subject Zone Change Request on April 
3, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 
resolution, which approves Rezone No. 1-18. CL 

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained this is an attempt to clean up the zoning on several 
parcels that the existing zoning is not compatible with the current land use. This is the old Police 
Station and it is zoned residential. Planning Commission has approved the zone change and has 
forwarded a recommendation to Council. 

Mayor Johnson called for public comment without a response. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Keener, 
to adopt Resolution No.12-18 as recommended by the Planning Commission. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

VII. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

A. First reading of Ordinance No. 828, an ordinance amending Title 4, Chapter 6, 
entitled "Room Tax", and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
At its January 9, 2018 meeting, the Elko City Council initiated changes to the 
Room Tax Code. SO 

Jonnye Jund, Administrative Services Director, explained the proposed ordinance was included 
in the agenda packet. Matt McCarty was present representing the Lodging Committee and 
wanted to go over some information. 

Matt McCarty, 598 Flowing Wells Lane, Spring Creek, explained the ECVA Board is in favor of 
the ordinance as proposed. They sent out an information request for all of the Lodging 
Committee members that they had. There was one property that responded that was not in favor 
of the ordinance. There was no other response from the other properties. The Lodging 
Committee did have a chance to go over this at the beginning of April. At that time no one had 
no objections. As a previous manager at a property that had 28 day exemptions, at a meeting 
about six months ago, it was discovered that there were no fewer than three different methods 
that the 28-day exemption was being handled by various properties. This ordinance clarifies the 
28-day exemption so that all properties are operating under the same rules and understanding 
those rules better. If this passes, there is a recommendation that one of the forms/documents that 
was previously optional will be now mandatory so the ECV A can see where they are being 
successful in the events they are attempting to bring into the City. That document is the Detail 
Occupancy Report. They can get some data from the reports that the City Staff provides 
currently. If there is a new event or a specific event that they have put money towards, they 
don't see that result on a weekend or weekly basis, or even a daily basis. Instead, they see it on a 
month-to-month basis. Having a day-by-day breakdown will help the board determine success 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 17 of26 



of events. There is not enough data to determine how much room tax is being lost. There is a 
gap and they don't know what that gap is because there isn't enough information. The 
occupancy report they currently get averages around 36%. Only about 1/3 of the rooms are 
being reported on the occupancy. They feel it can be required for an auditor to determine if all of 
the required room tax is being paid. Having the ability to audit what they feel they should be 
collecting is vital. 

Ms. Jund went over the proposed changes to the code. 

Councilman Keener noted there isn't any language that speaks to the selection process for audits. 
What is the selection process? 

Ms. Jund answered that will be determined by the auditors. 

Bob Wines, Attorney, manages a mobile home park. When he first read this he thought there 
was a lot of paperwork. He wanted to propose a new section that says if your business only does 
rentals over 28 days, those kinds of businesses do not have to do the reporting under this code. 

Lori Vavak, Double Dice RV Park, 3730 E. Idaho Street, felt for RV parks, this presents a real 
problem. They have a transient business that people are in and out of all of the time. In order for 
a small business like them, they don't have the staff to do this type of thing. Why wasn't there a 
business impact statement? There should have been a business impact statement with as many 
changes that impact a business to this degree. This will cost her a lot of money to comply with. 
The City would want three years of records in ten days. It would take her accountant 90 days to 
get the information requested. Now you can pull the business license if they don't have the 
requested information. She doesn't feel that is logical. Does the Convention Center think they 
are here just to provide information for the auditors. In the last 30 years nothing has been done 
for the RV industry. She felt the City violated the law by not issuing a business impact 
statement. This will cost so much money to comply. Number one, it is requested that the staff 
go through everyday and fill out total rooms, total rooms rented, etc., and then fill out an 
exemption form. When a government employee comes in, they already have a form that the 
government gives them. Why is that not sufficient? Or they pay with a government credit card. 
Why is that not sufficient? This is all duplication and it will cost her time and money. All the 
RV parks are going to have the same problem. She has a transient business. She filled out the 
top part of number 3 and showed it to Council. This is the form she is supposed to run around 
and have every one of her tenants fill out every month. It is an affidavit. She is being asked to 
enter into this agreement with the tenant and she has no idea if they are going to stay. They have 
a trailer. Some leave without telling her. This is going to cost so much time and money for 
nothing. Another option for her is to provide the City with her contract with her tenant. The 
contract is private information. She can be sued for giving that contract to someone else. She 
was perplexed as to why the City didn't do the right, honest thing and put out a business impact 
statement to every single business that this would affect. She only found out about this because 
she saw something in the paper. She spoke about the records she would be required to maintain 
and wondered if this was really that big of a problem. Just taking out the promotional package 
should have been enough to put out a business impact statement. A big business would have an 
auditor. She is running a bar, grill, gaming and an RV park with three employees. She doesn't 
have time to fill out the sheet everyday. She doesn't have time to run down the tenants. She 
runs a tight ship. The information the City is asking for is unbelievable. Now she is asked to 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 18 of26 



keep records for three years. The City has more power than the IRS in here. You think you can 
come into her business, take her computer records? There is no limit as to what the City can do. 
She didn't think this was about finding out how much room tax the City is losing. This is about 
how much money people are making in this town. This is very intrusive and way beyond the 
law. Page 6 says this is not supposed to cost her any money. Explain to her how this doesn't 
cost her any money. 

Mayor Johnson asked for an explanation as to why the City did not do a Business Impact 
Statement. 

Rich Barrows, Wilson, Barrows, Salyer, Jones, 442 Court Street, special Attorney for the City, 
explained he rendered an opinion to the City on January 19, 2018, based upon a ruling by the 
Nevada Department of Taxation that charges of fees and taxes that are paid by individuals, rather 
than by businesses, as this Transient Lodging Tax is, a Business Impact Statement is not 
required. As long as the tax or the fee is paid by individuals, rather than by the business itself. 
He gave his opinion to the City that a Business Impact Statement was not required by law it is 
his assumption that the City followed that advice. 

Mayor Johnson asked about the affidavit. Is that in favor of the business owner if the tenant 
changes their mind? 

Mr. Barrows said you would have to ask Jonnye Jund that question because it is not a legal 
question. 

Jonnye Jund, Administrative Services Director, said the affidavit is signed by the renter stating 
that they are going to stay the twenty-eight days. If they check-out before the twenty-eight days 
then they are required to pay the 14% for that stay. What some hotels do is keep a credit card on 
file and if they check out early they go back and charge the 14% for the tax. The affidavit is just 
a statement with their intent to stay twenty-eight days. 

Mayor Johnson asked if the tenant doesn't honor that then the tenant is on the hook, not the 
business. 

Ms. Johnson answered correct. The tenant is the one that would have to pay the tax. 

Mayor Johnson asked if a tenant can fill out an affidavit for more than a month? 

Ms. Jund answered if the stay is extended, they can do one and then continue it on and 
continually update that. They wouldn't have to redo the affidavit but they would have to 
somehow indicate the dates the affidavit is in effect. 

Mayor Johnson asked if there was a way that a tenant could fill out an affidavit that says they 
would stay there for the next six months to a year. 

Ms. Jund answered it is anything in excess of twenty-eight days. It has to be in twenty-eight 
increments. 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 19 of26 



Ms. Vavak wants it clarified that the City is going to go after the tenant for that money and not 
her or the business. 

Ms. Jund said the business owner would still have to charge the tenant. It is up to the hotelier to 
pay that. Some will collect the tax and then refund it after the 28 days. That way they are 
ensured that they would be able to pay the tax if the tenant checked out early. It would be up to 
the property owner to collect the tax and remit. We are required to remit to the state for anyone 
who does not stay twenty-eight days but right now there is no way to verify. 

Ms. Vavak still wanted that clarified. She would like to see the NRS that shows the provision of 
taking the business license and the lien on the property. She still disagrees with the 
interpretation of the business impact statement. It is a pass-thru tax and not an individual tax. It 
is insane to require records for three years. Right now, the business license can be taken if the 
records are not presented in ten days. 

Matt McCarty said using the data from Smith Travel Research, the average room collection is 
$3.5 million a year. The leakage is $1 million a year. That leakage can be a number of things. 
The leakage is a significant amount and the new reporting can give us an indication of where it is 
going. He has worked at eight businesses throughout the town and the records are kept on 
property. Most of the businesses would have access to their records immediately. 

Councilman Rice said he was ready for a motion. The wonderful thing about this is that it was 
created by the lodging community. They saw the need and they drafted it. He is comfortable 
with is because it came from the business it impacts. 

Councilman Keener said he is also in favor and comfortable with the ordinance. They realize 
they will need to do a bit more work to keep up. It is a dysfunctional system when there is no 
method to conduct an audit. If this were controversial, this chamber would be packed with angry 
hoteliers that feel we are over stepping our bounds. It is important that we include this optional 
reporting form and make it mandatory. This is the tool that will give Don and his staff to gauge 
occupancy during events. 

Ms. Jund said once this reading is done, we are sending everything with updated information to 
every hotel in the City. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein, 
to conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 828, and direct staff to set the matter for Public 
Hearing, Second Reading and possible adoption. In addition to that, make the monthly 
form entitled "Elko Hotel/Motel/RV Park Detail Occupancy Report" a mandatory form 
submitted each month. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

After the motion and before the vote, Councilman Schmidtlein asked if he was going to include 
any further language about extending the time frame to get all of the records to the City. 

Councilman Keener felt it was already reasonable. Under this new process the property will be 
filling out the forms daily and keep it at the property. 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 20 of26 



Ms. Jund added that the due date of the return was not changed. The grace period was changed. 

Council voted on the motion. 

B. First Reading of Ordinance No. 830, an ordinance increasing the corporate limits 
of the City of Elko, Nevada, pursuant to the provisions of N.R.S. 268.670 
annexing thereto a certain tract of land partially contiguous to and not embraced 
within the present limits of the City of Elko described as follows: a parcel of land 
located southwest of the intersection of P and H Drive and West Idaho Street in 
Section 30, T. 34 N., R. 55 E., MDM, Elko County, Nevada, consisting of 32.74 
acres, filed by Legend Engineering on behalf of Ed and Sharon Netherton and 
JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc. and processed as Annexation No. 1-18, and to 
direct Staff to set the matter for public hearing, second reading and possible 
adoption, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

City Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on March 27, 2018, 
and directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter 
to the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission considered the 
annexation on April 3, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation of 
approval with findings back to the City Council. CL 

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained there is representation from Joy Global present in the 
audience. Planning Commission reviewed this and forwarded a recommendation to 
conditionally approve the annexation. 

Councilman Keener pointed out that the parcel number is incorrect on the submitted surveyors 
map. 

Ms. Laughlin said the legal description was correct. 

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, felt this was a minor technicality and the motion could 
be addressed in the motion. 

* * A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Schmidtlein, 
to conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 830, and direct staff to set the matter for public 
hearing, second reading (and at the second reading we need to see a revised surveyor's map 
with a corrected APN Number) and possible adoption. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

V. SUBDIVISIONS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible action to conditionally approve Final Plat No. 
4-18, filed by Jordanelle Third Mortgage, LLC., for the development of a 
subdivision entitled Tower Hill Unit 1, involving the proposed division of 
approximately 33.804 acres of property into 23 lots and 2 remainder parcels for 
residential development within the RI (Single Family Residential) Zoning 
District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 21 of26 



Subject property is located southeast of the terminus of Stitzel Road (APN 001-
920-079). Preliminary Plat was recommended to City Council to conditionally 
approve by Planning Commission September 7, 2017 and conditionally approved 
by City Council October 24, 2017. The Planning Commission considered this 
item on March 6, 2018 and took action to forward a recommendation to City 
Council to conditionally approve Final Plat 4-18. CL 

Ms. Laughlin explained this was previously approved and that subdivision application had 
expired. Now they are in the process of re-approval. City Council did accept the preliminary 
plat and this did go to Planning Commission for their approval. The application is for a total of 
twenty-three lots with two remaining lots. 

Councilman Keener asked if the applicant was good with the conditions. 

Katie McConnell, Attorney for Jordanelle Third Mortgage, answered so long as the provisions in 
the Performance Agreement that were already approved by Council are included in the 
Performance Agreement as contemplated herein. 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Keener, to 
conditionally approve Final Plat No. 4-18, for the Tower Hill Unit 1 subdivision, subject to 
the conditions as recommended by the Planning Commission, taking into account that the 
Performance Agreement, as agreed upon earlier, will apply to this motion as well. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

VI. NEW BUSINESS (Cont.) 

A. Review, consideration, and possible acceptance of a Deed of Dedication for a 
portion of Statice Street from Treadway Investment Co., LLC along the frontage 
of APN 001-860-110, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Treadway Investment Co., LLC is completing the required public improvements 
on Statice Street, as a part of the construction of a new facility for Ken worth Sales 
Company, Inc. Statice Street is identified as an industrial collector in the City of 
Elko Master Plan; the City has requested the dedication of the right of way. JD 

Jeremy Draper, Development Manager, explained the Deed of Dedication. 

* * A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Rice, to 
accept the Deed of Dedication for Statice Street. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Lease of Real Property for City 
owned land of less than 25,000 square feet located at 2953 Manzanita Drive to C
A-L Stores Companies, Inc., and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page22 of26 



This item is to be considered following the related public hearing item. 

C-A-L Stores Companies, Inc. dba C-A-L Ranch Stores currently holds a lease 
agreement with the City of Elko to use City property located at 2953 Manzanita 
Drive for storage of goods. The current lease extension does not expire until 
August 21, 2020; however, C-A-L Stores is currently working on extending their 
existing private building lease and would like to secure this lease as part of the 
package. 

NRS 268.064 provides that the governing body may lease the property subject to 
the provisions outlined therein. 

Council adopted Resolution No. 11-18 which states that it is in the best interest of 
the City to lease the property without offering the property to the public, and that 
the lease may or may not be at fair market value. RL 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, explained this is the final step in the lease of the property to C-A-L 
Stores Companies. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Scbmidtlein, 
to approve the lease to C-A-L Stores Company, Inc., according to the terms outlined in the 
Lease Agreement, for property located at 2953 Manzanita Drive. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

D. Review, discussion, and possible appointment of one (1) candidate to serve on the 
Airport Advisory Board, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The Airport Advisory Board has one (1) vacant position. Mr. James P. Carragher, 
Mr. Matthew Griego, and Mr. Jairus Duncan have all expressed an interest in 
serving on the board. Letters of Interest from the candidates have been included in 
the packet. CC 

Mr. Calder said it was the pleasure of the council. There are three interested candidates and one 
of the candidates is our Fire Chief Matt Griego. 

Councilman Keener said he would like to have citizen involvement as much as possible. He said 
he would tip his hat to the one that was within the City limits. 

Councilwoman Simons said Chief Griego already attends the meetings and he has a vested 
interest. He deserves a vote. 

Councilman Rice would not have difficulty with that either. 

Councilman Schmidtlein agreed the more public input the better. He did not recommend putting 
a City employee on that board. 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 23 of26 



** A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Keener 
to appoint Jairus Duncan. 

The motion passed. (4-1 Councilwoman Simons voted against.) 

E. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Non~Exclusive Franchise 
Agreement between the City of Elko and Level 3 Communications, LLC for Data 
Communications Over, Under, In, Along and Across Public Roads in the City of 
Elko, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The proposed term of the agreement is ten (10) years and provides for a five (5) 
year renewal provided the terms and conditions remain the same. The proposed 
franchise fee is five (5) percent of the gross revenues actually collected from 
customers located within the corporate limits of the City. SAW 

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, briefly went over the agreement. The agreement has 
been reviewed by Legal Counsel. After some debate between Level 3 Communications and their 
attorney, we finally came to a resolution on an agreement that could be presented to the Council. 

Councilman Keener said he remembered a number of2% when we did Frontier's agreement. 

Mr. Wilkinson said Beehive is 5% and Frontier was 5% but he wasn't sure what they ended up 
agreeing on. 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said they didn't increase the percentage. That franchise agreement 
was restricted to five years duration. The problem with Frontier, we saw on the franchise fee 
side, a reduction every year. When we requested their financial data that matched. They are 
losing customers. We didn't feel is would be helpful to raise franchise fees in that scenario. 

Mr. Wilkinson added there are no escalators over the term of this agreement. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Keener, seconded by Councilman Rice, to 
approve a Non-Exclusive Franchise Agreement between the City of Elko and Level 3 
Communications, LLC for data communications over, under, in, along and across public 
roads in the City of Elko. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

IV. APPROPRIATIONS (Cont.) 

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

* * A motion was made by Councilman Rice, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to 
approve the warrants. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 24 of26 



II. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review and possible approval of an agreement between the City of Elko and 
Erika Johnson, D.V.M., for the provision of independent contractor services on 
behalf of the City of Elko Animal Shelter, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

The City of Elko and Dr. Erika Johnson desire to renew the annual Veterinarian 
Contract. Under this contract, LASSO reimburses the City of Elko for all fees 
paid. CC 

B. Review and possible approval of an agreement between the City of Elko and 
William Wright, D.V.M., for the provision of independent contractor services on 
behalf of the City of Elko Animal Shelter, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 
The City of Elko and Dr. William Wright desire to renew the annual Veterinarian 
Contract. Under this contract, LASSO reimburses the City of Elko for all fees 
paid. CC 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Rice, to 
approve the consent agenda. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

IX. REPORTS 

A. Mayor and City Council 
Councilman Keener was sad to hear about Senator Dean Rhodes passing. 

He attended the Fire Awards Dinner. On the broadband front, there should 
be some exciting news to report in May as soon as a non-disclosure 
agreement is released 

Mayor Johnson attended a Leadership Day at Sage Elementary school 
where the students presented the 7 Habits of Happy Kids. There is an 
opportunity to engage in what is known as the Junior Achievement Program. 
They will have orientation at Northside Elementary on Monday. They need 
twenty-eight volunteers at Northside. 

B. City Manager 
Curtis Calder reported that he and Jonnye Jund attended the Insurance 

Pool meeting last week but they haven't received what the final rate will be 
for liability insurance. April 27 and 28 Maddie's Fund (a non-profit that 
supports animal shelters) is waiving all adoption fees for every animal shelter 
in the State of Nevada. We will participate with that and we will be 
reimbursed for the adoption fees. 

C. Assistant City Manager 
Scott Wilkinson said April 28th is the Annual Clean Up Green Up Day. 

D. Utilities Director 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 25 of26 



E. Public Works 
Dennis Strickland reported they lost the transmission on the loader at the 

landfill and they are faced with an emergency repair. They are looking at the 
mid $40,000 for a rebuild 

F. Airport Manager 
G. City Attorney 

Councilman Keener asked where they were at on the Fiber Lease 
Agreement. Dave Stanton answered he spoke with Garrett Weir who is 
Counsel for the PUCN They are trying to figure out a way to take advantage 
of the exception for public utilities providing services to the public in NRS 
268.059. 

H. Fire Chief 
I. Police Chief 
J. City Clerk 
K. City Planner 
L. Development Manager 
M. Administrative Services Director 
N. Parks and Recreation Director 
0. Civil Engineer 
P. Building Official 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this 
item on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive 
agenda and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

There were no public comments. 

There being no further business, Mayor Chris Johnson adjourned the meeting. 

Mayor Chris Johnson Shanell Owen, City Clerk 

04/24/2018 City Council Minutes Page 26 of26 



Agenda Item II.A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a funds transfer from the 
General Fund to the Recreation Fund for the purchase of lighting for the Sports 
Complex, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: At Council's direction, we have identified funds that are 
available to assist with the completion of the Sports Complex. The City has 
currently awarded a bid for the construction of the Elko Sports Complex and 
accordingly, we have allocated the excess sales tax received in FY18 to the purchase 
of the outdoor lighting for the project. These lights are outside of the bid package 
that is currently awarded. However, the installation of the lighting is included in the 
awarded bid. It will be necessary to order the lighting prior to the end of FY18 to 
ensure timely delivery for installation. This purchase was not budgeted in FY18. JJ 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: $700,000.00 
Budget amount available: NA 
Fund name: General Fund - Recreation Fund 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: NA 

9. Recommended Motion: Recommend the transfer of funds from the General Fund to 
the Recreation Fund for the purchase of outdoor lighting for the Sports Complex. 

10. Prepared By: Jonnye Jund, Administrative Services Director 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: Michael Spilker, Hinton Burdick 
mspilker@hintonburdick.com 

Created on 05/02/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



- ---- -------- --~ 

Agenda Item III.D. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to 
purchase a new Type III Fire Apparatus from Boise Mobile Equipment, in the 
amount of $319,940.00, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 08, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The City of Elko Fire Department would like the approval 
to begin the purchasing process for a new Type III Fire Engine. The new Fire 
Engine will replace the current Rescue 10, which is 18 years old, and will be built by 
Boise Mobile Equipment, at the price of $319,940.00. The apparatus will feature 
seating for four firefighters, 500 gallons of water, 750 gallon per minute pump, 
pump and roll capabilities, and increased compartment space. Due to a process and 
build time of 6 months to a year, the Fire Department would like to order the 
apparatus, and not require payment until delivery. This purchase will be done 
utilizing the HGAC purchasing program. JS 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: $319,940.00 
Budget amount available: $ 320,000.00 
Fund name: Capitol Equipment 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: N/A 

9. Recommended Motion: Recommend approval for the Fire Department to purchase a 
new Type III Fire Apparatus from Boise Mobile Equipment in the amount of 
$319,940.00. 

10. Prepared By: Jack Snyder, Deputy Fire Chief 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: N/A 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 05/02/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Action Item III.E. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to apply 
with the Elko County LEPC for the United We Stand Grant, in the amount of 
$24,285.00, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The City of Elko Fire Department would like to apply with 
the Elko County Local Emergency Planning Commission for the 2019 United We 
Stand Grant. The grant will apply for an Incident Management Software Program, 
five mobile and three handheld aircraft radios and two Hazardous Materials 
Containment Kits. The Incident Management Software will be able to be utilized by 
all Elko County Emergency Response Agencies as well as the Emergency 
Operations Center. The aircraft radios will be used by the Elko Fire Department in 
the Emergency Apparatus to enhance the communications between aircraft, 
expedite response to an incident and have airport communications anywhere in the 
City. The two Hazardous Materials Kit will be utilized by the Hazmat Team to 
combat Chlorine Leaks and Leaks from low pressure cylinders. The City of Elko 
would initially pay for the cost of the items in the grant and the City would be 
reimbursed from Elko County. JS 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: $24, 285.00 
Budget amount available: $ 24, 285.00 
Fund name: Fire Department Operations 

Non Capitol Equipment replacement 
Supplies Software Licensing 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: N/A 

9. Recommended Motion: Recommend approval for the Fire Department to apply with 
the Elko County LEPC for the United We Stand Grant in the amount of $24,285.00. 

10. Prepared By: Jack Snyder, Deputy Fire Chief 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: N/A 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 05/02/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Agenda Item IV .A. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a second amendment to 
Revocable Permit No. 3-17, flied by WANRack, LLC to occupy a portion of the City 
of Elko Right-of-Way, to accommodate installation of a new Fiber Optic Wide Area 
Network between school facilities, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Time Required: 10 Minutes 

Background Information: Council reviewed the application for a revocable permit at 
their September 26, 2017 meeting and ·approved to enter into a license agreement 
with Wanrack. A first amendment to the license agreement was approved by 
Council on November 28, 2017. Wanrack has changed the Scope of Work to include 
additional routes and therefore requiring a second amendment with new exhibits. 
CL 

Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: NI A 
Budget amount available: N/A i 

Fund name: N/A I 

Business Impact Statement: Not Require1 

Supplemental Agenda Information: Licen*e Agreement Amendment 
I 

Recommended Motion: Approve Secon4 Amendment to the License Agreement for 
Revocable Permit No. 3-17 I 

Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Plan er 

Committee/Other Agency Review: 

Council Action: 

Council Agenda Distribution: WANRack 
15700 Coll ge Blvd., Suite 200 
Lenexa, K 66219 

Created on 4/19/2018 Council Agenda Adtion Sheet 
! 

Page 1 of 1 



SECOND AMENDMENT TO REVOCABLE LICENSE AGREEMENT 
FOR OCCUPANCY OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 

(FIBER OPTIC NETWORK) 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO REVOCABLE LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR 
OCCUPANCY OF RIGHT-OF-WAY (FIBER OPTIC NETWORK) (hereinafter the 
"Second Amendment") is made this_ day of _________ , 2018 (hereinafter the 
"Effective Date") by and between the CITY OF ELKO, a municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Nevada, hereinafter called the "City of Elko," and W ANRACK LLC, 
a Kansas limited liability corporation, hereinafter called the "Licensee." 

A. On October 4, 2017, the City of Elko and Licensee entered into a Revocable 
License Agreement for Occupancy of Right-of-Way (Fiber Optic Network) (hereinafter the 
"License Agreement"); 

B. The License Agreement allows Licensee to occupy certain City of Elko-owned 
property for the purpose of installing, operating and maintaining a fiber optic network; 

C. On the 29th of November 2017, the License Agreement was amended by the "First 
Amendment to Revocable License Agreement for Occupancy of Right-of-Way (Fiber Optic 
Network") (hereinafter the "First Amendment") to increase the linear feet of the fiber optic 
network installed underground and decrease the linear feet above ground, as shown in Exhibit A 
and Exhibit B thereto; 

C. After effective date of the First Amendment , Licensee informed the City of Elko 
that the total length of the fiber optic network would be more than what was indicated in the 
License Agreement, as amended, with the addition two new routes; and 

D. The Parties have agreed to amend the License Agreement and First Amendment to 
reflect the new length of the fiber optic network. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the rights and obligations contained herein 
and in the License Agreement, it is agreed as follows: 

1. The first recital of the License Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following recital: 

A. Licensee desires to install, operate and maintain private fiber optic wide 
area network 26,014.69 feet in length (20,370.68 feet underground and 5,644.01 
feet above ground) within certain public easements and rights-of-way located 
within the Elko City limits for the purposing of enhancing communication 
between facilities owned and/or operated by the Elko County School District 
(hereinafter the "Network"); 



2. Exhibit C and Exhibit D attached to this Second Amendment are hereby added 
and appended to the License Agreement, as amended, and shall be in addition to Exhibit A and 
Exhibit B attached to the First Amendment. 

3. Except as modified by this Second Amendment, the License Agreement and First 
Amendment shall remain in full force and effect, and the License Agreement and First 
Amendment, as modified by this Second Amendment, are hereby ratified and confirmed by the 
Parties. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Second Amendment and the terms of 
the License Agreement and/or the First Amendment, the terms of this Second Amendment shall 
control. Defined terms used in this Second Amendment which are not defined herein shall have 
the meanings set forth in the License Agreement or the First Amendment, as appropriate. This 
instrument may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but 
all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Second Amendment 
the day and year first above written. 

W ANRACK, LLC: CITY OF ELKO: 

By:--------------- By: ___________ _ 

CHRIS J. JOHNSON, Mayor 

Title: --------------
ATTEST: 

SHANELL OWEN, City Clerk 



Exhibit C 

Sheets 1- 4 of 38 Elko to Spring Creek Route 

Sheets 75 - 82 of 83 Elko Route 



g~ 
+ .. 

'i= ~ .. 
~ ! 

P(l) 

OR 

I I I I 
e Pa.E 

~ 

I i NUMBER i ~ 
H.H. f09 

71'76 I JO 

---- --- ----~- ----- ------

- - - 60' 

FRONT STREET 
- -~------~-=-----

SEE SHT. 2 OF 38 

X 

~ 
rn 

! 
0 
rn 

-· 
- - -'""Al{-

7+?6 
PWR POLE. 

6t,,72 
P\IIR POU: 

= -- -1 :~~ 
- \ - t 

BFOV(llU.25") ••. -,·~ ~ 'J BORE. l L ..... , X .. .. • 1':'. "''"T' X SORE 

X 

d ~ 
..,a.. 
•.a 

Q. 

~ri 
NO.. ..- a.. 

PED I SUB 
OR NUMBER 

POU: 
NUMBER 

I 
l<. 

' I/ 
- + -
I' I " 

Lost occe!sed: 
01L~1• 

·epored By. 

~~'(Ai~ 

WANRack 

NOTES: 

UTILITY LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. 

WANRACK 
PRIVATE FIBER NETWORKS 

ELKO 

ELKO 

Sec 

f~~~TOR RESPONSIBLE FOR EXACT L~,- 34N \ Ti.: &.,L 14 I 

., 38 

,. = 50' 

Consl Sheol: ., 



' 
~ 

co Q. 

ii 
- "-

co ,,., 
~ 

;c . l .::~,. "~ 
---X 

BORE ~ 

->--' 
-- -- ·--~1:; -- - .;-:..,..~~ .... ~ 

I 
(/1 

w 
w 
(/1 

PED 

"" POU: n 
NUMBER ~ 

~ 
17+22 .., 

' . 

J -.i.. 

PED I SIJB 
OR NUMBER 

POt.£ 
NUMBER 

x.., 
6 

oo.. 

+i 
'.2 Q. 

~I/ 
-+-
/ 1\. WANRack · 

NOTES: 

co ,,., 

>--' 
I 
(/1 

w 
w 
(/1 

WANRACK 
PRIVATE FIBER NETWORKS 

ELKO 

ELKO 

I -.. ·-·--·· I UTILITY LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. 
o,,ttor. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR EXACT ~ :l4N I SSE J 14 

JBACON LOCATION. - ·-•·· "-· • •·• ... 
Lest occ .. Hd: 

01/22/18 
Tim•: 

11 : 50 AM 
Prepared Sy. 

~~!;i..~ts 

of 38 

1· • 50' 

of 



tXl 
"> 
LL 
0 

N 

>---' 
I 
(/) 

w 
w 
(/) 

PED 
OR 

POU: 

NU1~8ER 

H.H. f01 

P.01 

P.02 

P.OJ 

K 

~ i-r 
~ 

0~ 
~N 

"'-' 
2156 2056 

82 

l - C . • 

e,-; 
U) 

~ 
0:: 

~ 
t:.l 
0 
::> 
0 

ST, •46' """"-t'""'"_ ............... _Jc,_li'---·•- , • PLACE ON 24" U$ Pfl !.8'-8" ' _, -,.- ·· 11;11.-fRI 26-4 - EXT A.RM •·. 7'-7" ~ - ~ st 

, __ _. ·- e.., • _, ~ J L=20' : 11.S. CATV 20•-2• . ll.S. CATV 1 

~ ~ ]" )( ~ BORE 170 j . 4

& 
4 J i-' 

"'i +50 IN \ P. 01 . P . 02 REQUl$T POllER COMPANY iJ5 

el" - 0 
"' J ' -~ ~ 

•J ~ ::e 
"' "' 

11111 

~ 
~ 

2056 

Ul I o."'I 

I I 
g 

ii i ~1~1~1~1t 
111 I I 

170 

146 111 

AND OUT IDI PU"8!>4 ID PH73855 - TO RAISE SECONDARY _ ~- '. ,.,/_ 1) i DRIP LOOP (25'-a") 2s·-s• ~., l • !!>tL 2e•-o· i;:: 'To 21·-o· w 
r !· j .~ A'IT • 12'-l.1" / ~ r- ffl • 23'-7" _ ti'J 

REQUIST POWER , J J .aQUl8T PO'fER COMPANY 

P8l 
OR 

POLE 

NU"48£R 

sue 
NUI.IBER 

COMPANY TO RAISE • ':'l'O IWR ST. UGHT 
DRIP LOOP TO 26'-5" !_ . ~-

1
~ TO 30' -5" 

' - ' W\11) srncrtVELY GROUND __ ,. 

~ I/ 
-+-
/ 1\. 

Filename: 
03 

Engineer: 
C. THOMSON 

7'1'81 ftllUr UGHT 

WANRack 

NOTES. 

UTILITY LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. 

WANRACK 
PRIVATE FIBER NETWORKS 

xchonge: 
ELKO 

i~v:ng Areo: 
ELKO 

ou!e: 

Drafter: 
J9ACON ~g~;~l~~TOR RESPONSIBLE FOR EXACT L.,v 34N I ~;.: n-·L 14 I 

Lost accessed: 
01/22/18 

Time: 
11:59 Al.I 

repared By. 

~?~g}lAi~tS 

38 



co 
n 
u.. 
0 

n 

>-' 
I 
(/) 

w 
w 
(/) 

r-, 11.'. [ •• • ~. ~" 
,-..-, • I· I •.t,; V~- ; . < . ,._.,-,_,,,.,.., r. 11),;·wr ,.. ... ~ 

... ~ ;..,_ ~ l~-•l.~ l~-~ ~ •·•· '" "'·•· •·•· '" ,.._,. , •·•· "" ,,._,.. •·•· ,,. .,._,. mo • ·• m ,,._,. ., ,,. . c •. ,.·,m .,.,,. .. • • - . - . ..,, ,,..,,.,.c,• , . • •. , ""' .... ,. ..,. ""' ,,._,. ..,. cm ,,._,. .:,: ""' \~c,. 0 

,.,. , x ,,.. . x ,,.. •, !'- • m · • _,._ " u,· , ,,,. 

- r •· " , . oo ,£ , o, • • "' """". ~

1

° Pt173661 .•>=, "" ~"1"'' "' "'"'~- ,;, "'"'·". , ~,. "- ,; ·•J ms " ,,., --r.·. '. ·7 ... ..:t j SL22
8
-~

1
._

0
• co. r.-: ...-..!· l SEC. DL2;~:'"J, - , NEUT DL3,2-7 _./.., ATl:823-6 " ,,'I'..., TI-i,.

24

._

0

• > ""' .. •n• . 7, .,.,..,,., •·· . 

' ··rn."' 

- ' " 7'7 } ATrACHj ON 24" :/ i . 1':V.·. ~ -;:,,

1 

_ .. EXT. ARM - . 
l!) 

P£D j °" POLE 1 
~ 
3i ., 

e-: 
fl} 

z 
:3 
~ 
~ u 

~ CV 

' ~-t-· 
I!: ~ 

Ir., 

0 · 

PED I SUB 
OR NUMBER 

Po.£ 

'\-1 / 
-+-

P. 09 • 
ID# Pl173882 
ATI fl 22'-0" >-' 

I 
(/) 

w 
w 
(/) 

WANRACK 
PRIVATE FIBER NETWORKS 

NUMBER 
8 

0 

Bi NUMBER / ,~ WANRack 
ELKO 

P.04 180 

P.05 136 

P.06 126 

P.07 11 2 

P.08 212 

P.09 114 

Filename: 
04 

Engineer. 
C. 11-IOMSON 

Drafter: 
JBACON 

Last CICCHSed: 
0IL!_~/18 

rwne· 
12:01 PM 

Prepared By; 

~3'!.A.~ 

ELKO 

NOTES: ELKO TO SPRING CREEK 
UTILITY LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. Sec: 

~~~~l~~TOR RESPONSIBLE FOR EXACT k"'" 34N J ri:~ n,.,.L.. 14 I 

of 38 

1· • 50' 

of 



n 
OJ 

L,._ 

0 

~ 
r--

,__: 
I 
(/) ' 

w 
w 
(/) 

PED 
OR 

POlE 

g 
±~ 
"''-' 

NUMBER 

H.H. 120 

M 
~ i-r-N 
0 0~ 

~ ~~ 
1:316 1216 

~ 
Q) 

~ X 

~ N ~ or ~-a~ ·" ,. 
Q) Q) 

' ' ' 

w ,. 
Q) 

12 \ 6 

-0 
0 

,5o . "' ....... 
"' ~=tj 
.,,;z: 

.., 

6 .., ~ .; 

'5u &11 
~i 

f-, I !ti 
~ , §:; 
0 }' ~ 

~ ., 
I 

I 
t 
I 

i< \ 
OU I 

SEE SHT. 76 OF 83 

I I I I I ~ ~ ~ 
20 

-·-s, -

·®@ ., _____ J 

II 
PED I sue 
OR NUMBER 

POLE 
NUMBER 

181 

·~ -;-S 

COTToNwoon DR 
ASPH. 

:{~ -

~'/ -+-
/ I~' 

WANRack 

NOTES· 

n 
OJ 

L.. 
0 

r-
r--

w 
w 
(/) 

WANRACK 
PRIVATE FIBER NETWORKS 

achonqe: 
ELKO 

i$eiwi(} Areo: 
ELKO 

[Roufe: 

UTILITY LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. ~ wp: I I 
CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR EXACT _ 34N •• c 

LOCATION . oun ty If,. .. Qi.hl.-+• 

:ng: 

ELKO 
ro)'ct: 

'repored -By. 

~_!S~}i\M~ 

Sheet: 
75 of 83 

1· = 50' 
eet: 

of 



"' (X) 

"-
0 

.,., 
" 
,...: 
I 
en 
w 
w en 

PEO 
OR 

POlE 
NUMBER 

H.H. #22 

" 8 ~ o" :;; ~ N 

"-' 
1340 12 -40 

·>< 
' ii: 

81 
:; a. 

I 
ii 

1 

.,. 
X 

~ 
~ ,.. 

~ " ., ., 
I 2 

"' .\:/ 
0 

"' .. 
" --' +< 
<0:0 

~ 

I I i I 
1 I 12• 0 

r .... 

lS 
lo 
X 

~~+~to -•1=•1::r:i~-+.-'t-
i rl_· Jo:)_-:.· ~I ~ - .~J_.l ,,._,_!_ ~ r 
I ' • ; I I l'""" ,.. """ ~. !---·'t' 

L 

1. "' 
• l 

-1 dJ 
1 

·--· ' -· ~i-·~· i 
c.-...;...-- i <Cll 

BF0241 
BFOV{ lX1 .2S•) 

1~< 
I 

i 
i 
I 

,~ ~ 
• ,. 

t 
T - <!, - -~~ -- .. 

~-~-I r'~T3 - 1 

1!!!18181 

PED I sue 
OR NUMBER 

POU: 
NUMBER 

'- ' / - + -
/ V'-

w Rack 

En9,neer: NOTES· 

... 
~ ex, > 

0 

~! 

"' (X) ... 
0 

(X) 

" 
....: 
I 
en 
w 
w 
en 

WANRACK 
PRIVATE FIBER NETWORKS 

xchonge: 
ELKO 

[Serving Area: 
ELKO 

oute: 

C. TI-iOMSON 
Orofltr: 

HGREENHALCH 
Lost accessed: 

08/03/17 

CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR EXACT 34N oo~ ~ 
UTILITY LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. r.. 

1 1 
1 LOCATION. County. If"" b:. i.:~i. 

Tlm• : 
'reject: 

12: 58 PM 
Pr~po(ad By. !Job Order. 

~~~gu~Jil\1S [A,Buit 

"Sheet: 
77 of 83 

1" • 50' 
,eet: 

<>.f 



n co 
LL 
0 

r--- ' 
r--- J \(C'." " ,-: r -~ -S··Ts-I ·· I \ 
(11 J_ ~ ··.• 
~ 1 ---rw_· -1-lw ·-r-_~-14~ 

PED 

°" POLE 
NUMBER 

~....---..1., ..-----'--

-P--P:.,.___p--P--

.BF02'1 
F0V(!Xl.25" 

I ')•-l-,- "-1:otr¾.woo~- l-s-
1 ® - I 

11-r-·11-__. -· __ .. __J . ASPH. t 1- - , .. , _,._ 

~ 

,, 
' 

--TV--IV lt:l _ TV- i!!lffl 

,1-b\ 

® 1 M l 
Z\ 

I ~ "". 

~• ~1 
I CJ'.l t:::l 

~> -'" · ~1 I . 

~r .., ' 
;j;,< 
/ CJ 

PED 
OR 

POLE 
NUMBER 

SUB 
NUMBER "it 

- +-

/fl " 
f ilenam e: ,. 
Engineer. 

C. THOMSON 

Oro~ 
HGREENHALGH 

lost OCCHHd: 
De / 0J/ 17 

Ti,r,e: -
12:59 PM 

Prepared Sy 

EBcMgucrA.Vrs _,.,.--••oo: 

~ 
olll 
N 

+"' "'"' -Cl. 

~ 
Cl. 

~~ 
t~ 
N:::J 

-<>@ 

n 
co 
LL 
0 

(j) 

r---

-s- _.,_. - ~ 
s- _...;.~ ~ . I 

(/1 

:\; 
--·,\\ 

~ 

WAMRack 

NOTES 

®" @j -

1 

1" 
I 
I 

T ® 
' I 
I 

i 
I .. 
I 

I 
' \g 
'" 0 .,_ l o w : :;.;: 

"U I t,:) 
I ;:r, 'f t:::l _. . I 
I - t:::l 

_-f 4~ 
T N 

"' 
~~ 

.,_J tj 
(/1 

WANRACK 
PRIVATE FIBER NETWORKS 

change: 
ELKO 

:erving Areo: 
ELKO 

ou te: 

• i ' UTILITY LOCATIONS ARE APPRDXIMA TE. Twp, •• = CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR EXACT 34N 55E 9 
LOCA TlON . oonty. at islrit+ 

t::LKO 
roJeci: 

of B3 
"'60.der 

IAs&it 
of 



I") 
CX) 

L,.. 
0 

CX) 
r---
,-.: !f.~\ -./ ,, 
I - ti'/ 
Cf) ~ 
w / \ \ 
~ / \ 1,'\ 

~ \ 

PED 

t OR 
X 

POLE ~ ~r 
NUMBER ~ 

0~ 
~N 

"''"' a)N 

H.H. _f23 1.l64 1264 ' 

X 
0 

IO a, 

~ ~ 
NO.. 

~ 

~ ~ 
" ~ "' 
' 2 

OT:;J"- ~~ •-!'-----.:.¾j -~ ' ~ ., 
"' = ~ ~ -

N£D L . ' r-- ,-:-\ . .: • t . ~~ 
NO.. 

1,d 
1° 1 . "' I :i:: l~t a.. 

w - , r--C. c_ "_\.,...~ - - I z I Cl) 

~ t '~ -=B"'j >,. < 
"' • ·~-s $-

11 ~C- 8 ·l ~ M "' ~ --

i ~ ...... ~r l I 
!·•1 ' f - ~ ,. ' q; 

• ~!!] , ~L , s-_ - -

4 ' I ':.:. J:T . :.: ~t + \--- " • 1 
' . ~ 

~ ; " "' " ~ ii: "' 
1264 20 

e 
~ 

' 

PED 
OR 

POLE 
NUMBER 

SUB 
NUMBER 

SEE SHT. 80 OF 83 

.....l. 

"' / -+-
/ V" 

F~enome· 
79 

En9ineer: 
C. THOMSON 

Drafter: 
HCREENHALGH 

Los-t occe• , ed: 
08/ 0JL.17 

nme: 
1: 00 PM 

'repored 8~ 

' ~ -:-,--·• r 
~~ t· 1 ·~ 
r :;· 

WANRack 

NOTES: 

UTIUTY LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. 

·- / j "' 
I \'.?,. / .Jf 

li:11> 

WANRACK 
PRIVATE FIBER NETWORKS 

xchange; 
ELKO 

ving Area: 
ELKO 

CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR EXACT 9/8 
LOCATION . 

ELKO 
oject: Sheet: 

79 of 83 
[Job 0-dec Scoie: 

i!BCMSuL'rA.~ [As Bult: 
1· = so· 

Const. Sheet: --- ~· 

I 



SEE SH 79 OF 83 

--s-· -~ ,s: 

w--w--· w--,.._.. r .i : ! t 

PED 
OR 

POI.£ 
NUMBER 

J2+94 

25+04 
R.R. f23 

~ 
~ 

I , 

X -~ 

LU -. ~ = - l l ,,,., - . ~I!]~ / ! I ' I .. , ,--... --'· r I ~ - I r ' I -~ --- I ' 

PED I sue 
OR NUMBER 

POl£ '- ' / - + -
NUMBER / V '-

reporedBy. 

~li~LAi~tS 

• • • X 
0 

vm 

ii 
"'a. 

WANRack 

NOTES: 

UTIUTY LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. 

~ ... _ ... 
+I 
N <.> 
"J ::J 

·~ 

t') 

<XJ 

u.. 
0 

00 
,-: 
I 
V) 

w 
w 
V) 

WANRACK 
PRIVATE FIBER NETWORKS 

1 ... xchcnge: 
ELKO 

Sef'inq Area: 
ELKO 

!Roule: 

fg~~~l~~TOO RESPONSIBLE FOR EXACT "'- ·••- - · i,:: x,.,.L,. I 

83 



~ en 
0 w 

• 0.N~ 
-cr--1- n~ 

! ~ -- -,,, .. '-~ ... ~-- ,. 
l 
J; 

,. 
I "' .,., 

CI) 

LL 
0 

0 
CI) • - ' • I 

- s - -l-s- .... y· • ~ -P P--P- ~ 
TEL--··· "' f--' 

I 
l/l 

w 
w 
l/l 

PED 
OR 

PO<£ 
NUMBER 

H~4 

J9-t95 

>< 

" ~r 
~ o"' ~: 

1420 1J20 

~ 
., 

~ X 

~ N ~ ~ r. ~ ~ ~ 
~N ~ , , , , 

- • ..,.,. l&I~ -TV J"!--TV-
- - I l\ l ' vi -~- .4 •s-=-s 

38+24 
H.B. f24 

" 

-

' 

~ I I I I II 
PEO I SUB 
OR NUMBER 

e PO<£ 
~ NULtBER iii 'l' 

1320 20 

BM75=:20' " I . 

·-1 ! ,. ~ I 
I~ . '" 

{/J ::i:: I ,. c., 0.. 

I ~~ "'I ,. z 

ll ~0j 
~~ i 
I 1' 

39+96 
END OF S/W 

SEE SHT. 82 OF 83 

"' / -+ -
/ f ' 

F'lename: 
81 

Engineer. 
C. 'fl.iOMSON 

Oton.-: 
HCRECNHALCH 

LOil OCCHHd: 
OB{OJ/17 

flme: 
1: 02 PM 

'r• pored 6 y. 

~~J&T.ANts 

WANRack 

NOTES· 

UTILITY LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. 

WANRACK 
PRIVATE FIBER NETWORKS 

~g~:_i;l~~TOR RESPONSIBLE FOR EXACT !;, __ ," - ·· · 11_ ,_,.:., . I 

63 

,. = 50' 



l 

SEE SHT. 8.3 OF 8.3 

+50 {N 
AND OUT 

/ 
'It· 

«+76 
R.H. #26 I ,. 

n 
<Xl 

_ _,_ -~ --r-• ~ -· -~ L_ . • 

•. JENNINGS WAY ~ . ... .• 
-s-'+-s .•- -s-· --s-<- -~. -~- --s --s--s-_ --s-s--s:£ts--s-, 

~ "' ASPH. "' 

--s-,--"-.,-sB--s--s---s--s---s4rs-ts--s--s--s-
BM6! =60 · - .. 

~ -M--i--M--M--M--1'--M·--M--M--M--M--M--M--M+-M--.~ 
<Xl 

;-M--,1.. -M.--M---M--M--M--M--M--NL,._LH--w--w--

,-.: 
I 
(/) 

w 
w 
(/) 

PED 
OR 

POl.E 
NUMBER 

H.H. #25 

• 
~ 

7~ 

§ ~ 
X 

X ~ ~r f-. 0~ 
.,,. 

~~ ~ <ON 

••• , , 
I ~ ~ 
~ j ii; ~ 

" " % , , 240 

BF024I 
BFOV{ lX l.26" 

181-<r ~ 

~ 
..,."..,,.. 
;ti] .. ::; 

PED I SUB 
CA NUMBER 

POLE 
NUMBER 

~ 

"' CX) . 

!~ !~ 
.-(I) ...-a. 

,I/ -+-/ 1' 
nename: 

02 
En9lner. 

C. THOMSON 
Drott.-: 

HOREENHALGH 
Lost OCCHHd: 

08/03{17 
rm« 

1:02 PM 
·Preporitd 8:,: 

!<i~~ 

WANRack 

NOTES: 

UTILITY LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. 

WANRACK 
PRIVATE FIBER NETWORKS 

ELKO 

ELKO 

lln1' Sic: 

f~J.'ir~TOR RESPONSIBLE FOR EXACT lrRm,, I --~---· "'"' I SSE 
Tow District; 

ELKO 

IJci>-Onl.-: 

IAs~t 

Sheet: 
82 of 83 

Sccie: 
1· = so· 

c.onst. Sheet: 
of 



Route A (Spring Creek): 

Exhibit D 

Legal· Description 

A legal description for the location of underground communications network operated by WANrack 

Private Fiber Networks within easements and rights-of-ways described herein: 

Commencing at the Southwest Corner of Section 14 In Township 34 North, Range 55 East, Mount Dlablo 

Meridian; Thence North 90°0' East a distance of 2,660.00 to the West Quarter Section Corner; Thence 

South 61°0' East for a distance of 864.95 feet to a point being the True Point of Beginning, shown on 

Sheet 1 of 38 of Exhibit C as EX. H.H. #09; 

Thence southeast underground in the southwest right-of-way of South 9th Street for a distance of 28 

feet more or less to a point of turning as shown on sheets 1 of 38 of Exhibit C; 

Thence southwest underground in the northwest right-of-way of Front Street a distance of 621.25 feet 

to a point of turning, shown on sheet 1 of 38 of Exhibit C; 

Thence southeast underground in the northeast right-of-way of South 7th Street for a distance of 866.69 

feet more or less to a point of turning as shown on sheet 2 of 38 of Exhibit C; 

Thence northeast underground in the northwest right-of-way of Lincoln Avenue for a distance of 242.82 

feet more or less to a point of turning as shown on sheets 2 and 3 of 38 of Exhibit C; 

Thence southeast uriderground in the southwest right-of-way of South 8th Street for a distance of 

377.36 feet more or less to a point shown on sheets 3 of 38 of Exhibit C as H.H.#01; 

Thence continuing aerial on an existing pole line as shown on sheets 3 and 4 of 38 of Exhibit C and 

described as follows: 

Thence South 52°30'East a distance of 170 feet; 

Thence South 55°0' East a distance of 146 feet; 

Thence South 53°0' East a distance of 436.14 feet; 

Thence South 55°0' East a distance of 115.87 feet more or less, to a Point of Termination where it enters 

private property. 

Route B (Adobe School): 

Commencing at the southwest corner of Section 9 in Township 34 North, Range 55 East Mount Diablo 

Meridian; Thence North 62°30' East a distance of 2,328.75 feet to a point being the True Point of 

Beginning, shown on sheet 75 of 83 of Exhibit C as H.H.#20; 



Thence west underground in the south right-of-way of Cottonwood Drive for a distance of 2,382.93 feet 

more or less as shown on sheets 75 and 77-79 of 83 of Exhibit C; 

Thence North 18°0' West a distance of 56.31 feet to a point, shown on sheet 79 of 83 of Exhibit C as 

H.H. #23; 

Thence north underground in the east right-of-way of La Nae Drive for a distance of 105.14 feet more or 

less to a point of turning as shown on sheet 80 of 83 of Exhibit C; 

Thence North 79°0' West a distance of 76.02 feet to a point in the south right-of-way of Cortney Drive, 

shown on sheet 80 of 83 of Exhibit C; 

Thence west underground in the south right-of-way of Cortney Drive for a distance of 1,112.89 feet 

more or less to a point shown as H.H.#24 on sheet 81 of 83 of Exhibit C; 

Thence North 17°30' West a distance of 72.88 feet to a point in the east right-of-way of Jennings Way, 

shown on sheet 81 of 83 of Exhibit C; 

Thence north underground in the east right-of-way of Jennings Way for a distance of 512.58 feet more 

or less to a point of turning as shown on sheet 82 of 83 of Exhibit C; 

Thence North 90°0' West a distance of 65.06 feet more or less to a point of termination, in the west 

right-of-way of Jennings Way, shown on sheet 82 of 83 of Exhibit C as H.H.#25; 

Description prepared by ~ ~ 
Hadley Christensen, 

, Right-of-Way Agent 

Mid-State Consultants 



Agenda Item IV.B. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

I. Title: Review, consideration, and possible issuance of final acceptance for the 
Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada, LLC Water and Sewer Line Installation, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 3 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The project has been completed in accordance with the 
plans and specifications. Staff recommends Council approve the issuance of final 
acceptance. RL 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: $186,000.00 (Reimbursement) 
Budget amount available: $190,000.00 
Fund name: Water 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Waterline Agreement with GGP 

9. Recommended Motion: Move to issue final acceptance 

10. Prepared By: Ryan Limberg, Utilities Director 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 04/30/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF ELKO 
Office of the City Clerk 

RECEIVED 

FEB O 2 2018 

~~~MP~~~~~J~~lmN 
Email: cityclerk@ci.elko.nv.us 

1751 College Avenue · Elko, Nevada 89801 • (775) 777-7126 · Fax (775) 777-7129 

Frank Lepori Construction, Inc. 
Frank Lepori 
1580 Hymer A venue, Suite 100 
Sparks, NV 89431 

January 30, 2018 

SUBJECT: WATER LINE SPECIAL REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

Dear Mr. Lepori, 

Enclosed please find two original agreements. Please have Mr. Dennis O'Keefe sign both 
originals. He may keep the one marked for his records. Please return the other original to my attention. 

Thank you for your assistance in this matter. If you have any questions, please contact me at 
(775) 777-7126. 

Encl. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Shanell Owen, MMC 
City Clerk/f reasurer 



December 15, 2017 

Mr. Dennis O'Keefe, Managing Member 
Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada, LLC 
16S80 Wedge Parkway #300 
Reno, NV 89511 

City of Elko Utilities Department 
1755 College A venue 

Elko, NV 89801 
PHONE: (775) 777-7212 

FAX: (775) 777-7219 
EMAIL: rlimber . lkoci nv. ov 

RE: Water Line Special Reimbunement Agreement 

Dear Mr. O'Keefe: 

The purpose of this coJTespondence is to clarify terms and conditions of the above mentioned 
reimbursement agreement, per your request. 

For clarification purposes, the City of Elko will reimburse Golden Gate Petroleum of Nevada, 
LLC, for construction of the portion of water line across 1-80 right of way in the amount agreed 
to by the Elko City Council on November 28, 2017. Additionally, the City of Elko will reimburse 
for oversizing of this line from 10" to J 2". These reimbursements will be payable upon 
completion of construction and final acceptance by the City of Elko in the amounts approved by 
City Council. 

Thereafter, water extension COMection fees will be reimbursable per the tenns of the agreement, 
as development occurs to generate these fees, and will be limited in time to 7 years duration from 
date of the agreement. 

Please contact me if You have further concerns or questions. 

Sincerely, 

r~ 
Utilities Director 
CityofElko 
City Authorized Representative 

Pagel of I 



Shanell Owen 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Hello all, 

Frank lepori <frank@leporiconstruction.com> 
Wednesday, November 29, 201712:56 PM 
Thomas C Ballew; Ryan Limberg 
Shanell Owen; Norma Kilbourn 
RE: Elko Waterline 

Ryan and Shanell, whatever is easier for you, I will be having lunch with Dennis tomorrow if you would like to send me 
the doc or if you would like to send the doc to Dennis's office please send the Norma email above. 

Thank you and have a nice day, 

Frank M. Lepori 
1580 Hymer Avenue, Suite I 00 
Sparks, NV 89431 
775-337-2063 
775-337-2066 Fax 
fraok@l~icoastturnon mm 
W)tJW leporiconsrrucaoo com 

f,oJ., 

CONSTRUCTION INC. 
Cor,flffntlollty Notl,e: This communication and any attachments it contains are for the use of the intended recipient(s) only and may contain confldentlal, 
praprletary and privileged information that may be e,cempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended reclpient(s) and have received this In 
error, you are hereby advised that any review, retention, copying, disclosure, or distribution of this communication or c1ny portion thereof Is strictly 
prohibited, Please notify the sender by replying to this message and delete this message and any attachments from your computer. Ail efforts have been made to 
verify this email and any attachments are virus free, however, we cannot accept any liability, 

From: Thomas C Ballew [mailto:tcballew@frontiernet.net] 
Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 201712:52 PM 
To: 'Ryan Limberg' <rlimberg@elkoc:itynv.gov> 
Cc: 'Shanell Owen' <sowen@elkocitynv.gov>; Frank Lepori <frank@leporiconstruction.com> 
Subject: Elko Waterline 

Ryan and Shanell, 

I think the best thing to do would be to send it to Frank Lepori. His info below: 

Leporl, Frank 
Frank leporl Construdlon, Inc. 

17751 337-2063 X103 Work 
177Sj iiL-0171Mob1le 
frank;:Jl!poriconstruct1on com 

1580 Hymer Avenue, SUlte 100 
Sparks, NV 119431 

1 



WATER LINE SPECIAL REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS WATER LINE SPECIAL REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
(hereinafter the "Agreement"), made and entered into this 3oi:h day of 
~ca.bvca.t:y . , 20 l_i_ by and between the CITY OF ELKO, a municipal 

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Nevada, hereinafter referred to as the 
"City," and GOLDEN GATE PETROLEUM OF NEVADA, LLCt a Nevada Limited 
Liability Company, hereinafter referred to as the "Owner." 

1. The City is a governmental entity to which is delegated the responsibility 
of providing water service to persons who reside within its corporate boundaries; 

2. The Owner is engaged in the development of a business in the vicinity of 
Exit 298 known as the '"Golden Gate Truck Center" located on the parcel bearing 
Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 001-679-003 and identified as "Golden Gate 
Petroleum" on the map attached hereto as Exhibit A; 

3. A 12-inch water line must be extended a distance in excess of 100 feet from 
an existing water main on Cattle Drive and across the Interstate 80 right-of-way in an 
area known as ''Sheep Creek Trail," as shown on the maps attached hereto at Exhibit B 
(hereinafter the "Project"); 

4. The 12-inch water line is considered an "oversize" line, since only a 10-
inch line is ordinarily required pursuant to Elko City Code Section (ECC) 9-1-35(A); 

5. The area through which the water line will be extended is well suited for 
growth; 

6. The City has agreed to reimburse Owner for the total cost of the 
construction of the water line across the Interstate 80 right-of-way and for the 
incremental cost difference of constructing a 12-inch water line less the cost of 
constructing a 10-inch water line for the balance of the water line; provided, the 
reimbursement for the oversize water line is a materials-only cost reimbursement without 
any reimbursement for labor; and 

7. The City will reimburse Owner for the costs identified in recital 6 above 
upon completion of the Project as set forth herein. Subsequently, after completion of the 
Project and the foregoing reimbursement by the City, as the two (2) parcels identified as 
APN 001-679-003 and APN 006-090-037 on the map at Exhibit A are developed, the 
developers will pay water extension connection fees to the City. As those connection 
fees are collected. the City will pay the Owner for water line a..~sociated costs all as 
further set forth herein. 



NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Owner agree as follows: 

1. The parties agree that the City will reimburse the Owner for a portion of 
the cost of the water line construction and oversizing in accordance with ECC 9-1-35. as 
follows: 

a. The actual cost of constructing the water line at the locations shown 
on the map at Exhibit B shall be paid by the Owner, subject to the reimbursement 
provisions contained in this Section 1. 

b. The City shall reimburse the Owner the actual cost of materials and 
labor for the construction of the water line across the Interstate 80 right-of-way in 
accordance with Subsection l(d). below. 

c. The City shall reimburse the Owner the actual cost of materials for 
the incremental cost difference of constructing a 12-inch water line less the cost of 
constructing a 10-inch water line for the length of the water line, less the 1-80 section of 
line the City is paying for. in accordance with Subsection l(d), below. 

d. The reimbursement from the City to the Owner for the items 
identified for reimbursement pursuant to Sections l(b) and l(c) above shall be paid to the 
Owner within thirty (30) days of the date on which the City conducts a final inspection 
of the completed water line and authorizes the water line for operation. The City shall 
not unreasonably withhold, condition or delay the foregoing acceptance and 
authorization. The reimbursement to be paid by the City pursuant to this Section l(d) 
shall be the actual cost to Owner of the items set forth in Sections 1 (b) and 1 ( c) or One 
Hundred Eighty-Six Thousand Dollars ($186,000.00), whichever is less. 

2. In addition, the City shall collect water extension connection fees from any 
person that develops either or both of the two (2) parcels identified as APN 001-679-003 
and APN 006-09G-037, as shown on the map at Exhibit A. 

3. In addition to the amount set forth in Section l(d), as the foregoing water 
extension connection fees are collected, the City shall pay to the Owner an amount equal 
to the fraction of the full frontage of the parcel served by such connection bears to the 
total length of the water line extension for the Project, multiplied by the actual cost 
(before taking into account the reimbursement provided in Section l(d) above) to Owner 
of the water line oversize or extension as approved by the City. up to a maximum amount 
of Fifty-Two and 32/1 00ths Dollars per linear foot ($52.32/foot)~ provided, in no event 
shall this Section 3 be construed so as to require the City to reimburse the Owner an 
amount in excess of the water extension connection fees which are eventually collected 
from the two (2) parcels identified in Section 2. above. 

4. Reimbursable costs pursuant to this Agreement are limited to materials and 
labor for the construction of the water Jine extension in the Interstate 80 right-of-way, and 

2 



materials for the cost of oversizing the water line from IO-inches to 12-inches. The City 
shall not be responsible for any other costs associated with the Project, such as the cost 
of constructing the water line to the minimum 10-inch diameter or traffic control. 

5. The parties agree that the Project will be installed by the Owner in a 
diligent and workmanlike manner, according to the approved plans and specifications, 
and in accordance with all applicable provisions contained in the Elko City Code. and 
that the foregoing are conditions precedent to the Owner's right to reimbursement 
hereunder. Where applicable, the Owner shall dedicate all water mains to the City in 
accordance with ECC 9-l-35(8). 

6. Each party shall protect, indemnify and hold harmless the other party and 
the other party's officers and employees from any and all claims, damages, losses, 
expenses, suits, actions, decrees, judgments, attorney fees and court costs which the other 
party, its officers or employees may suffer as a result of, by reason of, or arising out of its 
negligent acts or omissions, or the negligent acts or omissions of its subcontractors or 
agents, to the extent such acts or omissions take place in relation to the fulfillment or 
performance of the terms, conditions or covenants of this Agreement. 

7. Any disputes arising hereunder shall be resolved in the Fourth Judicial 
District Court, in and for the County of Elko, State of Nevada. In the event of a dispute, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney fees and costs. 
This Agreement replaces all prior agreements pertaining to the subject matter hereof and 
any further modifications or amendments must be in writing. 

8. The City has determined that special conditions exist which justify 
reimbursement to the Owner on the foregoing basis upon completion of the Project, since 
there are presently no projected new water users above the water line extension and, thus, 
no ready mechanism for reimbursement through new connection fees. These conditions 
render portions of the reimbursement mechanism set forth in ECC 9-5-33(0) impractical. 

9. This Agreement shall become effective upon the execution hereof by the 
City. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their duly authorized representatives the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF ELKO, 
a municipal corporation and 
politic..._ ..... .._1vision of the St e of Nevada 

3 



ATTEST: 

.. 
SHANELL OWEN, City Clerk 

GOLDEN GATE PETROLEUM 
OF NEVADA, LLC 

).. A~.d 
By: i;~ -·-· .. (':/ ~ 
DENNIS O'KEEFE 
Managing Member 

4 



EXHIBIT A 



• • 



EXRIBITB 



1 

I I I I I I 

I 
I 

.....,_-'--_,___.____.____, I 
J 

; - .. ---- ·-·- -:x:;\::a --:-i..:-~--,;- l 
"'~e=-'1 ' i7_ .. 

I ~ :1 
J.a-4--.-.;·IJlr!r--" .r, I \ ii -.1_..:-- \ I I' 

I I I • 
\ l I 

i--..-1-----r---, l I ' 

\\ \ I i 
II \ 
11 
I \ 
\ I 
\ I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
11 
I I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

' I 
~ 

-- '-. .:.:::- p- \ \ 
I 
I 
I 

..-i\'~'0=,::. _j l l 

IJ:IIL...I-:_._ !l~ \ \ 
";:;:: I I 

-· 

..- I I 
I I 
I I I 

\! l I 

1\1 l \ 

qt t \~ \ I l 
\ 1 
11 
11 

..,.-...._-------...., I l 
I I 
11 
11 1 
11 I 
11 I 

! - l I I u I 
~-t\"-,...,_,i-, 18=)' 

~ 1 \ I 
Ill II I 

1 \ ~ \ 
I 1· I 
11 I 
11 I 
I I I 

I I ----

1 -· 
r 

I I 

- I 

-1 

I -· 
i 11 I 

r--1l' 
l ' 

l A \~,\. 
~'J--1--+-1--+-1--+---+-1~'--~ .+-, --1 ' I 

I l'M' • !IH1%1I l'lU& • ,U.00 7IJ JO• DO .... -
---.... - I _., -A.-;... ---#IC --



I 
I 
I 

' I I 
I 
I 
1 
I 

' I I 11 \ 11 \ 11 I \ I I I I \ 11 
11 
11 
11 
I I 
I I 

I . 
I 
I 
I 
C . 
I 
I 

~~ JI 

-·-· 

tll 
!If -...... - , . ·-· 

- .. _., 
NP • lfHED' 71Wl. • ltl+IHI n, ~00 -------.... , ... , - -- -

i ·~ • 



.. --

I • 1 
I 
I 
! 
I 
I 

-

§ 
•l · .. ~,, 

...... ,--

-•----

,I! ,:1 ·~ 



-

E • 

' ' 

... 

··-- _.,.. ______ +•-----.... --·---•••-.,----•---•••,..w 

-
_ .. ..... ~ 
-,r...a-------

... ,. ..... ~ -. 



ITEM Dl:.SCRIPrtON 

t\lohilization 

I Mob,hzation 

2 Frn,ion Control 

3 ·1 rafl ,c Comrol 

En rtlmorl.. 

4 Clcanng & Gn,hb,ng 

5 Unclnssi liL-<l E.,ca vauon 

6 Uncb,,ilicd Embanl..m~nt 

7 Tyre I Ditch 

8 Roadway Ditch 

9 Cut-off Ditch 

Water (!:,hccp Trail) 

10 20" Standard Weight Stcd Cas,ng 

11 12" l'rc,surc Cla:,, 235 PVC Water 

12 8" Pressure Class 235 PVC Water 

13 18"x 12" l"arpmg Sleeve (Fig) 

14 12" larpmg Valve Flgl 

15 12"~8" rec (Fig) 

16 12" Gate Valve (FlgxMJl 

17 12" (iate Valve (M.I) 

18 12" FlgxMJ Adapter 

19 12" ll-1 '4°Bcnd (MJ) 

20 12" End l'lu,:!iMJ ) 

21 8" Gate Valve (FlgxMJ l 

:!2 8" End Plug (MJ) 

23 12" Spcci:il C\mstrnct,on Rc~traincd Joints 

47 6" Pressure Class 235 PVC Water 

48 12"x8" Tee (MJxFlg) 

49 12"x6" Tee (MJxFlg) 

50 8" Gate Valve (Fig) 

51 8" L.1ternl Fittings 

52 6" Gate Valve (FlgxM J ) 

53 Fire I lydranl 

Water (Wc,t Idaho Street) 

GOLDEN GATE PETROLEUM 

SHEEP TRAfL & WEST IDAHO STREET WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS 

PRORATIO:'i OF COSTS BASED O:'\ BID RESULTS- OCTOBER 6, 2017 

Ruby Dome GOLDEN GATE SWIRE 

Inc. PETROLEUM COCA-COLA 

UNIT QTY PRICE EXTENSlO1' QTY EXTENSION QTY EXTENS ION 

L.S. I 30.000.00 30,000.00 0.5492 16.475.92 0.2845 8.536.02 

L.S. I 58.000.00 58.000 00 0.4 132 23.%4.50 0.3483 20.202.41 

L.S. I 6.900.00 6,900.00 0.6587 4,545 .18 0.3413 2.354.82 

/\e re 3.50 2.000.00 7,000.00 1.43 2.850.00 1.43 2.850.00 

C.Y. 6.5 17 2.20 14.337.40 2.653.00 5,836.60 2,653 .00 5,836.60 

CY. 5.963 3. 15 18,783.45 2.427.50 7,646.63 2.427.50 7,646.63 

L.F. 467 12.50 5.837.50 233 .50 2.9 1875 233.50 2.918.75 

L.F. 3,820 12.00 45,840.00 1,840.00 22.080.00 1.840.00 22.0X0.00 

L.F. 945 3.00 2.835.00 472.50 1.417 .50 472.50 1,417.50 

L.f. 467 133.00 t,2,111.00 . . . . 

L.F. 3.481 52.00 181.012.00 1.498.00 77,896.00 1.498.00 77.8%.00 

L.F. 20 55.00 1,100.00 10.00 550.00 10.00 550.00 

l:ach I 3.500.00 3.500.00 0.50 1,750.00 0.50 1.750.00 

Each I 3.000.00 3.000.00 0.50 1.500.00 0.50 1.500.00 

Each I 2.200.00 2.200.00 0 50 1.IU0.00 0.50 1.100.00 

Each I 2.900.00 2.900.00 0.50 1.450.00 0.50 1.450.00 

Each 4 3.200 00 12,800.00 1.00 3,200.00 1.00 3,200.00 

Each I 750.00 750.00 0.50 375.00 0.50 375.00 

Each 2 850.00 1,700.00 1.00 850.00 1.00 850.00 

Each 0 . . . . . . 

Fach 0 2.000.00 . . . . . 

l:ach 2 500.00 1,000.00 1.00 500.00 1.00 500.00 

Each 16 750.00 12,000.00 7.00 5,250.00 7.00 5.250 ()() 

L.F. 6 '55.\ ( ·no.11t 3.00 165.00 3.00 165.00 

Each I ~.000.\l(I ~.0lll.:lO 0.50 1.000.00 0.50 1,000.00 

Each I i .5(J(,_(ll l.51)1: .lll 0.50 750.0U 0.50 750.00 

Each 2 1.700.0(, 3.400.UO 1.00 1.700.00 1.00 1.700.00 

Each 2 2,000.00 4.000.00 1.00 2.000.00 1.00 2,000.00 

Each I 1.000.00 1.000.U0 0.50 500.00 0.50 500.00 

Each I 3.500.0(1 '.500.00 0.50 1,750.00 0.50 1,750 .00 

Pagel of3 

CJTYOF 

ELKO 

QTY EXTENSION 

0.1663 4,988.07 

0.2385 13.833.09 
. . 

0.65 I .300.00 

1,211.00 2,664.20 

1, 108.00 3.490.20 

- . 

140.00 1,680.00 

. -

467.00 62.1 11.00 

485 .00 25.220.00 
. 
. . 

. 

. . 

. 

2.flO 6.400.00 
. 

. . 

. . 

. -
-

2.00 1.500.00 
. 
. . 

. . 

- . 
. . 

. . 

. -



ITEM DESCRIPTION 

24 Remove 12" Fnd Plug 

25 12" l'rc,,surcC'las, 235 PVC' Water 

26 8" Prc.ssurc Cb,, 235 PVC Water 

27 12" ·1 C<' (l·lg) 

2X 12",S" Tee (Fig) 

21J 12" Gate Valve (FlgxMJ) 

30 12" FlgxMJ Adapter 

31 12•·,o" R<'duccr (Fig) 

·~ .,_ 12" End Plug (MJl 

]) X" Tc..: (Fig) 

3-1 8" (iatc Valve (FlgxMJ) 

35 8" FlgxMJ Adapter 

3b 8" l'nd Plug (MJ) 

37 Air Rclcaa,e Valve A,,cmhl) 

3~ lloiiarti, 

54 <," l'rL-,.surc Clas, 235 l'VC Water 

55 I 2"x8" rec ( MhFl[! l 

56 I 2"x6" Tee (MJxFlg) 

57 12".\(1" ·1 cc (Fig) 

58 8"x6" Tee (Fig) 

59 6" (id LC Valve ( FlgxM .1 ) 

(,(] I-ire 11 yd rant 

61 \V~1tcr Service 

~anilary ::.c\\ cr (\ Vc , 1 Idaho S1rcc1) 

3') l ypc I Sanitar~ Sc" er :\lJnholc 

-10 ·1 ypc 2 San1tl11y Sewer Manhole 

41 24" SDR-35 PVC Sewer 

-12 21" SDR-35 PVC Sewer 

-13 12" SDR-35 PVC Sewer 

-14 6" SDR-35 PVC S.:wcr 

Storm Drain 

45 18" ADS "N-1 2" Sto1m Drain 

46 18" ADS End SL-ction 

GOLDEN GATE PETROLEUM 
SHEEP TRAIL & WEST IDAHO STREET WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS 

PRO fl<\ TION OF COST S BASE D ON BID RES UL TS - OCTOBER 6. 201 7 

Ruby Dome GOLDEN GATE SWIRE 

Inc. PETROLEUM COCA-COLA 

U1'!1T QTY PRICE EXTENSIO:-.: QTY EXTENS ION QTY EXTENS!Ol'-

l.:ach 0 - - - - -
L.F. 1,669 57.00 95.133.00 1.269.00 72,333 .00 400 .00 22.800.00 

l..F. 660 -13.30 28.578.00 6-14.00 17.885.20 16.00 692.80 

b1ch I 1.800.00 I.S00.LI0 1.00 1.800.00 - -
Fach I 1,600.00 1.600.00 1.00 1.600 .00 - -
l::nch 5 2.900.00 1-1 .500.00 4.00 11.600 .00 1.00 2.900 00 

Fach 2 600.00 1.200.00 1.00 600 .00 1.00 600.00 

Each I 600.00 600.00 1.00 600.00 -

l:ach I 600.00 600.00 - 1.00 600.00 

l:.ad, I 800.00 800.00 1.00 800.00 - -
h1ch 5 1.400 .00 7.000.00 4.00 5.600.00 1.00 1.-100.00 

l:ach I 300.00 300.00 1.00 300.00 -
l:.ad1 3 225 .00 6 75.00 2.00 450.00 1.00 225.00 

L.S. 0 2.600.00 - - -
[ ~h.:h -I 3uu.uu l.2Ull.lHI -l .uu I .2Ull.UIJ - -
L.F. -12 .;.;; ~ 

' _ _. 26.00 1.430.00 16.00 880.00 

l::ach I :::.rn,f 2,0(11 - 1.00 2.000.00 

Each I .SP( 1.51 1.00 1.500.00 - -

l:nch I ,. .5U(,., : 5r - - 1.00 1.500.00 

Fach I Sl!IJ. )1, :,,.i, 1.00 800.00 - -
Lach 3 ,.O!H (It: 1.{11 • . uo 2.00 2.000.00 1.00 1.000.00 

1:ach 3 3.5[10.llt' 10_-;or, 110 2.00 7.000.00 1.00 3.500.00 

1: .ieh 2 :.~I I .I, - 01; 1.00 3.500.00 1.00 3.500.00 

-
bch 2 -1,900.00 9.800.00 2.00 '!.800.00 - -
Each I 5.000.00 5.000.00 1.00 5,000.00 - -
I .F 29 160.00 4,640 .00 29.00 -1 .640.00 - -
L.F. 63S 80.70 51.486.60 638 .00 51 ,486.60 - -

L.F. 38 65.00 2.-170.00 38.00 2.-170.00 - -
L.F. 31 58.00 1.798.00 31.00 1.798 .00 - -

L.F. 299 40.00 11.%0.00 95.50 3.820 .00 95.50 3.820.00 

Each 10 250.00 2,500.00 3.00 750.00 3.00 750.00 

Page: on 

CIT Y OF 

ELKO 

QTY EXTENS ION 

-

- -

-

-

-

-
- -

- -
-
-

- -

-
- -

- -
-

- -
- -

-
-
-

-

-

-

- -

- -

- -

108 .00 4.320.00 

4.00 1.000.00 



IT EM OFSC' RIPTION 

\Vat er !\ l ain Construction 

Enginee ring ( 111) £) 

Administration (FLC) 

Co ntin gcncie, 

T otal \\' atcr Main Comtru ction 

Origina l llud i:et 

Summa ry of \ Vat cr Main Costs 

T otal Water i\ l a in Co mtru ctio n 

Les~ Wa ter Main Over~izing 

Less W ater !\ l a in Ex tl'mion Refund ~ 

Fina l \Vatl' r !\ l ai n Co~,~ 

GOLDEN GATE PETROLEUM 

SHEEP TRAIL & WEST IDAHO STREET WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS 
PRORATION Of COSTS BASED O N BID RESULTS - OCTOBER 6, 2017 

Ruby Dome GO LDEN GATE SWIR E 

Inc. PETRO LEUM COCA-CO LA 
UN IT QTY PR ICE I EXTENS ION QTY I EXTENSION QTY I 1: XTENS ION 

s 686.392.35 $ 335 .5 89.27 s 222.296.52 

7.50% 51.479 43 25. 169.20 16.672 .24 

5.00% 34.3 19.62 16,779.46 11 , 114.83 

2.50% I 7. 159.81 8.389.73 5.557.4 1 

$ 7ll9.3 S 1.20 $ 385,927.66 $ 255,6-H.00 

s 62 2,722.00 s 255,050.00 $ 196,156.00 

s 789.35 1.20 ~ 3~5.927.66 s 255.64 1.00 

(22.776.58) ( 15,290.45) 

(62.0 I 9.93) (44 .923.55) 

s 789,35 1.20 s 30 1,131.1 6 $ 195,427.00 

Page 3 of3 

CITY OF 

ELKO 
QTY I EXTENS ION 

s 128.506.56 

9,637.99 

6,425 .33 

3.2 I 2 .66 

s 147,782.54 

$ 171.517.00 

s 147,782.54 

38 .067.03 

s 185,849.58 



GOLDEN GATE PETROLEUI\I 
SH EEP TRAIL & WEST IDAIIO STREET WATER i\lAIN EXTENSIONS 

OVER SIZING CALCULATIONS 

WESTEKN NF\' ADA SUl' l'L \ 

ITE~I I DESCR IPTION I L:NIT I QTY ALTFR:s;,\ Tf. HID ITE~I P1 ClJCCI E ,1cns1on O, cr-Smni; Golden Gate O\·cr-Smni; S\, ire Ch er-S1z.rng 
I:'.!" 10· DFLTA O,cr-~1zmg Quanuty F,1cns1on QuanUt )- Ex1ens1on Quanttt} E,tension 

11 I I:!" Pressure Class ::!35 l'\'C \V:uer L.F. 2.'l'J6 ~-SSU!Cl -. .t~. ''"I 1•\·( \\.,.le 0.:'!5 18,725.00 1, 166.00 - ,:!k7 50 915.0() \ ," 18 •5 QIS.00 I 5.718.'"'5 
11 18", I!" TJpp,ng Slce,c I Fig) Each I ~ I i1~0::-.~·- 'let·,,: 1 1;;.t 2,177.05 0.50 0.50 

12" BNGS<t Lach I ~\ '",..:1 34 .00 5.0<) 5.00 0. 50 2.50 0.50 !.50 
1-4 I 12'' t ;1ppmg Valw Fig) 1-:ach I l'v:'"l:1; \ I• 11,; 1,975.92 339.35 339 .. \5 0.50 169,68 0.50 169.68 

I:!" 8:-,./G Set l·ach I , .. ~•t 34 .00 5.00 5 ()0 0.50 :.so 0.50 :!.50 

I:!" Gnp Rmgs Lich I < 1:, l(u:. 182.83 49.00 49.()0 0.50 24.50 0.50 2• .50 
15 12",8" Tee {Fig) Each I I, I 758 21 218.6" 218.67 1.00 21R.6" 

10 ll:!"Gate\'ahc(f;lg,\11 ) l·.1ch I .tc \ .111 • 1-. ·,\IJ 1,975 92 3:W.35 ,w.1s 1.00 111).15 

I:!" ll~(.I Se1 I Jch I "-· '·\.'\ 34 00 5.00 iOO 1.00 1.00 

I:!" Gnp Rmt~ L.1ch I ( 182.83 J9.00 J?,00 1.00 41!.IJO 

1· 112" Gaie \ 'ahc(.\IJ) Each 2 ,._.\,II , c\J. I 1,994 .19 Ji8.20 K1f, .• 0 1.00 418.!0 1.00 -118.20 
12" (t11pH.mi;, l·ach J 182.83 49.UO (l)f>.IJO : .oo %.00 2.00 98.I~) 

18 12" Flg,~IJ AJaplcr t:ach I \I \i Jr,h' 259.87 s·.o; 5-,05 0.50 :!XS'\ 0.50 28.51 

12" BNG Set Lich I ,\J \l•I 34 .00 5.00 5.00 0.50 :.so 0.50 ~.50 
12:'' G11r, l{1nf_s \:.;1ch I '" 182 83 49.\XJ J') ,{)() 0.50 :!4.5(1 0.50 2• .50 

19 12" 11-1 /.J Bend 1~1J) l·ach 2 ~ lknd l ,t 202 82 ,0.01 ""1).22 I.OU 11J.t>I I.OU W.61 

12'' Gnp H.mg~ Lu:h 4 l ii' .{ 1:•• 182.83 ,19,00 1%.CXJ 2.00 9h.00 2.00 <JK.CKI 

23 I:!" Hell Jomt Rcstr:unl l·ach 14 • 1 J, :: • tl ... 1:an: 259 48 :!:!.1 I 1 I 2.~-l 2.00 44 .b:! 6.00 1\1.Xb 6.00 IJ'\ Xb 

'5 I:! .. Prl', '-Urena," :!li P\T \\ JI~ 11· Ion? I ~•"" "'l'\ )\ I \\ - CT 6.:!) I0.~11.:!S 1.269.00 - _93 1.25 400.IXJ 2.SIXl.00 
le" Tee !Ag) L.ich I :-.; .. 912.70 285.2: :!85.22 1.00 2s;.:: 

:8 :2"":i" ·:\. .... O'lt-; L.,h ...... 75e 21 21~.b :!::-S.b"' !.W' clS.o' 

2Y 12" ( ,ate \ 'ah·e (flgx\lJl l·ach 5 ;.: \ ,· I ·.\.tr 1,975.92 ,39 . .35 l.n%. 0 5 4.00 1,,;- 4(1 I .(JO JW.15 

I!" R:s;G Set Lich 5 "" ~ 34.00 5.0<• :mo 400 2000 100 5 (JO 

12" l.,np Rml!s l·.ach s ..., '' ~- 182 83 4'1.00 24:dl!J J.(I() 1%.IXJ 100 • 9.UO 

10 I 12" H~,~IJ Ad,pl<r l·ach 2 \\.1 \d::.,tt:1 259.87 )~.0) I \,l JU 1.00 J "l _U:, IIKI ) .U:, 

12" ll:--IG Set Fach 2 . h\\1 ,._ 34 .00 5.00 10 00 1.00 5.IJ0 1.00 ).00 

I:!" Gnp Rm~-. l·.ach ,111' Hu··:-. 182.83 41/ .0(1 'JK.00 1.00 41J.IXJ 1.00 ..i9 .00 

11 I I ~",8" Reducer (Fig) l·ach I " .• lu~ II •09 61 100.62 100.6~ 1.00 l(XJ.62 

I~ .. B\:(, , cl l·,,ch I ... (, ,, 34 00 \ IXJ 5.IXI I.IX! >.!JO 

1: I I!" Lnd l' lu~ 1~1JI C:,1d1 I iU ,II." I _I 131.52 " .61 7 .61 I 1.00 I ..,(11 

12" Ga~l..e1 l:..1ch I ~ .•• I;! .):!.OU :!.M> 2.66 1.00 I :! .66 

('lo'.' {\'J I s-.~- 5"".2"" 1.00 57_2"" 
,. ~1 \;(,',' <.00 111.00 J.00 10.m 
! ·1?11 ltj1 r11 .w.oo 98.00 ~.00 IJK.Oo 

I ~, ... "r1.•ll: .. \ 42.4 1 42.41 0.50 :!l.~1 0.50 :1.:1 
., I \l 'i:t 'f'\.l, ''-'i 5.00 10.00 1.00 5.00 1.00 5.l)(J 

< ,r r, Hrn:··. l1np \{iPW• 49.0U •18 .UO 1.00 -4lJ.(>l) I.OU 4•1.U\/ 
" I· 1\U, '" CC (\t. \ I; I 57.:!7 57. :! 7 1.00 5.,. ~7 

,,c.,1 iJ'-.\ I 'Cl 5.00 10.00 2.00 10.00 
< up {1n:·, l r r km~ " J9.00 98.00 2.00 98.00 

"Tn: i\t.·,nJ.! ., r~e,~1. \ l1 I ' 42.41 42.4 1 1.00 -l :!.-ll 

"\{1">(1 2 I " \l, °'1'1 S.00 10.00 2.00 l0.00 
l,n~ l,n:·\ '(111rKw;· ' 49.00 98.00 :!.00 98.00 

' I " Ice ftl~!J ·" lee I,.,) 205.81 205.81 I 1.00 I 205 .8 1 

P.;,w l vf:? 



llEM DESCRIPTIO:-- UNIT QTY 

!-.uh• rotal~ 

Plus r a,es "• - IU"o 

lot.ti~ 

GOLDEN GATE PETROLEUl\1 
SII EEP T RAIL & WEST IOAIIO STREET WATER ~I A IN EXTENSIONS 

OVER SI Z ING CALCULATIONS 

M·.S l'l:.R:-- NEVADA SUPl'LY 
Alf ERNA TE BID ITEM l'rroJcct Extcnswn Ovcr-SIZlng Golden Gate O,·cr-S1zmg 

I:!" 10" DELTA On:r-S111ng Quantity F,tcm1on Qu;1nllt) F-..:tens1on 

J5.5~J.45 8.109.41 17,211.95 

2.52:\.58 575. 77 1.222.05 

.18.067.0.1 8.685.18 18.~JJ. 99 

r o:l·J•t, ,r: 

s,,,re Chcr-S111n~ 
Quant,t) 1:.-..:tcnsion 

10,222. 10 

725.77 

1IJ.9~7.k6 



GOLD E GATEPETRO LE M 
S II EE P T RAIL & WEST IDA IIO STR EET WATE R MA I EXTE IO S 

EXT E 'SION CA L LATIO NS 

SOU n I OF 1-80 

EX I ENS ION AGREEMENT 

ITEM L>LSCl{ II' I ION u I I Q I Y 1:x 11: NSION 

l\lobil iza tion 

I Mnbih1,1t1011 LS 01533 4,600.06 

2 Erosmn Control L.~ . 0 .1447 8.390.59 

3 Trnnic Control l.S 0 .1839 1.269.01 

Earthwork 

4 Clem ing & Gn1hb 111g /\c,c 0.70 1,400.00 

5 Unclass1ficd bcavat1011 C.Y. 1,303.00 2,866.60 

6 Unclassified Emhan~ mcnt C.Y. 1, 192.00 3,75-1 .80 

7 lypc I Ditch L.r. 
8 Road"ay Di tch l .I. 1.200()0 14,400.00 

<) Cut-off Ditch l .r. 
Water (Sheep Trail) 

10 20" Standard \\'e 1gh1 Stcd Ca,ing l .l . 

II 12" Prcssu1c Class 235 l'\"C . \\'atcr I .I . 1,166()() 60,632.00 

12 8" Pressure C lass :!35 P\'C \\'atcr LI . :!0.00 l, 100.00 

13 18"x 12" Tapping Slcc,c (I lg) Each 

14 12" Tappmg Valw i-ig) Ead1 . . 

15 12"x8" ·1ce (I lg) Each 1.00 2,200.00 

16 12" Gate Valve (I lg,~~IJ) Fad, 1.00 2,900.00 

17 12" Gale Valve (~IJ) f:ach 

18 12" FlgxMJ /\daptc, Each 

19 12" 11 - 1 4° Uend (MJ) Each 

20 12'' End Plug (MJ) Each . 

21 8" Gate Val\'C (1-1~1'1J) Each . 

22 8" End Plug (~IJ ) Each 2.00 1,000.00 

23 12" Spc..-c1al Con~ln1l'.t 1011 Rc~traincd Joints 1::tch 2.00 1,500.00 

47 6" Pressure Class 235 P\'C \\ .atcr 1..1 . . 

48 12"x8" l ee (MJx l-lg) Ead, 1.00 2,000.00 

49 12''x6" ·i ce (1'1Jx l· lg) Fach . 

50 8" Gate \'alvc (I-lg) Each 2.00 3,400.00 

5 l 8" UllCra l I llllngs Each 2.00 4,000.00 

52 6" Gate Vahc (Flg,xt-. lJ ) Each . . 

53 Fire ll ydrant l:ach . 

Water (Wc\t Idaho Stm ,I) 

24 Rcrno,e 12" Fnd Plug Each 

25 12" Pressure Cla,, 235 P\'C \\'alcr t .r. . 

26 8" Pressure Class 235 P\'C Water L.L . 

27 12" Tee (Fig) Each 

28 l2"x8" Tee (Fig ) Fach 

29 12" Gate Va lve (I lg,1' IJ ) Each . 

30 12" Flgx MJ Adapter Each 

3 1 l2"x8" Reduce, (I lg) Each . . 

32 12" l:nd Plug (MJ) Each . 

33 8" Tee (Fig) Each . 

34 8" Gate Vahe (Flgxl\ lJ ) Each . 

35 8" FlgxMJ /\dapll' I Each 

36 8" End Plug (MJ) l:ach 

37 Air Rclcaase Va l,c Assembly L.S. . 

38 Bollards Each . 

54 6" Pressure ( ·1ass 235 l'\ 'C \\'ater LT. 

55 12"x8" Tee (MJx rlg) Each . 

' ,, 



,. . 
.. 

GOLDEN GATE PETROLEUM 

S IIEEP T RAJL & WEST IDAIIO STREET WATER MAI EXTEN IO NS 

EXTE1 S IO ' CALC LATIONS 

SOUTI I OF 1-80 
EXTENSION AGREFMENT 

II EM DESCRIP I IO N UNI! Q JY l:XIENS ION 

56 12"x6" T cc (MJxl lg) Fad1 

57 12"x6" Tee (Fig) Each -
58 8"x6" Tee (Fig) Each -
59 6" Gate Valve (Flg.xt> IJ) Fach . 

60 Fi,e I lydrnnl Each 

6 1 \\'atcr Service Cach 

Sanirnry Sen er (\\'cs1 Idaho S1rcc1) 

39 1 )1le I Sanitary Sewer f\. lanholc Fach 

40 Type 2 Sanitary Sewer Manhole Each -
41 24" SDR-35 PVC Sewer 1..1 . 

42 21" SDR-35 P\'C Sewer 1..F. -
43 12" SDR-35 PVC Sewer L.F. -
44 6" SUR-35 PVC Se"'-'' I.. F. -

Storm Drnin 

45 18" ADS "N- 12" Stum, Drnin L.r . -
46 18" ADS End Section Each 

Construction Total ~ 115,413.07 
l:ngmccring ( 11 IJ L) 7.50% 8,655.98 
Adm111i,lntl1on (l ·l.l' ) 5.00% 5,770.65 
Contmgcncks 2 50% 2,885.33 

Extension Sub-Total 132,725.03 
l.t:ss fh~1 Suing (8,685. 18) 

Extension Total $ 124,039.85 

Extension Co,t per Front Foot : 
Fnmtagc (Jcct) . 

Bam e~: 859.02 
M,llcr: 1,209.68 

Swire: 330.7 1 

'Iota! Frontage (feet) : 2,399.41 

Extension lotal 5 124,039.85 

Tota l Extension Co,1 per Front Foot : s 51.70 

Extension Cost per pro pert): 

Bamck: 4-l,407 .8 
f\.1111<:r. 62 ,535 .59 

Swire. 17,096.38 

To1al Extcn~ion Co t per Proper!): s IH,039.85 

E~tcnsion Reimbursements to Golden Gate: 
Bamck l)cvclopmcnl : s 44,407.88 

M illcr Dcvelopmt'nt: 62 ,535.59 

To1al Extension RcimhurS<'mcnts to Golden Gate: $ 106,9-13.47 



I QI .L .ltft ~ ..., a. Jr.,-MrL.:..,__ 
I (r,OJ,._,. o,s.11«...llllilL-

~'IDPr, __ 

.,,.m SV11'HBI& mt 





.... ~~!~1 

iiPJt~ 

.&!AL- I-- - - --

'-""'----+--'---

L....._ 

• 
i i --

' ~ 

i .. 

...-lf'!..~~~,r ·-~ _.__,,,. 

1 

-~--i • 
>-------+---

t 

1 

I 

CITY OT EU((), NEYAJJA 
WEST ITMHrJ STREET urtlJTY EXTENSIONS 

Pl<P 11' IDAHO S1' 1382+00 ro 13711+00 -... 
~m ,,, __;a;it._ -
r;am,,r. _n;i___ ' 
amartO•v,.-JJ:I....__ 

--



i 
t 
! 

f 
' 

,..,,.,...r,,,,:,~,,. 
IPll',.l'J'-U/1 • ,-;.,, 

,.. ,11::j; 

J:.-1;?-/.~,::, 
..JO!l.:'---1-~---

..,,,,.._ __ 

,.,~~~~!~,:,. .... 
Jlr~1:.i.i 

1r"l2'TJUI-NIIP' T 
--•N»Cf 

~ 
HORl2.~ 

WR. ~ ,..,........,,__ 
IIIIC,lto.~ 

I 
\ 
I 
I 
I 
I 
\ 
I 

- i 
' 

I __ _ 

-·-! 

I 
r ~~ i 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
1---
1 
I 
I --

CITY OF ElXO, 1'TVADA 

IGVJ'.,,_ 
-:.in;-

lfEST JDAHa S'J'REET rmI.1TY EX'J'ENSIONS 
Pl!tP - II' IDAHO ST - 18'12+00 TO 1382+00 ..,...., ... .,. __ _ 

Mm Sl'TZ>CIR mr 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I i 
I I 
I I 
I I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I I 
I ~;(, 

-~~ 
ii~ 'I 
I 

I I 
I I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 



!~ i If 
._,.r»f~»•H#tr ,;§~ ~---· 

.;;~~::, ---••'lJ,., ........ I CGVI' •Kli:141 

,..., ___ ,. ~, 
--•MUI,_ 

--

-fj 
~~~~"n'_.1mlh 
::/t;;-!&~ 

11 :i , .. 

'.§ !1 !§ if /! 
I " ... 

i'Nl,i 
I iii i q I 

i •••• ~ I I I ,hi i' ~ 

1 ·~ 
iilii.! II ~ f 11~1,,., I I ·,~ 1 ~ f I 

' 
1 ~ I 

• 
I U J 

I !I l I 

I ~ : 

~I I 
I 

f I I I 
a 11 I 
s ., I 

' \ I 

i ! I I 

i I I 

' I I I • .~ ii I I ,, 
1~ • I I 
A iG' I I I I 

i fl I _5 
" I i , 

I 
I I ' \ I 
I, I ( l ; I! I '\, 

~I 
I~ I I 11 I -i I• I 11 

~ d, -? 
"JI d1 JI q I ~ ( 1 ~_J _______ :ai I 7-------

I I 
t I ---r I I 
I t 

't :I ! ,. 

;~ 
., 

11 
~ 

i'" 

~ 
~ 

CTIT (IF £!XO, NI.VADA 
n:ff J1MHD 5"1113/1' IJJ'1UTT EX'f1!NSIONS 

P&P - W IDABO ST - 138/l+OO TO END ,,,,. -
............ 
.,.. .... -Jlia._,,.-=-
APMC,a•r.: __ 
,:,IJE, azm,pp :IV! 



crrr or ELKO. nvADA 
IU:ST /DAN() $T1IEl:f' U/'1UTT &Xl'ENSIONS 

EROSION CONTROL l'LIJi -



T T 

,,__ __ 
f 
J 

l 1 ·1.1 ~ "2---::- =-=== • ~ I ._. JIS'IUt ..., MJ,;.,~ 

t ..... J7N-Mtl ----~ 

,4IIAIOJDlff,--

~ :srnr:nn: mr 





Agenda Item V.A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 15-18, a 
resolution authorizing the expenditure of funds by the Redevelopment Agency from 
its Special Revenue Fund in the amount of $250,000, for the work proposed for the 
Centennial Park Expansion Project, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: RESOLUTION 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: RDA approved expenditure of $250,000 for the Centennial 
Park Expansion Project at their February 27, 2018 meeting. As per the 
Redevelopment Plan, Council must give consent on the expenditures. CL 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: $250,000.00 
Budget amount available: 
Fund name: Redevelopment Agency 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Resolution No. 15-18 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve Resolution No. 15-18 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 04/30/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF ELKO 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-18 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF MONEY IN THE ELKO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND FOR CONSTRUCTION 
OF THE CENTENNIAL PARK EXPANSION 

Upon introduction and motion by Council Member _____ and seconded by 
Council Member _____ the following Resolution was passed and adopted by no less than a 
two-thirds vote of the Elko City Council: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 279.628(2)(c), by resolution of the Elko City Council 
adopted by a two-thirds vote, any money in the revolving fund maintained by the Elko 
Redevelopment Agency may be paid to the Elko Redevelopment Agency, upon such terms and 
conditions as the Elko City Council may prescribe for any expenses necessary or incidental to the 
carrying out of the Elko Redevelopment Plan; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 279.486(1) and Article II(G)(l)(c) of the Elko 
Redevelopment Plan, the Elko Redevelopment Agency may, with the consent of the Elko City 
Council, pay all or part of the cost of the construction of any building, facility, structure or other 
improvement and the installation of any improvement which is publicly or privately owned and 
located within or without the redevelopment area; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 279.486(3), before the City Council may give its consent to 
an action proposed by the Redevelopment Agency pursuant to NRS 279.486(1), the City Council 
must determine that: (a) the buildings, facilities, structures or other improvements are of benefit 
to the redevelopment area or the immediate neighborhood in which the redevelopment area is 
located; and (b) no other reasonable means of financing those buildings, facilities, structures or 
other improvements are available; 

WHEREAS; the foregoing determinations by the City Council are final and conclusive; 

WHEREAS, the City Council established the Elko Redevelopment Agency revolving 
fund as a Capital Projects Fund by resolution dated June 23, 2009; 

WHEREAS, the City Council converted the Elko Redevelopment Agency revolving fund 
from a Capital Projects Fund to a Special Revenue Fund by resolution dated February 11, 2014; 

WHEREAS, on February 27, 2018, the Elko Redevelopment Agency resolved to approve 
funding for the expansion of the Centennial Park using Redevelopment Agency funds up to 
$250,000, with the work to include, without limitation, the public infrastructure such as curb, 
gutter, sidewalk, storm drain, landscaping, irrigation, and reader boards; 

Page 1 of 2 



WHEREAS, the Elko City Council desires to consent to the aforementioned expenditures 
proposed by the Elko Redevelopment Agency; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE ELKO CITY 
COUNCIL THAT the work proposed for the Centennial Park Expansion Project, as described in 
the minutes of the February 27, 2018 meeting of the Elko Redevelopment Agency, constitute 
buildings, facilities, structures or other improvements that are of benefit to the redevelopment 
area and the immediate neighborhood in which the redevelopment area is located; 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that no other reasonable means of financing those 
buildings, facilities, structures or other improvements are available; 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Elko City Council hereby authorizes the 
expenditure of funds by the Redevelopment Agency from its Special Revenue Fund in the 
amount of $250,000, and consents to the work proposed for the Centennial Park Expansion 
Project, as described in the minutes of the February 27, 2018 meeting of the Elko Redevelopment 
Agency. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of May, 2018. 

ATTEST: 

SHANELL OWEN, CITY CLERK 

VOTE: 
AYES: 

NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

CITY OF ELKO 

By: _____________ _ 

CHRIS J. JOHNSON, MAYOR 

Page 2 of 2 



Agenda Item V.B. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: First reading of Ordinance No. 829, an ordinance amending Title 3, Chapter 2, 
of the Elko City Code "GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE" specifically Section 3-
2-11 IBP, IC Industrial Districts, filed and processed as Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment No. 1-18, and to direct Staff to set the matter for public hearing, second 
reading and possible adoption, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: ORDINANCE 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 1, 
2018, and took action to forward a recommendation to Council to adopt an ordinance, 
which approves the zoning ordinance amendment. CL 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: NI A 
Budget amount available: NIA 
Fund name: NI A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Ordinance and P.C. Action Report 

9. Recommended Motion: Conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 829, and direct Staff 
to set the matter for public hearing, second reading, and possible adoption. 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: Planning Commission, City Attorney 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 04/20/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocity.com 
Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov 

1751 College Avenue · Elko, Nevada 89801 · (775) 777-7160 · Fax (775) 777-7219 

CITY OF ELKO 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REPORT 

Regular Meeting of May I, 2018 

WHEREAS, the following item was reviewed and considered by the Elko City Planning 
Commission on May I, 2017 under Public Hearing format, in accordance with notification 
requirements contained in Section 3-2-2l(B)(l) of the City Code: 

Zoning Ordinance Amendment 1-18, Ordinance No. 829, an amendment to the City Zoning 
Ordinance, specifically Section 3-2-11 IBP, IC Industrial Districts and matters related 
thereto. 

NOW THEREFORE, upon review and consideration of the application, supporting data, public 
input and testimony, the Planning Commission forwarded a recommendation to City Council to 
adopt an ordinance, which approves Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 1-18. 

Attest: 

CC: Applicant 
Jeremy Draper, Development Manager (via email) 
Shanell Owen, City Clerk 



CITY OF ELKO 
ORDINANCE NO. 829 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3, CHAPTER 2, OF THE ELKO CITY CODE 
ENTITLED "GENERAL ZONING ORDINANCE" BY ADDING NEW DEVELOPMENT 

STANDARDS, AND MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the City of Elko desires to amend the City Code to provide clarification within the 
General Zoning Ordinance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO, 
NEVADA 

For amendment purposes, words which are in bold and underlined are additions to the 
Ordinance, and words which are lined through and bold are deleted from the Ordinance. 

Section 1: Title 3, Chapter 2, Section 11 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

3-2-11: IBP, IC INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS: 

A. IBP Industrial Business Park District: 

1. Intent: The purpose of the IBP zoning district is to provide and preserve high profile areas 
appropriate for corporate office, research and development facilities, office parks and 
compatible light industrial uses with emphasis on special site design features that strengthen 
the city's economic base and contribute to a higher quality of appearance and standard of land 
use, and to preclude residential uses and also extensive commercial uses and development that 
may be detrimental to the character or quality of the business/industrial park environment. 

2. Principal Uses Permitted: The primary permitted uses in the IBP zoning district are listed as 
follows, plus other uses of a similar nature: 

Advertising distribution. 

Bakery. 

Bottling plants. 

Business schools, vocational and trade schools. 

Catering services. 

Childcare center. 

Communication facilities. 

1 



Corporate and professional office, offices subordinate to and related to the principal industrial 
use. 

Electronic manufacturing and assembly. 

Financial institutions. 

Indoor light manufacturing, processing, assembly, fabricating or storage of certain specified 
products and materials. 

Laboratories, medical experimental and research. 

Machine shops. 

Newspaper and publishing plants. 

Office supply stores. 

Printing, blueprinting, photostating, and photo finishing facilities. 

Recording studios. 

Recreation and fitness centers. 

Warehousing and distribution center. 

Other commercial uses which are supportive and complementary to IBP uses and the intent of 
the district as determined by the planning commission. 

3. Conditions: 

a. Conditional Use Permit Required: Issuance of a conditional use permit following review by 
the planning commission and in accordance with this chapter is required for all fully 
integrated and planned IBP developments as part of a concept master plan or for individual 
IBP uses not part of an approved master plan. 

b. Outside Storage: Any outside storage shall be suitably screened from the surrounding area by 
walls, planting, or other barrier to the satisfaction of the planning commission. 

c. Signs: Advertising signs shall be reviewed as part of the plans submitted for conditional use 
permit review. The planning commission may require the reduction of any height or size of 
sign suggested by the developer, if the planning commission finds such reduction to be in 
keeping with the intent of this section. 

d. Height Limitation: No structure may be allowed to exceed the elevation indicated in the 
current airport master plan of the city. 

2 



e. Required Area And Width: Five (5) acre minimum development area with ten thousand 
(10,000) square feet minimum lot area within the development, one hundred fifty feet (150') 
average width, unless otherwise permitted by the planning commission. 

f. Yards: Yards shall be set as follows: 

(1) Rear yard: Twenty foot (20') minimum setback unless the structure borders on an alley, 
in which event no setback is required. 

(2) Interior side yard: Ten foot (10') minimum setback. 

(3) Exterior side yard: Fifteen foot (15') minimum setback. 

(4) Front yard: Twenty foot (20') minimum setback. 

g. Front And Exterior Side Yards: Required front yards and exterior side yards shall be limited 
exclusively for landscaping, driveways, internal circulation, walkways, parking, signs and 
other related streetscape features. Materials storage within such yards shall be prohibited. 

h. Landscaping: 

(1) Provisions for landscaping shall be included in the development master plan to be 
submitted for conditional use permit approval. These shall include, but are not limited 
to, screen planting, lawn areas, trees, shrubs, fences and walls. Drought tolerant, low 
maintenance species in conjunction with decorative "hard surface" materials, such as, 
but not limited to, volcanic rock, gravel or stone are encouraged and may be utilized to 
fulfill landscape surface requirements. 

(2) Minimum landscape area shall be provided equal to twenty five percent (25%) of the 
required front yard and exterior side yard equal to two and one-half (21 h) square feet per 
linear foot of street frontage. 

(3) It shall be the responsibility of the owner or developer to carry out this program and to 
provide such maintenance and care as is required to obtain the effect intended by the 
original plan. All landscaping shall be planned and maintained to the satisfaction of the 
planning commission. A screen wall as set forth in subsection 3-2-3J of this chapter is 
required for all IBP uses within one hundred fifty feet (150') of an R district. 

B. IC Industrial Commercial District: 

1. Intent: The purpose of the IC zoning district is to provide and preserve transitional areas 
characterized by surrounding commercial and industrial districts appropriate for a mixture of 
commercial uses and small scale industrial uses which are not associated with excessive levels 
of noise, dust, odor, vibration or smoke. 

3 



2. Principal Uses Permitted: 

All general commercial principal permitted uses listed in subsection 3-2-10B of this chapter. 

All light industrial principal permitted uses listed in subsection 3-2-12A of this chapter. 

3. Conditional Uses Permitted: Any of the following uses may be permitted upon approval of a 
conditional use permit in accordance with provisions of this subsection and as set forth in 
section 3-2-18 of this chapter: 

Gas service stations. 

Mixed uses. Structures containing one or more residential dwelling units in which a 
significant portion of the space within the structure includes one or more principal commercial 
permitted uses. 

Recreational vehicle parks. 

4. Development Standards: 

ft, FeF industFial uses, the &Feft and sethaek FequiFements set feFth in suhseetien 3 2 
12A.2 ef this ehapteF shall apply. 

h. FeF eemmeFeial uses, all standaFds set feFth in seetien 3 2 10 ef this ehapteF shall 
apply. 

e. FeF an unspeeified use at the time ef de¥elepment, the stFieteF ef the twe (2) standaFds 
set feFth in suhseetien 3 2 12l. .. 2 eF seetien 3 2 10 ef this ehapteF shall apply. 

a. Minimum Area: There is no required minimum lot area. 

b. Minimum Lot Width: There is no required minimum lot width. 

c. Minimum Front and Rear Yard Setback: Required minimum front and rear yard 
setback shall be five feet {5'). 

d. Minimum Side Yard Setback: Required minimum side yard setback shall be five feet 
~ 

5. Height Restrictions: In addition to all other applicable requirements, all structures within the 
IC industrial commercial zoning district must comply with the height and other requirements 
of the current city airport master plan, to the extent the plan applies to that location. 

4 



6. IC Industrial Commercial Zone Abutting Residential Zone: A conditional use permit pursuant 
to section 3-2-18 of this chapter is required for every new development on a lot or parcel in 
the IC industrial commercial zoning district which abuts a residential zoning district. All such 
developments are subject to the screen wall requirements set forth in subsection 3-2-31 of this 
chapter. 

7. Outside Storage: Any outside storage of materials shall be suitably screened from 
surrounding area by fencing, walls, planting, or other comparable barrier. 

8. Landscaping: 

a. For every new construction in the IC industrial commercial zoning district which is outside of 
the central business district (CBD), minimum landscape area shall be provided in an amount 
equal to fifteen percent (15%) of the surface area of the developed portion of the property for 
lot sizes one acre or greater and ten percent ( 10%) of the surface area of the developed portion 
of the property for lot sizes smaller than one acre, to include property consisting of multiple 
parcels which form a single development. Additionally, the city may, at its discretion, require 
that landscaped areas be distributed throughout the development, including yard areas 
between buildings, structures and the adjacent street right of way line. The landscaping may 
include, but is not limited to, screen planting, lawns, trees, shrubs, fences and walls. Drought 
tolerant, low maintenance species, in conjunction with decorative hard surface materials such 
as, but not limited to, volcanic rock, gravel or stone, are encouraged and may, where 
appropriate, be utilized to fulfill landscape surface requirements. 

b. It shall be the responsibility of the owner or developer to carry out the requirements of this 
section and to provide proper maintenance and care of the landscaping. (Ord. 805, 12-13-
2016) 

Section 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but 
only to the extent of such conflict 

Section 3: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall for any reason 
be held to be invalid, unenforceable, or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
invalidity, unenforceability or provision shall not affect any remaining provisions of this 
ordinance. 

Section 4: Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this 
ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilman voting for or against its passage 
in a newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at least one 
publication. 

Section 5: This Ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned in Section 4. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this --th day of-, 2018 by the following vote of the Elko City 
Council. 

5 



AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED this --th day of--, 2018. 

ATTEST: 

SHANELL OWEN, City Clerk 

CITY OF ELKO 

BY: ___________ _ 

CHRIS JOHNSON, Mayor 

6 



Agenda Item VI.A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review and consideration of a request to waive or reduce the vendor fee(s) for 
the Elko Farmer's Market, including the Market's approval to be located at the 
parking lot behind Sherman Station on Saturday June 16, July 21, August 18, and 
September 15, 8:00 a.m.-12:00 noon, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: PETITION, APPEAL, AND COMMUNICATION 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: A letter from Sue Kennedy and Dan Lotspeich has been 
included in the agenda packet for review. Additionally, a letter of support from the 
Elko Area Chamber of Commerce and the current lease agreement between the 
City of Elko and the Chamber have been included for review. The Elko Farmer's 
Market is considered a Special Event, pursuant to Elko City Code 4-1-6. 

Since the Elko's Farmer Market is proposing to use public property, a $34.50 per 
vendor per event fee is required. By contrast, events held on private property are 
charged $6.00 per vendor per day. Although technically public property, the 
Sherman Station parking lot is included in the lease area and operated/controlled by 
the Chamber. The Elko Area Chamber of Commerce is willing to sponsor the 
event(s), if necessary. CC 

6. Budget Information: NIA 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Letter from Sue Kennedy and Dan Lotspeich; 
Letter from Elko Area Chamber of Commerce; Lease Agreement between City and 
Chamber; Elko City Code 4-1-16 Vendor Permit Information 

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of Council 

10. Prepared By: Curtis Calder, City Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: NIA 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: Sue Kennedy 
lamoillebeef'@gmail.com 

Billie Crapo, Elko Chamber of Commerce 
ceo@elkonevada.com 

Created on 05/02/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



April 29, 2018 

To Mayor Chris Johnson and the Members of the Elko City Council: 

The organizers of the Elko Farmer's Market are asking for Council's assistance in establishing a new 

monthly farmer's market for Elko Area residents to enjoy. 

Currently, local agricultural producers host two farmer's markets each month from June through 

October. One of those markets is held in Lamoille, and the second is held in Elko, in the parking lot at 

IFA. All products offered at these markets were grown here in Elko County or adjacent counties. The 

markets have been extremely successful, and our customers have requested that we add more markets 
so that they can shop for locally-produced food each week during the growing season. 

In order to increase visibility and customer awareness, we'd like to hold one market monthly on the 

parking lot behind Sherman Station. The Chamber of Commerce enthusiastically supports this idea. This 

venue will provide significantly more drive-by traffic than our IFA venue, and can help more Elko 

residents bring home delicious, healthy, locally grown food for their families. Unfortunately, because 

this proposed venue is City property, city ordinance states that each producer must pay $30+ each 

month to the City in fees. 

This fee presents a significant financial barrier to our local agricultural producers, given that most of us 

operate on a shoestring. Many of us are just getting started in business. The organizers are doing 

everything in our power to assist new producers to have enough yield to have a booth at the market, as 
everyone wins with more locally-produced food choices. More booths= a more attractive market= 

more customers. A monthly fee of this nature will make it difficult for the market to succeed, as most of 

our producers won't be able to afford to have a booth. A market that's too small will die. 

We are asking that the Council waive the vendor fee for our agricultural producers so that our local 

farmer's market can grow. Various organizations have been trying for years to bring a farmer's market 

to Elko, and after years of effort our group has finally been able to do so. If you help us, we can 

continue to grow, and can integrate this wonderful event into the fabric of our home town summer. 

If you vote to approve this waiver, the dates for the Elko Farmer's Market at Sherman Station will be 

June 16, July 21, August 18 and September 15, 8AM -12N. The possibility exists that we'd be able to 

hold an October 20 market, as well, depending on how the weather holds during harvest season. 

Thank you for your consideration, and for your support of local agriculture. 

Kennedy Ranch Home-Grown Meats Lotspeich Family Farms 

~~ f._o./-1/',,,/e-h h,,,,, :fy ;:;;,,,,,,, 



One customer's haul from an Elko Farmer's Market date last year 

Lamoille Farmer's Market 



ELK() AREA 

CHAMBER 
THE BUSINESS BEHIND YOUR BUSINESS 

May 1, 2018 

Dear Curtis Calder and the Elko City Council, 

The Elko Area Chamber is excited to host Farmer's Markets in our parking lot. 
This is a wonderful opportunity to offer "Buy Fresh, Buy Local" foods to our 
community and surrounding areas. 

We are in full support of Lotspeich Family Farms holding these events at the 
Chamber, as it is not only bringing people to Sherman Station, it is benefitting 
our community. 

I understand the need for permits, but currently, I am asking the City Council 
to consider removing or discounting the vendor fees. Because the chamber 
technically sits on city property, the fees are much higher than private 
property. This is a concern for small vendors and could potentially dissuade 
them from being a part of the Farmer's Market. 

Please contact me if you have any other questions or concerns. 

Thank you for your time and consideration, 

~~ 
Chief Executive Officer 
ceo@elkonevada.com 

11 ••• 



- -
LEASE AGREEMENT 

.11 J) ec.e.oJxr 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into this \0'2:1 day o~, 

2008, by and between THE CITY OF ELKO, a municipal corporation organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Nevada, hereinafter referred to as "LESSOR", and 
ELKO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, a Nevada-corporation hereinafter referred to as 
"LESSEE", both hereinafter referred to in the singular, neuter, whether one or more person 
or entity. 

WITNESSETH 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and subject to 
ratification and approval of the City of Elko through its Mayor and Councilmen, LESSOR 
does hereby rent, demise, let and lease unto LESSEE, the property described in Section 1.0 I 
upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth: 

ARTICLE I. 
DESCRIPTION OF REAL PROPERTY 

Section 1.01. Description: LESSOR leases to LESSEE that certain real and personal 
property in the City of Elko, State of Nevada, particularly described on Exhibit A attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, hereinafter referred to as the "Property." 

Section 1.02. Term: The term of this Lease shall be for a period of twenty (20) years 
commencing on the date hereof. 

ARTICLE II. 
RENT 

Section 2.01. Amount: LESSEE agrees to pay LESSOR as rent for the premises, the 
sum of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) payable upon execution of this Lease. 

Section 2.02. Additional Assessments and Charges: In addition to the rent payable 
under this section, LESSEE shall pay and discharge promptly as the same become due and 
before delinquency all taxes and assessments, whether general or special, of every kind 
which may be levied or assessed or become a lien on or against the Property, or any part 
thereof, or any building or improvements thereon, or on or against the leasehold of LESSEE, 
during the term of this Lease. Any such taxes or assessments which shall relate to the fiscal 
year during which the terms of this Lease shall commence or terminate shall be prorated 
between LESSOR and LESSEE. 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

530 IDAHO STREET· P.O. BOX 135B 
ELKO, NEVADA B9B01 

(775) 738-8091 

1 



ARTICLE III. 
USE OF PROPERTY 

Section 3.01: Use: The Property may be used by LESSEE only for the purposes of 
conducting business activities relating to tourism, community public services and activities 
relating thereto including commercial activities which are appurtenant, subordinate or 
incidental to such uses. LESSEE agrees to restrict the use of the Property to such uses unless 
obtaining prior written consent of LESSOR to use the Property in any other manner. 

ARTICLE IV. 
CONSTRUCTION AND OWNERSHIP OF IMPROVEMENTS 

Section 4.01. Building Construction Improvements and Changes Permitted: LESSEE 
shall have the right to remodel and place buildings upon the premises, provided that prior to 
placement of any buildings, LESSEE shall submit to LESSOR plans and specifications 
therefore and obtain LESSOR's approval. For any remodeling or placement of buildings, 
LESSEE shall fully comply with all the terms and conditions of this Lease. 

Section 4.02. Compliance with Laws: All construction, work, improvements, and 
alterations thereto, to the Property by LESSEE or its agents, shall be done in a good and 
workmanlike manner and in full compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, 
regulations and codes applicable to the uses to which the Property will be put by LESSEE. 
LES SOR must give its prior written approval to all plans and specifications prior to the start 
of construction. 

Section 4.03. Ownership of Buildings and Improvements: All buildings and 
improvements thereto of a permanent nature to the "Sherman Station" buildings shall remain 
under the ownership of LESSOR. 

ARTICLEV. 
MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS AND DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY 

Section 5.01. Maintenance oflmprovements: LESSEE shall, throughout the term of 
this Lease, at its own cost, and without any expense to LESSOR, keep and maintain the 
Property, including the interior and exterior of all buildings and improvements of every kind 
which may be a part thereof, and all appurtenances thereto, in good, sanitary and neat order, 
condition and repair, and except as specifically provided herein, restore and rehabilitate any 
improvements of any kind which may be destroyed or damaged by fire, casualty or any other 
cause whatsoever. LESSEE shall also comply with and abide by all Federal, State, County, 
municipal and other governmental statutes, ordinances, laws and regulations affecting the 
Property, the improvements thereon, or any activity or condition on or in such Property. 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

530 IDAHO STREET· P.O. BOX 1358 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8091 

2 



-
Maintenance responsibilities of LESSEE shall include maintenance of all non-turf 
landscaping and snow removal of all areas adjacent to the buildings. 

The LESSOR will maintain the turf landscaping and provide snow removal for the 
parking lot. 

ARTICLE VI. 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS/WASTE 

Section 6.01. Applicable Laws: During the term of this Lease, LESSEE shall comply 
with all City, County, State and Federal and other applicable laws affecting the Property, the 
breach of which might result in penalty on LESSOR or forfeiture of LESSO R's title to the 
Property. 

Section 6.02. Waste, Nuisance or Unlawful Activities: LESSEE shall not commit, or 
allow to be committed, any waste on the Property, create or allow a nuisance to exist on the 
Property or use or allow the Property to be used for any unlawful purpose. 

ARTICLE VII. 
UTILITIES 

Section 7.01. Payment by LESSEE: LESSEE shall pay for all utilities in connection 
with the Property, including, but not limited to, telephone, electricity, water, sewer and/or any 
other public utility services used or furnished on the Property during the term hereof. 

ARTICLE VIII. 
LIENS 

Section 8.0 I. Prohibition against Liens: LESSEE shall keep the fee estate of the 
Property free and clear from all mechanics' and materialmen's liens and other liens and 
encumbrances. 

ARTICLE IX. 
INDEMNIFICATION OF LESSOR 

Section 9.01. Indemnification: LESSOR shall not be liable for any loss, injury, death 
or damage to persons or property which at any time may be suffered or sustained by LESSOR 
or by any person who may at any time be using or occupying or visiting the Property or be in, 
on or about the same, whether such loss, injury, death or damage shall be caused by or in any 
way result from or arise out of any act, omission, or negligence of LESSEE or of any 
occupant, visitor, or user of any portion of the premises, or shall result from or be caused by 
any other matter or thing whether of the same kind as or of a different kind than the matters 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

530 IDAHO STREET· P.O. BOX 1358 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8091 

3 



- -
or things above set forth, and LESSEE shall indemnify LESSOR against all claims, liability, 
loss or damage whatsoever on account of any such loss, injury, death or damage. LESSEE 
hereby waives all claims against LESSOR for damages to improvements that shall be 
hereafter placed or built on the Property and to the property of LESSEE in, on or about the 
Property, and for injuries to persons or property in or about the Property from any cause 
arising at any time during the term hereof. The two preceding sentences shall not apply to 
loss, injury, death or damage arising by reason of the negligence or intentional misconduct of 
LESSOR, its agents or employees. 

Section 9.02. Indemnity Agreement: LESSEE shall comply with all terms and 
conditions of the Environmental Indemnity Agreement set forth on Exhibit "B" attached 
hereto. 

Section 9 .03. Insurance Liability: LESSEE shall procure and maintain in force during 
the term of this Lease and any extension thereof, at LESSEE's expense, public liability 
insurance adequate to protect LESSEE and LESSOR against liability for damage claims 
through public use or arising out of accidents occurring in or around the Property in a 
minimum amount of $500,000.00 for each person injured, $1,000,000.00 for any one 
accident, and $100,000.00 for property damage. LESSEE agrees to obtain a written 
obligation from insurers to notify LESSOR in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to 
cancellation or refusal to renew any such policies. LESSEE agrees that if such insurance 
policies are not kept in force during the entire term of this Lease or any extension thereof, 
LESSOR may procure the necessary insurance and pay the premium therefor, and that such 
premium shall be repaid to LESSOR as an additional rent installment. 

Section 9.04. Adjustment of Coverage: In the event that the limits of the personal 
injury or property damage public liability insurance then carried not be sufficient to provide 
adequate protection for LESSOR, the parties shall endeavor to agree on the proper and 
reasonable limits for such insurance. If the parties cannot so agree on the proper and 
reasonable limits for said insurance, parties shall within thirty (30) days of not reaching an 
agreement on insurance limits select an impartial third person to determine the proper and 
reasonable limits for the insurance which shall be binding upon the parties and such 
insurance shall be carried with the limits as thus determined. The expenses for such 
determination shall be borne equally by the parties. 

Section 9.05. Cost of Insurance deemed Additional Rental: The cost of insurance 
required to be carried by LESSEE in this Section shall be deemed to be additional rental 
hereunder. 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

530 IDAHO STREET- P.O. BOX 1358 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8091 

4 



ARTICLEX. 
ASSIGNMENT AND SUB-LETTING 

Section 10.01. Restrictions: LESSEE shall not sub-lease or assign any part of the 
Property or any of LESSEE's rights hereunder without the express written consent of 
LESSOR. In the event any assignment or sub-lease is granted by LESSOR, any such 
assignment or sub-lease shall incorporate fully all of the terms of this Agreement and 
LESSEE shall remain responsible to LESSOR for all of the terms of this Lease. 

Section 10.02. Subleasing: Any sublease to a for profit commercial venture is 
prohibited. 

ARTICLE XI. 
INGRESS AND EGRESS 

Section 11.01. LESSOR further reserves the right to itself and its assigns to enter upon 
the Property for the purpose of constructing, maintaining, and repairing any right-of-ways 
and easements which may be placed or constructed or any utilities which exist or may be 
constructed in the future. 

ARTICLE XII. 
DEFAULT 

Section 12.01. LESSEE's Default: If LESSEE shall fail or neglect to observe, keep or 
perform any of the covenants, terms, or conditions herein contained on LESSEE's part to be 
observed kept or performed, and such default shall continue for a period of forty-five (45) 
days after written notice from LESSOR setting forth the nature of LESSEE's default, then 
and in any such event, LESSOR shall have the following cumulative default remedies on 
written notice to LESSEE: (A) to terminate this Lease and forfeit all rights of LESSEE 
hereunder; (B) to terminate this Lease and sue LESSEE for all damages caused by such 
default or breach; and (C) immediately to enter the Property and take possession thereof with 
or without process of law and to remove all personal property from the Property and all 
persons occupying the Property and to use all necessary force therefor and in all respects to 
take the actual, full and exclusive possession of the Property and every part thereof as of 
LESSOR's original estate, without incurring any liability to LESSEE or to any persons 
occupying or using the Property for any damage caused or sustained by reason of such entry 
on the Property or such removal of such persons or property therefrom. 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

530 IDAHO STREET· P.O. BOX 1358 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8091 

5 



ARTICLE XIII. 
OWNERSHIP OF IMPROVEMENTS ON TERMINATION OF LEASE 

Section 13.01. Ownership: On termination of this Lease for any cause or upon the 
natural expiration of this Lease, LESSOR shall become the owner of any improvements on 
the Property not removed by LESSEE within six (6) months from the date of termination of 
this Lease. 

ARTICLE XIV. 
LESSEE'S OPTION TO TERMINATE LEASE 

Section 14.01. Option: LESSEE shall have the right, by notice to LESSOR given at 
least one hundred twenty days (120) prior to the surrender effective date, to terminate this 
Lease and surrender its leasehold interest hereunder to LESSOR. 

ARTICLE XV. 
CONDITION OF PROPERTY ON TERMINATION 

Section 15.01. On termination of this Lease for any cause, or upon the natural 
expiration of this Lease, LESSEE must, at LESSEE's sole expense, forthwith remove any 
non-permanent improvements placed on the property by LESSEE, provided, however, that 
LESSOR shall have the option of waiving this requirement as to any and all improvements 
LESSOR desires to remain in place. 

ARTICLE XVI. 
ABANDONMENT 

16.01 In the event the LESSEE abandons the parcels ofland herein leased at any time 
during the term of this Lease, the Lease shall immediately terminate without further notice. 

ARTICLE XVII. 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 17.01. Waiver: The waiver by LESSOR of its right to declare a forfeiture or 
pursue any other remedy pursuant to this Lease upon any default on the part of LESSEE shall 
not violate any provision therefor herein contained, nor constitute a waiver of such right in 
connection with any future default, or any other obligation ofLESSEE herein contained to be 
done and performed. 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

530 IDAHO STREET· P.O. BOX 1358 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8091 

6 



Section 17 .02. Inspection: LESSOR, by its officers, employees or other authorized 
agents, shall have the right to enter upon the Property at any and all reasonable times during 
the term hereof for the purpose of informing itself as to the compliance or noncompliance by 
LESSEE of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease to be kept upon its part. 

Section 17.03. Miscellaneous Costs: LESSEE agrees to pay for all labor and material 
in connection with the construction of any building or improvements, social security and old 
age benefits, Nevada Industrial Insurance and Occupational Disease Coverage and for any 
and all such obligations or bills incurred during the term of this Lease. Upon the termination 
of this Lease, LESSEE will discharge, pay and satisfy all bills and debts incurred by 
LESSEE, to the end that there is no responsibility or liability imposed upon LESSOR. 

Section 17.04. Notices: Whenever in this Lease it shall be required or permitted that 
notice be given by either party to this Lease or to the other, such notice must be in writing 
and must be given personally or forwarded by certified mail addressed as follows: 

LESSOR: 

The City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 
Elko, Nevada 89801 

LESSEE: 

Elko Chamber of Commerce 
1405 Idaho Street 
Elko, Nevada 89801 

Such addresses may be changed from time to time by notice given hereunder. 

Section 17.05. Binding Effect: This Lease shall be binding upon, and inure to the 
benefit of, and shall apply to the respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and 
assigns of LESSOR and LESSEE and all references in this Lease to LESSOR and LESSEE 
shall be deemed to refer to and include successors and assigns of LESSOR and LESSEE 
without specific mention of successors or assigns. 

Section 17 .06. Time of Essence: Time is of the essence of this Lease and all of its 
provisions. 

Section 17.07. Attorney Fees: In the event of litigation, the prevailing party shall 
recover reasonable attorney's fees and expenses, together with costs of suit. 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

530 IDAHO STREET - P.O. BOX 1358 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8091 

7 



Section 17 .08. Captions: The captions contained herein are inserted only for 
convenience of reference and are in no way to be construed as part of the agreement or as a 
limitation on the scope of the particular paragraph to which they refer. 

Section 17 .09. Title Enjoyment: LESSOR covenants that LESSOR is the owner of 
the within described Property in fee simple and has full right to make this Lease. 

Section 17 .10. Quiet Enjoyment: LESSEE shall have the quiet and peaceable 
possession of the Property during the term hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands the year and 
date first above written. 

LESSOR: 
THE CITY OF ELKO 

ATTEST: 

SHANELL OWEN, City Clerk 

LESSEE: 
ELKO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE a 
Nevada corporation 

By:' J'Cn,1!?.,~ 
-----------" President 

8 
GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 
530 IDAHO STREET· P.O. BOX 1358 

ELKO, NEVADA 89801 
(775) 738-8091 



EXHIBIT "B" 
ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 

THIS ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT, hereinafter 
"Indemnity," dated this __ day of October, 2008, is made by ELKO CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE, a Nevada corporation, hereinafter "LESSEE," in favor of THE CITY OF 
ELKO, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Nevada hereinafter "LESSOR," and is executed in connection with that certain Lease 
Agreement of even date herewith between LESSEE and LESSOR (said Agreement, as it may 
from time-to-time be supplemented, modified and amended, is referred to in this Indemnity 
as the "Lease"). 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Lease, LESSOR has agreed to lease 
to LESSEE certain premises located on City property hereinafter referred to as "the 
property." As a condition of the Lease, LESSEE is required to execute and deliver to the 
LESSOR this Indemnity. 

To induce LESSOR to enter into the Lease and for other valuable consideration, the 
LESSEE represents, warrants and agrees as follows: 

1. Definitions. As used in this Indemnity, the following terms shall have the 
following meanings: 

"Environmental Activity" means any use, storage, treatment, disposal, release, 
threatened release, emission, discharge, generation, processing, abatement, removal or 
disposition of any Hazardous Materials from, under, into or on the property or any 
handling, transportation or treatment of Hazardous Materials arranged by or on behalf 
of the LESSEE relating to the property. 

"Environmental Law" means any federal, state or local statute, code, ordinance, 
rule, regulation, permit, consent, approval, license, judgment, order, writ, decree, 
injunction or other authorization, including, but not limited to, the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended ( 42 
U.S.C. Sections 9601, et seq.), the Resource and Conservation and Recovery Act, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. Section 6921, et seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportation 
Act, as amended (949 U.S.C. Section 1801, et seq.), the Clean Water Act, as amended 
(33 U.S.C. Sections 1251, et seq.), and any comparable or related enactments under 
the laws of the State of Nevada, and any requirement to register, provide secondary 
containment or release detection for and/or remediate releases from underground 
storage tanks, or any other existing or future statute, code, ordinance, rule, regulation, 
permit, consent, approval, license, judgment, order, writ, decree, injunction or 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

530 IDAHO STREET· P.O. BOX 1358 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8091 

1 

------------------------------------·-·--···· ... ,,_, __ _ 



authorization relating to emissions, discharges, releases or threatened releases of 
pollutants, contaminants or hazardous or toxic materials or wastes into ambient air, 
surface water, ground water, publicly owned treatment works, septic system or land, 
or otherwise relating to the pollution or protection of health or environment. 

"Hazardous Materials" means any substance, material or waste which is now or 
hereafter regulated by any federal, state or local governmental or quasi-governmental 
authority, and includes, without being limited to, (a) any substance, material or waste 
defined, used or listed as a "hazardous waste," "extremely hazardous waste," 
"restricted hazardous waste," "hazardous substance," "hazardous material," "toxic 
substance" or other similar or related terms as defined, used or listed in any 
Environmental Law; (b) any petroleum products, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls, 
flammable explosives or radioactive materials; ( c) any additional substances or 
materials which are now or hereafter hazardous or toxic substances under any 
Environmental Law relating to the property; and, ( d) any additional substances or 
materials which are hereafter incorporated in or added to the definition of"hazardous 
substance" for purposes of any Environmental Law. 

"lndemnitee" means LESSOR and its agents, attorneys, employees, successors, 
contract purchasers and assigns. 

"Termination Date" means the date of termination of the Lease whether by 
expiration of its term, action of the parties, operation of law, or otherwise. 

"Use" means use, ownership, development, construction, maintenance, 
management, operation or occupancy. 

2. Indemnity by the LESSEE. The LESSEE shall indemnify, defend, save and hold 
harmless each indemnitee from and against any and all actual and potential losses, liabilities, 
damages, costs and expenses (including the reasonable fees and disbursements of such 
indemnitee's legal counsel) suffered or incurred by any indemnitee as a result of: (a) the 
occurrence or alleged occurrence, prior to the termination date, of any environmental activity 
or any failure of the LESSEE or any other person acting under LESSEE's direction, authority 
or control to comply with all environmental law or laws applicable to any environmental 
activity relating to the property or the use of the property; (b) any investigation, inquiry, 
order, hearing, action or other proceeding by or before any governmental agency in 
connection with any environmental law occurring or allegedly occurring prior to the 
termination date; or ( c) any claim, demand, suit or cause of action, or any action or other 
proceeding, whether meritorious or not, brought or asserted against any indemnitee before or 
after the termination date which directly or indirectly relates to, arises from or is based on any 
of the matters described in clauses (a) or (b) of this Section 2 or any allegation of any such 
matters. 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
ATTORNEYS AT LA.W 

530 IDAHO STREET- P.O. BOX 1358 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8091 

2 



3. Costs and Expenses. The LESSEE shall pay to each indemnitee all costs and 
expenses (including the reasonable fees and disbursements of the indemnitee's legal counsel 
and consultants and the reasonable charges of the indemnitee's internal legal counsel) 
incurred by any indemnitee in connection with this Indemnity or the enforcement of the terms 
of this Indemnity. 

4. Survival oflndemnity. (a) The LESSEE's obligations under Sections 2 and 3 of 
this Indemnity (the "Indemnity Obligations") shall survive the termination date and any 
transfer of the LESSEE's leasehold interest until such time as any claim described in Section 
2 hereof shall be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. 

5. Liability of LESSEE. The liability and obligations of the LESSEE pursuant to this 
Indemnity shall be joint and several. 

6. Representations and Warranties. LESSEE hereby represents and warrants as 
follows that: 

(i) they have full power and authority to execute and deliver this Indemnity 
and consummate the transactions contemplated hereby; and, 

(ii) the execution and delivery of this Indemnity and the consummation and 
performance by them of the transactions contemplated hereby: (A) have been duly 
authorized by all actions required under the terms and provisions of the instruments 
governing its existence, the laws of the jurisdiction of its formation and the laws of 
the State of Nevada; (B) create legal, valid and binding obligations of them 
enforceable in accordance with the terms hereof; (C) do not require the approval or 
consent of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over it or its property 
except those already obtained; and, (D) do not and will not ( 1) constitute a violation 
of, or default under, its governing instruments, any law agreement, commitment or 
instruments to which it is a party or by which any of its assets are bound, nor (2) 
create or cause to be created any mortgage, deed of trust, lien, encumbrance or charge 
against its assets. 

7. Affirmative and Negative Covenants. 

(i) LESSEE shall be responsible for compliance with all environmental law of 
any and all jurisdictions in which the property is located. LESSEE shall comply with 
and shall ensure compliance by any permitted sublessees and occupants with all 
applicable Federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations with respect 
to Hazardous Materials, and shall keep the property free and clear of any liens 
imposed pursuant to such laws, ordinances, rules and regulations. In the event that 
LESSEE receives any notice or advice from any governmental agency, any sublessee 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
ATTORNEYS AT I.AW 

530 IOAHO STREET- P.O. BOX 1358 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8091 

3 



or occupant with regard to Hazardous Materials on, from or affecting the property, 
LESSEE shall immediately notify the LESSOR. LESSEE shall conduct and complete 
all investigations, studies, sampling and testing, and all remedial, removal and other 
actions necessary to clean up and/or remove all Hazardous Materials on, from or 
affecting the property in accordance with and to the extent required by all applicable 
Federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and policies and to the 
reasonable satisfaction of the LESSOR. In the event that LESSEE does not 
expeditiously proceed with any compliance required under any environmental law, the 
LESSOR, immediately after notice to LESSEE, may elect to undertake such 
compliance. Any monies expended by the LESSOR in efforts to comply with any 
environmental law (including the costs of hiring consultants, undertaking sampling 
and testing, performing any clean-up necessary or useful in the compliance process 
and attorney's fees and disbursements) will be reimbursed by LESSEE to the LESSOR 
on demand, and will bear interest until paid in full at the maximum rate then permitted 
by law. 

8. Governing Law. This Indemnity shall be governed by, and construed and 
interpreted in accordance with, the laws of the State of Nevada without giving effect to the 
principles of conflicts of laws. 

LESSEE: 

ELKO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, 
a Nevada corporation 

By:~wk .-~ 

GOICOECHEA, DI GRAZIA, COYLE & STANTON, LTD. 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

530 IDAHO STREET· P.O. BOX 1358 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8091 

4 



Period of time in excess of 90 days up to 1 year going door to door the sum of $690.00 
for each business. 

SPECIAL EVENTS (Section 4-1-16 of this Code): 
License fee for vendors on private property shall be computed as follows: 
$6.00 times the number of days of the event, times the total number of vendors having a 
space or booth, who would have been required (but for the Special Events License 
Ordinance) to obtain a business license. No fee shall be charged for a business that holds 
an Elko City Business License for a business that is physically located in the City limits. 
No fee shall be charged for a nonprofit organization. 

License fee for vendors on public property shall be computed as follows: 
$34.50 per vendor per event. No fee shall be charged for a business that holds an Elko 
City Business License for a business that is physically located in the City limits. No fee 
shall be charged for a nonprofit organiz.ation. 

AUCTION; AUCTIONEER LICENSE (Section 4-1-17 of this Code): 
$138.00 per day 

BANKS, SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS AND OTHER BANKING BUSINESS 
LICENSE AND REGULATIONS (Sections 4-1-18 of this Code): 

Every person, entity of corporation engaged in the business of banking or savings and 
loan association as defined in Section 4-1-18 of this Code shall pay for and obtain annual license 
fee rate as follows: 

The license fee is $55.20 per million dollars of total average deposits or fraction thereof 
with a minimum of $55.20 per bank or branch per year. 

A tabulation setting forth total deposits in the bank, association or branch on the last day 
of each of the previous four (4) calendar year quarters must be submitted along with fee. 

TRAVELING SHOWS (Section 4-1-19 of this Code): 
For each traveling show as defined in Section 4-1-2 of this Code the license fee shall be 

as follows: $138.00 per day 

UTILITY COMPANIES: 
The fee for all utilities as defined in Section 4-1-21 of this Code shall be as follows: 
Gr R 'tsf oss ece1p o: 

Initial Fee for new to 
License 

$ 0.00 $200,000.00 $1,200.00 + $25.00 
Processing Fee 

200,000.01 to 300,000.00 1,725.50 
300,000.01 to 400,000.00 3,450.00 
400,000.01 to 500,000.00 3,630.00 

Over 500,000.00 4,200.00 

3 



5/2/2018 Sterling Codifiers, Inc. 

4-1-16: VENDOR PERMIT: 

A. Application: Every organizer/sponsor of an event, program or show at which the public is invited 
and vendors are present must apply for an event vendor business permit through the city clerk's 
office. 

B. Multiple Organizers/Sponsors: The city clerk shall determine if there is more than one primary 
organizer/sponsor of any event, program or show and shall require each primary 
organizer/sponsor to apply for an event vendor business permit and, upon approval of the 
application, pay the appropriate license fee. 

C. Issuance: The city clerk shall issue an event vendor business permit to the organizer/sponsor upon 
approval of the application only after the following criteria have been met: 

1. No event vendor business permit shall be issued for any event to be held on city owned 
property, including public rights of way, unless approved by the city council pursuant to section 
8-11-2 of this code. 

2. An event vendor business permit will be issued only after the organizer/sponsor has provided a 
list of vendors to the city clerk's office. 

D. Additional Licensing: All vendors listed as part of the event vendors business permit shall not be 
required to obtain any license under this chapter for said vendor's activities at the event, show or 
program. This does not apply to those businesses within the city who normally conduct peddling 
operations or sales as a normal or seasonal part of their business. 

E. Recognition Of Authority: The city recognizes that the organizer/sponsor of any event, show or 
program has all control and authority over the decision to allow or refuse participation by any 
individual vendor. 

F. Business License Fee: Each organizer/sponsor of an event, show or program upon issuance of an 
event vendor business permit shall pay a license fee as established by a resolution of the city 
council. The license fee shall be based on the number of vendors at the event. 

G. Transferability: An event vendor business permit is nontransferable. 

H. Investigation: The city clerk reserves the right to require a police investigation if it appears that the 
applicant has failed to truthfully provide all information required or that the holding of the proposed 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=316 1/2 



5/2/2018 Sterling Codifiers, Inc. 

special event is in violation of any ordinance or law of the city, state or federal government. (Ord. 
592, 12-10-2002) 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=316 2/2 



Agenda Item VII.A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Second reading, public hearing, and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 828, an 
ordinance amending Title 4, Chapter 6, entitled "Room Tax", and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARING 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: At its April 24, 2018 meeting, Council held first reading of 
Ordinance No. 828. All transient lodging facilities have been mailed a copy of 
Ordinance No. 828. SO 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: NI A 
Budget amount available: N/ A 
Fund name: N/A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Ordinance No. 828 

9. Recommended Motion: Conduct second reading, public hearing, and adopt Ordinance 
No. 828. 

10. Prepared By: Shanell Owen, City Clerk 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: Special Counsel, Lodging Committee 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 05/2/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF ELKO 

ORDINANCE NO. 828 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 6 OF THE ELKO CITY CODE, 
ENTITLED "ROOM TAX" AND MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

WHEREAS, the City of Elko desires to amend the Elko City Room Tax Code pertaining to 
room tax (also known as the "transient lodging tax") due dates and penalties; 

WHEREAS, the City of Elko has determined that the proposed amendments will assist with 
transient lodging audits; 

WHEREAS, the City of Elko has determined that the proposed amendments will provide 
clarification for transient lodging twenty-eight (28) day exemptions. 

WHEREAS, the City of Elko has determined that the proposed amendment will assist in 
meeting the State requirements for transient lodging tax distributions and required reporting; 

WHEREAS, the City of Elko has determined that a transient lodging tax on promotional 
packages associated with transient lodging is no longer needed; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ELKO, NEV ADA 

For amendment purposes, words which are in bold and underlined are additions to the 
Ordinance, and words which are lined through and bold are deleted from the Ordinance. 

SECTION 1. Title 4, Chapter 6 of the Elko City Code entitled "Room Tax" shall be renamed 
"Transient Lodging Tax". 

SECTION 2. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 1 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

4-6-1 DEFINITIONS: 

FOLIO: Document that summarizes or itemizes guest charges. 

RENTAL BUSINESS: 
A. Rent: The act of permitting a person to use or occupy any portion of a transient lodging 

rental business in exchange for compensation, the act of using or occupying any 
portion of a transient lodging rental business in exchange for compensation, or the 
compensation paid for such use or occupancy. a fee paid, OF the eampeesatiae paid 
feF sueh use OF aeeupaeey. The terms "rent" and "lease" shall have the same meaning 
in this Chapter. 

B. Transient Lodging Reetal Busieess: The apeFatieg of aey husieess whieh pFaiwides 
"tFaesieet ladgieg", wheFeie a Foam, spaee of atheF aeeammadatiae is Feeted feF a 
period of less thae tweety eight (28) days feF use by the same teeaet, ta ieelude aey 
Foam, spaee aF atheF aeeammadatiae whieh is Feeted ta the same teeaet ie 
sueeessiv:e teFms, the total of whieh is less thae tweety eight (28) days eaeh, hut eat 
ta ieelude aey Foam, spaee OF atheF aeeammadatiae whieh is Fented faF a teFm of 

1 



twenty eight days (28) or longer. le the event e business rents a portion of its 
rooms, speees or other eeeemmodetioes for terms ef less thee twenty eight (28) days 
end another portion of its rooms, speees or other eeeommodetioes for terms of 
twenty eight (28) deys or more, only those rooms, speees or other aeeommodetioes 
rented for terms of less thee twenty eight (28) days shell eoestitute a "transient 
lodging rental business". A form of lodging in which a room, space or other 
accommodation is rented to a person for a period of less than twenty-eight (28) 
consecutive calendar days for use by the same tenant, to include any room, space or 
other accommodation that is rented to the same tenant in successive terms, the total 
of which consecutive terms is less than twenty-eight (28) consecutive calendar days, 
but not to include any room, space or other accommodation that is rented to a 
tenant who is a natural person and who signs, prior to the commencement of the 
tenancy, a Transient Occupancy Tax 28-Day Exemption Form in the manner 
required by this Chapter. 

C. Transient Lodging Rental Business: Any business having one (1) or more rooms, 
spaces or other accommodations that provides transient lodging to tenants in 
exchange for compensation. In the event a business rents a portion of its rooms, 
spaces or other accommodations for terms of less than twenty-eight (28) days and 
another portion of its rooms, spaces or other accommodations for terms of twenty
eight (28) days or more, only those rooms, spaces or other accommodations rented 
for terms of less than twenty-eight (28) days shall constitute a "transient lodging 
rental business". 

TR},.N8IENT LODGING: The following types of lodging: 

A. Hotels; 

B. Motels; 

C. Apartments; 

D. Timeshare projects, e~eept whee an owner of a unit in the timesheFe pFojeet who 
hes a Fight to use or occupy the unit is oeeupyieg the unit pursuant to ft timeshare 
instrument es defined in Nevada Revised Statutes section 119},..lSO; 

E. Apartment hotels; 

F. Vacation tFeiler perks; 

G. Campgrounds; 

H. Perks for reereetioeel vehicles; end 

I. An-y other establishment that rents rooms, spaees OF other eeeommodatioes to 
temporary OF transient guests hft"lieg four (4) or more rooms, spaces or other 
eeeommodetioes for rent. 

SECTION 3. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 2 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

4-6-2: TAX ON TRANSIENT LODGING: 

2 



There is hereby fixed and imposed on every licensee operating a transient lodging rental business 
within the city a transient lodging tax in the total amount of fourteen percent (14%) to be 
collected as follows: 

Fourteen percent (14%) of the gross income actually received, excluding the transient lodging 
tax, by each licensee in exchange for transient lodging rentals, shall be paid as a tax on 
transient lodging. Complimentary transient lodging (transient lodging which is provided at no 
cost to the occupant) is nontaxable. To be considered complimentary transient lodging, the 
transient lodging must be provided on an individual basis and not as part of any established 
package, advertised or otherwise, which includes other products or services. Tran:sieftt lodging 
included in promotional packages is taxable. The taxable amooot for such transieftt lodging, 
except those promotional packages that include airfare, is computed by obtaining the percefttage 
that the transient lodging rack rate bears to the retail value of the package and multiplying that 
percefttage by the package cost to the oecupaftt, or the actual amolHlt charged for the transieftt 
lodging, ,v:hiche11er is greater. 

Example: Transieftt lodging vrith an established rack rate of fifty dollars ($50.00) is included in 
the follo•.ving package, v.rliich is sold for forty dollars ($40.00): 

Food credit $ lO .00 

Goins l0.00 

Gabaret show 20.00 

9riak tokens lO .00 

Rack rate 50.00 

R~tail •;alue of package 100 . 00 

The rack rate equals fifty perceftt (50%) of the retail value of the package. Therefore, fifty 
perceftt (50%) of the package cost, or hY-eftty dollars ($20.00), must be allocated to transieftt 
lodging and included in taxable re11enue. 
Tran:sieftt lodging tax charged for transieftt lodging reftted as part of a promotional package that 
includes airfare shall be set by resolution of the city cooocil. 

SECTION 4. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 4 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

There shall be, and hereby is, exempted from the lieeese tax on transient lodging, each rental by 
any person who rents transient lodging if: lessee 0f e 1'88m, speee 81' 0thel' aee0mm0dati0e 
whee the F88m, speee, 81' 0theF eee0mm0dati0e is paid fer, direetly, fF0m e fedeF&I, state 8F 
l0eel g0:veremeetel eetity. 

3 



A. The transient lodging is directly reserved and paid for by a federal, state or local 
governmental entity, to include a school district; provided, a Governmental Agency 
Exemption Claim Form must be completed and retained in accordance with the 
retention standards set forth in 4-6-11 (B}; or 

B. The tenant signs, prior to occupancy, a contract, lease, or other written agreement, 
or signs a Transient Occupancy Tax 28 Day Exemption Form, pursuant to which 
the tenant promises to stay at the subiect transient lodging facility for a period of at 
least 28 days. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the occupant does not stay at the 
transient lodging facility for at least 28 days, the operator shall pay to the City the 
transient lodging tax due for the period the room was occupied. Except as otherwise 
provided in this Chapter, no rental shall be deemed to have been made for a period 
of 28 days or more unless the room or rooms rented to the tenant are continuously 
occupied by the tenant for 28 continuous calendar days without interruption. 

SECTION 5. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 9 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

4-6-9: PAYMENT OF TAX, INTEREST AND PENAL TIES: 

Every licensee shall pay the transient lodging tax to the city clerk on or before the fifteenth day 
of the month when such tax shall accrue and shall submit the payment with a completed form 
supplied by the City entitled "Operator's Transient Lodging Tax Return." Payment of the 
transient lodging tax shall become delinquent at 5:00 p.m. on the fifteenth day of the month. 
on the sixteenth day of the month. 8ueh tax beeomes payable to the eity elerk by the 
l:ieensee pursuant hereto. All electronic payments must be transmitted and received by the 
city clerk on or before 5:00 p.m. on the fifteenth day of the month. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, mailed payments postmarked on or before the tenth day of the month will not be 
assessed delinquent fees. 

SECTION 6. Title 4 Chapter 6, Section 10 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

4-6-10: ALLOCATION AND USE OF TRANSIENT LODGING TAX FUNDS: 

The transient lodging tax in the total amount of fourteen percent (14%) of the gross income 
actually received, excluding the lodging tax, by each licensee for transient lodging rentals 
pursuant to section 4-6-2 of this chapter shall be allocated and used by the city on the following 
percentages under the following categories. The transient lodging tax allocation shall be 
reviewed annually by the city council: 

A. All proceeds from the gross income actually received, excluding the lodging tax, by each 
licensee for transient lodging rentals for the recreation transient lodging tax fund in the 
amount of six and 1/8 percent (6 1/8%) shall be deposited in a special fund in the city 
treasury to be known as or designated as the recreation fund. 

4 



B. All proceeds from the gross income actually received, excluding the lodging tax, by each 
licensee for transient lodging rentals for the Elko convention end visitoFs euthoFity 
Convention and Visitors Authority transient lodging tax fund in the amount of two and 
three-eighths percent (23/s¾) shall be paid to the Elko convention end visitors authority 
Convention and Visitors Authority as collected on and after July 1, 1998. 

C. All proceeds from the gross income actually received, excluding the lodging tax, by each 
licensee for transient lodging rentals in the amount of one percent (1 % ), promotion of 
tourism transient lodging tax, shall be paid as follows: 

1. Three-eighths (3 /s) of all proceeds of the promotion of tourism transient lodging tax must be paid 
to the department of taxation for deposit with the state treasurer for credit to the fund for the 
promotion of tourism. 

2. Five-eighths (5/s) of all proceeds of the promotion of tourism transient lodging tax must be 
deposited with the Elko County recreation board created pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 
section 244A.597, to be used to advertise the resources of the county of Elko related to tourism, 
including available accommodations, transportation, entertainment, natural resources and 
climate, and to promote special events related thereto. 

D. All proceeds from the gross income actually received, excluding the lodging tax, by each 
licensee for transient lodging rentals for the Western Folklife Center transient lodging tax 
fund in the amount of one-fourth of one percent (0.25%) shall be paid to the Western Folklife 
Center fund as collected on and after July 1, 1998. 

E. All proceeds from the gross income actually received, excluding the lodging tax, by each 
licensee for transient lodging rentals for the agricultural district 4 transient lodging tax, in the 
amount of one-half of one percent (0.5%) shall be paid to agricultural district 4 as collected 
on and after July 1, 1998. 

F. i· .. 11 proeeeds from the gross ineome eetuelly reeei¥ed, euluding the lodging tax, by eeeh 
lieensee for transient lodging rentals for the Elko Sno Bowl Foundation transient 
lodging tax in the amount of one eighth of one peFeent (0.125%) shell he paid to Elko 
Seo Bowl Foundation es eolleeted on end after July 1, 1998. 

Gf:. All proceeds from the gross income actually received, excluding the lodging tax, by each 
licensee for transient lodging rentals for the marketing/tourism promotion transient lodging 
tax in the amount of one and three-fourths percent (1 3/4%) shall be paid to the Elko 
eon~·eetioe end visitors authority Convention and Visitors Authority on the condition 
that it creates a separate marketing and tourism promotion fund to account for all collections 
and expenditures made on and after July 1, 2001. 

H. All proceeds from the gross income actually received, excluding the lodging tax~ by each 
licensee for transient lodging rentals will first be applied to the Elko Regional Airport debt 
service transient lodging tax fund in the amount of up to two percent (2%) and shall be paid 
to the Elko Regional Airport as collected on and after August 1, 2007. Any amounts in 

5 



excess of the debt service requirement, as determined by the annual audit, shall be paid to the 
Elko eonvention and visitors authority Convention and Visitors Authority on the 
condition that it creates a separate facility fund to account for all collections and 
expenditures. No portion may be used for salaries or benefits. 

I. All recipients of the transient lodging tax shall render to the city an annual account showing in 
detail the use of all transient lodging tax received from the city. (Ord. 794, 5-12-2015, eff. 7-
1-2015) 

SECTION 7. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 11 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as 
follows: 

4-6-11: EXAMINATION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS: 

The tax administrator and his duly authorized agent are empowered to examine and audit the 
books, papers and records of any licensee or person operating a transient lodging rental business 
and to make investigations in connection therewith. Audits will cover a three (3) year period. 
The audit will be conducted at no expense to the licensee. 

A. Required Records. Each licensee is required to maintain daily records which support 
amounts reported on the Operator's Transient Lodging Tax Returns. These daily 
records shall include, without limitation, the following information: 

1. Total rooms available and occupied. 

2. Total daily gross room receipts. 

3. Total amount of transient lodging tax collected. 

4. Number of rooms, spaces or other accommodations provided for no compensation. 

5. Contract, lease, Transient Occupancy Tax 28-Day Exemption Forms or rental 
agreement. 

6. Government Agency Exemption Claim Forms. 

7. Any and all documentation used to complete the Operator's Transient Lodging Tax 
Return, to include all documents that support the calculations shown on the Return. 

An acceptable record retention practice includes maintaining bound receipt books, 
guest folios, registration cards, daily transaction reports, general ledgers, cash journals, 
register and/or computer printouts, computerized records, and any other books and 
records deemed reasonably necessary to support all information supplied to the City as 
required by this Chapter. Licensees shall retain and provide all documents that 
support revenues and exemptions reported to the City. 

B. Retention of Records. Every licensee shall keep all records which must be maintained 
pursuant to Section 4-6-11 for a period of not less than four ( 4) years from the close of 
the accounting year to which the Returns relate. 

6 



C. Availability of Records. Upon written notification of a transient lodging tax audit, the 
licensee shall provide the City or City auditors with all records supporting the 
Transient Lodging Tax Returns filed with the City of Elko during the audit period. 
These records shall be made available to the City or City Auditors at the transient 
lodging rental business or the offices of the City of Elko within ten (10) business days of 
the date the notice is sent, unless other arrangements are made with the City of Elko. 

If the transient lodging tax audit is conducted at the transient lodging rental business, 
the licensee shall provide reasonable accommodations to the City auditors. The City 
auditors may be City employees or independent contractors acting on the City's behalf. 

Auditors may make copies of all original records reviewed in the course of conducting 
the audit. Auditors may request copies of records which must be provided by the 
licensee either through copy, e-mail, cd or flash drive to be retained as part of the audit 
work papers which substantiate the audit findings. 

Failure of a licensee to retain or refusal of a licensee to furnish any such records 
required to be maintained pursuant to this Section may provide grounds for the 
assessment of a deficiency in the payment of the transient lodging tax for the period 
that is subject to the audit. The City may utilize any available data or other 
information to calculate the correct transient lodging tax for the period being audited. 

D. Failure to Cooperate with a Transient Lodging Tax Audit. Upon determination by the 
city clerk that a licensee is failing to cooperate with an auditor conducting an audit of 
Transient Lodging Tax Returns pursuant to this Section, the City Council may 
terminate, suspend or revoke the licensee's Business License pursuant to City Code 4-1-
14. Failing to cooperate, as that term is used in this Subsection, includes refusing to 
provide sufficient information to the auditor in order to conduct the audit. 

E. Notice of Audit Determination. Following the completion of an audit pursuant to this 
Section, the City will provide a written determination of the audit results to the licensee. 
The foregoing notice may be served personally, by certified mail, and/or e-mail. 

F. Time Limitation. If the city clerk assesses an additional amount for underpayment or 
nonpayment of transient lodging tax, the licensee has thirty (30) calendar days in which 
to pay the assessed amount and/or file a written notice appeal of the findings with the 
city clerk. 

G. Appeals of an assessment by the city clerk pursuant to this subsection shall be placed on 
a City Council agenda for consideration no later than sixty (60) days from the date the 
notice of appeal is filed with the city clerk. The decision of the City Council to uphold 
the assessment, in whole or in part, shall be deemed a final decision for purposes of 
judicial review. The licensee shall thereafter have thirty (30) calendar days in which to 
file a petition for judicial review with the Fourth Judicial District Court in and for the 
County of Elko, State of Nevada. 

Should the city clerk determine that a credit for overpayment of a transient lodging tax 
is due, the credit will be refunded to the licensee within thirty (30) calendar days from 
the date of the determination. 

7 



SECTION 8. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 12 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as 
follows: 

4-6-12: PENALTIES AND INTEREST: 

If the transient lodging tax is not paid on or before 5:00 p.m. on the fifteenth day of the month in 
which it becomes due, or if such day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, by 5:00 p.m. 
on the next succeeding day not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, then the licensee shall pay a 
penalty of fifteen percent (15%) of the unpaid, due and delinquent transient lodging tax, and the 
licensee shall also pay the costs of collection of the tax, penalty, court costs and attorney fees. If 
payment of the transient lodging tax is not received within sixty (60) calendar days 
following the fifteenth day of the month when due, the City may thereafter place a lien on 
the property upon which the transient lodging rental business is located in the manner set 
forth in NRS 268.095, as amended. If payment of the transient lodging tax is not received 
within seventy (70) calendar days following the fifteenth day of the month when due, the 
City may terminate, suspend or revoke the transient lodging rental business's Business 
License in the manner outlined in Elko City Code Section 4-1-14. 

SECTION 9. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 13 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

4-6-13: USES AND PURPOSES OF TRANSIENT LODGING TAX PROCEEDS: f!:10 

The city council shall use the proceeds of the transient lodging tax provided by this chapter for 
the following use, uses, purpose or purposes, or any one or more thereof, at such times, in such 
amounts and in such manner as they shall determine, from time to time: 

A. Recreation Fund Tax Qn on Transient Lodging: 

1. Operating and maintaining recreation facilities under the jurisdiction of the city council. 

2. Improving, extending and bettering such recreation facilities. 

3. Constructing, purchasing or otherwise acquiring such recreation facilities. 

4. Whenever any recreation facility is affected by or will be affected by any flood control project 
being constructed or to be constructed under the provisions of any federal law if the city council 
finds that such flood control project will improve, better and protect such recreation facility, the 
city council shall have the power and authority to give assurances to and perform any other acts 
required by and satisfactory to the secretary of the army that the location and cooperation 
required for such flood control project by such federal law will be furnished by the city to the 
extent that the city council shall determine. 

5. To establish, construct, purchase, lease, rent, acquire by gift, grant, bequest, devise, or 
otherwise acquire, reconstruct, improve, extend, better, alter, repair, equip, furnish, regulate, 

8 



maintain, operate and manage recreation facilities within or without the city, including personal 
property, real property, lands, improvements and fixtures thereof, property of any nature 
appurtenant thereto or used in connection therewith, and every estate, interest and right, legal or 
equitable, therein, including terms for years. 

6. To accept contributions, grants or other financial assistance from the federal government or 
any agency or instrumentality thereof, corporate or otherwise, the state of Nevada or any of its 
political subdivisions, or from any other source, for or in aid of any recreation facility within the 
area of operation of the city council, and to comply with such conditions, trust indentures, leases 
or agreements as may be necessary, convenient or desirable. 

7. To use such funds to pay the necessary expense of imposition, collection and expenditure of 
this transient lodging tax and the proceeds thereof. 

8. To use such proceeds to repay any loans, debts or bonded indebtedness that the city council 
may incur in connection with such recreation facilities, and that in that connection to pledge this 
transient lodging tax and the proceeds thereof as security for the repayment of any such loans, 
debts, obligations secured by bond, bonds, and other indebtedness which may be incurred in 
connection with such recreation facilities. 

9. For marketing and/or promotion of transportation services serving the city. 

B. Elko Convention And and Visitors Authority Qn on Transient Lodging Tax Fund: To pay the 
proceeds thereof to the Elko eae7;eetiae aed visitaFs authaFify Convention and Visitors 
Authority. to be used by it for any lawful purposes, as it shall determine in carrying out its 
powers under Nevada Revised Statutes chapter 227, as may be amended from time to time. 

C. Promotion Of of Tourism Qn fill Transient Lodging Tax Fund: 

1. Three-eighths (3/s) of all proceeds of the tax must be paid to the department of taxation for 
deposit with the state treasurer for credit to the fund for the promotion of tourism. 

2. Five-eighths (5 /s) of all proceeds of the tax must be deposited with the Elko County recreation 
board created pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes sections 244A.597 and 244A.599 to be used 
to advertise the resources of the county related to tourism, including available accommodations, 
transportation, entertainment, natural resources and climate, and to promote special events 
related thereto. 

D. Western Folklife Center On Transient Lodging Tax Fund: To donate the proceeds thereof to 
the Western Folklife Center, a Utah corporation licensed to do business in the state of Nevada, to 
be used by it to help operate and finance cultural and educational activities within the city 
relating to the events and activities which said corporation engages in within the city. 

E. Agricultural District 4 On Transient Lodging Tax Fund: To donate the proceeds thereof to the 
agricultural district 4 to be used by it for any lawful purposes as it shall determine in carrying out 
its powers pursuant to applicable Nevada Revised Statutes provisions. 

9 



F. Elka Sna Bawl Foundation On TFsesieet Lodging Tex Fund: Ta donate the 1naeeeds 
theFeaf to the Elko Sno Bowl Faundstian, s Nw1sds nanpFafit eaFpaFstiae ta be used by it 
ta help apet'Rte end finseee the Sea Bawl skiing faeility whieh is laested an lend awned by 
Elka County, Nevads. 

G. F. Marketing/Tourism Promotion (}ft Q!! Transient Lodging Tax Fund: 

1. To use for marketing efforts to increase travel to Elko by tourists, on a national and/or regional 
level. The Elko eae¥entian and ¥isitaFs authaFity Convention and Visitors Authority will 
determine the appropriate marketing packages and programs to be funded by this tax. 

2. This tax may not be used for administration or overhead for the Elko ean¥entiae end ¥isitaf's 
suthaf'ity Convention and Visitors Authority. 

3. The city will exercise reasonable efforts to provide, on a monthly basis, summary reports of 
the confidential room occupancy reports to the Elko eae¥eetian and visitaFs suthaFity 
Convention and Visitors Authority and the city council as a tool to monitor the success of the 
marketing efforts funded by this tax. (Ord. 705, 4-28-2009) 

H. Elko Regional Airport Debt Service Transient Lodging Tax Fund: To use such proceeds to 
repay any loans, debts or bonded indebtedness that the city council may incur in connection with 
such airport facilities, and that in that connection to pledge this transient lodging tax and the 
proceeds thereof as security for the repayment of any such loans, debts, obligations secured by 
bond, bonds, and other indebtedness which may be incurred in connection with such airport 
facilities. 

1. Any amounts in excess of the debt service requirement, as determined by the annual audit, 
shall be paid to the Elko eanveetiae and ¥isitaFs authaFity Convention and Visitors 
Authority on the condition that it creates a separate facility fund to account for all collections 
and expenditures. No portion may be used for salaries or benefits. 

SECTION 10. Title 4, Chapter 6, Section 15 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended as 
follows: 

4-6-15 FORMS.,, AND COSTS AND REQUIRED REPORTING : 

A. The city clerk is hereby empowered and authorized to designate the form of and have 
prepared or printed all stationery, supplies, records, notices, receipts, licenses and other 
forms that the city clerk deems necessary or advisable in connection with the collection, 
administration and disbursement of the proceeds of this transient lodging tax, and to 
obtain all supplies, records and other property and equipment deemed necessary by the 
city clerk in connection with the collection, administration, use and disbursement of the 
said transient lodging tax proceeds. All costs, expenses, charges and debts incurred by the 
city, or by the city clerk under the provisions of this chapter, in connection with the 
imposition, collection, administration, use and disbursement of this transient lodging tax 

10 



and the proceeds thereof shall be paid out of the recreational fund provided for in this 
chapter. 

B. The licensee shall complete all forms required by this Chapter in their entirety. The 
licensee may supply additional information as an addendum to any form required 
by this Chapter to the extent reasonably necessary to supply complete and accurate 
information to the City. 

SECTION 11. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but 
only to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 12. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the invalidity, unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall 
not affect any remaining provision of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 13. Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this 
ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilman voting for or against its passage 
in a newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at least one 
publication. 

SECTION 14. This Ordinance shall be effective July 1, 2018. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this __ day of _______ , 2018, by the following vote 
of the Elko City Council. 

VOTE: 
AYES: ____________________ _ 

NAYES: ____________________ _ 

ABSENT: ____________________ _ 

ABSTAIN: ___________________ _ 

APPROVED this __ day of _______ _, 2018. 

CITY OF ELKO 

By: ___________ _ 

CHRIS JOHNSON, Mayor 

11 



ATTEST: 

SHANELL OWEN, City Clerk 

12 



Agenda Item VII.B. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Second reading, public hearing, and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 830, an 
ordinance increasing the corporate limits of the City of Elko, Nevada, pursuant to the 
provisions of N.R.S. 268.670 annexing thereto a certain tract of land partially contiguous 
to and not embraced within the present limits of the City of Elko described as follows: a 
parcel of land located southwest of the intersection of P and H Drive and West Idaho Street 
in Section 30, T. 34 N., R. 55 E., MDM, Elko County, Nevada, consisting of 32.74 acres, 
filed by Legend Engineering on behalf of Ed and Sharon Netherton and JoyGlobal Surface 
Mining Inc. and processed as Annexation No. 1-18, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: May 8, 2018 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARING 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: Council accepted the petition for the subject annexation on March 
27, 2018, and directed Staff to continue with the annexation process by referring the matter 
to the Planning Commission. The Planning Commission considered the annexation on 
April 3, 2018, and took action to forward a recommendation of approval with findings back 
to the Council. Council held First Reading of the ordinance on April 24, 2018. CL 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: NI A 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fund name: N/ A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Ordinance, P.C. Action Report, Staff reports and 
application 

9. Recommended Motion: Conduct Second Reading and adopt Ordinance No. 830 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: Planning Commission, Elko County 

12. Council Action: 

Created on 04/25/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 2 



Agenda Item VII.B. 

13. Agenda Distribution: Ed and Sharon Netherton 
1072 Kahaapo Loop 
Kihei, HI 96753 
Email: ednetherton@gmail.com 

JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc. 
4450 P&H Drive 
Elko, NV 89801 
Robert.richens@mining.komatsu 

Legend Engineering 
Lonny Reed 
52 West 100 North 
Heber City, UT 84032 
lonny@legendengineering.com 

Created on 04/25/2018 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 2 of 2 



CITY OF ELKO 
ORDINANCE NO. 830 

AN ORDINANCE INCREASING THE CORPORA TE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
ELKO, NEV ADA, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF NRS 268.670 ANNEXING 

THERETO A CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND CONTIGUOUS TO AND NOT EMBRACED 
WITHIN THE PRESENT LIMITS OF THE CITY OF ELKO, DESCRIBED AS 

FOLLOWS: A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST ¼ CORNER OF 
SECTION 30, T. 34 N., R. 55 E., M.D.B. & M., ELKO COUNTY, NEV ADA, 

CONSISTING OF 32.74 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

WHEREAS, Hamischfeger Corporation is the owner of 75% and Ed and Sharon Netherton 
are the owners of 25% of the property to be annexed; 

WHEREAS, one hundred percent (100%) of the aforementioned owners of record of parcels 
of land within such area have petitioned the Elko City Council to annex such area into the City of 
Elko; and 

WHEREAS, not less than fifteen percent (15%) of the total boundary of the property is 
coterminous with the boundary of the City of Elko and the property is not embraced within the 
present limits of the City of Elko; and 

WHEREAS, the Elko City Council desires to annex the property, pursuant to the terms of 
N.R.S. 268.670, after notifying the Board of Commissioners of Elko County of its intent to 
annex such area to the City of Elko; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO DOES ORDAIN: 

SECTION 1: The Elko City Council has determined that the territory described above to be 
annexed has not less than fifteen percent (15%) of the total boundary of the property coterminous 
with the boundary of the City of Elko and the property is not embraced within the present limits 
of the City of Elko; and the Elko City Council has jurisdiction to annex the property into the City 
of Elko. 

SECTION 2: The corporate limits of the City limits of the City of Elko are extended and 
increased to include and embrace within the corporate limits of the City of Elko the territory 
located generally southwest of the intersection of West Idaho Street and P&H Drive, and legally 
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto, and such territory is hereby annexed and declared to be 
a part of the City of Elko. 

SECTION 3: The map and plat attached to this ordinance as Exhibit "B" are an accurate 
map and plat of the territory annexed; and the map and plat show the legal boundaries 
thereof, together with all existing easements, streets, alleys and rights-of-ways. 

SECTION 4: The conditions for annexation and development are set forth in the 
ordinance as Exhibit "C;" failure of the applicant to satisfy these conditions may, at the 

Page 1 of3 



discretion of the City of Elko and in addition to any remedies at law or in equity, result in 
the detachment of the annexed area from the City of Elko. 

SECTION 5: The Mayor of the City of Elko is hereby authorized and directed to certify that the 
map is an accurate map of the territory annexed under the provisions of this ordinance. 

SECTION 6: This ordinance, with a copy of the legal description, official map and plat and 
conditions for development attached hereto, shall be recorded in the office of the Elko County 
Recorder, Elko County, Nevada. 

SECTION 7: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but 
only to the extent of such conflict. 

SECTION 8: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, unenforceable, or unconstitutional by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the invalidity, unenforceability or provision shall not affect any remaining 
provisions of this ordinance. 

SECTION 9: Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this 
ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilman voting for or against its passage 
in a newspaper printed and published in the City of Elko, for at least one publication. 

SECTION 10: This ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned in Section 8. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _ th day of ___ ~ 2018 by the following vote of the 
City Council. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED this _ th day of __ ~ 2018. 

ATTEST: 

CITY OF ELKO 

BY: ___________ _ 
CHRIS J. JOHNSON, MAYOR 

Page 2 of3 



SHANELL OWEN, CITY CLERK 

Page 3 of3 



ELKO ANNEXATION DESCRIPTION 
Exhibit___.A ...... _ 

BEGINNIG AT THE FOUND NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 55 EAST, 

MOUNT DIABLO BASE AND MERIDAIN, BASIS OF BEARINGS BEING SOUTH 01°02'00" WEST MEASURED 

BETWEEN SAID NORTHWEST CORNER AND THE WEST QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION; AND 

RUNNING THENCE ALONG THE CURRENT ELKO CITY BOUNDARY THE FOLLOWING NINE (9) BEARINGS 

AND DISTANCES, (1) NORTH 89°58'16" EAST 446.33 FEET; (2) THENCE SOUTH 00°01'36" EAST 255.00 

FEET; (3) THENCE NORTH 89°58'22" EAST 482.63 FEET; (4) THENCE SOUTH 00°01'38" EAST 53.00 FEET; 

(5) THENCE NORTH 89°58'22" EAST 219.40 FEET; (6) THENCE SOUTH 57°57'49" EAST 40.00 FEET; (7) 

THENCE NORTH 32°02'04" EAST 234.84 FEET; (8) THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF A 1160.00 FOOT RADIUS 

CURVE TO THE LEFT 171.94 FEET (CHORD BEARS SOUTH 62°13'10" EAST 171.78 FEET); (9) THENCE 

SOUTH 01 °19'23" WEST 230.20 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID ELKO CITY BOUNDARY SOUTH 32°02'04" 

WEST 796.12 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°58'22" WEST 98.20 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 20°44'31" WEST 223.89 

FEET TO THE CURRENT ELKO CITY BOUNDARY; THENCE NORTH 89°59'20" WEST 877.75 FEET ALONG THE 

CURRENT ELKO CITY BOUNDARY; THENCE NORTH 01 °02'00" EAST 1323.99 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

AREA= 32.74 ACRES 

Prepared by Chad A Anderson P.L.S. 

RECEIVED 

APR 1 8 2018 



·+· 5 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE 

I, CHAD ALLEN ANDERSON, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM A PROFESSIONAL LAND 
SURVEYOR AND THAT I HOLD LICENSE NO. 22781, AS PRESCRIBED UNDER THE 
LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEVADA. I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I HAVE MADE A 
SURVEY OF THE HEREON DESCRIBED PARCEL AND THAT THIS ANNEXATION PLAT 
IS A TRUE AND CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF SAID PROPERTY AS IT RELATES TO 
THE CURRENT CITY BOUNDARY. 

Ck?~, 03/05/18 

CHAD A ANDERSON DATE 

ANNEXATION DETAILS 

PROPOSED ACREAGE TO BE ANNEXED = 32 .7 4 ACRES 

LENGTH OF COMMON BOUNDARY WITH THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 
CITY= 3,011 FEET 

PERCENTAGE OF COMMON BOUNDARY WITH THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 
CITY = 55% 

LINE TABLE 

LILNE LENGTH DIRECTION 

L1 255.00' soo•o, '36"E 

L2 53.00' S00'01 '38"E 

L3 219.40' N89"58'22"E 

L4 40.00' S57"57'49"E 

L5 234.84' N32'02'04"E 

L6 230.20' S01 '19'23"W 

L7 98.20' S89'58'22"W 

LB 223.89' S20"44' 31 "W 

CURVE TABLE 

CURVE I LENGTH I RADIUS I DEL TA I CHORD I BEARING I TANGENT 

C1 171.94' I 1160,00' \ 8°29'33" \ 171.78' \ S62"13'10"E I 86.13' 

GRAPffiC SCALE 

k..,...r.J,,,{ T 
C•nn> 1--- ... 

T RECEIVE 

APR 1 8 2018 

°' °' 
~ 
~ 

lJJ 
0 
0 

N 

? 
0 
z 

006-09N-004 

Ex~ 

CURRENT ELKO CITY BOUNDARY 

I 
006-09N-009 

L 

CURRENT ELKO CITY BOUNDARY 

>-a:: 
<I 
Cl z 
=> 
0 
ID 

006-09N-027 >-,_ 
u 
0 

"' _J 
w ,_ 
z 
w 
a:: 
a:: 
=> u 

f 

I 

I-
<( 
....J 
a... 
z 
0 
i== 
<( 
>< w z z 
<( 

-:t ,-.. 
N 

Ii ~ 
I 2: 

c:, i 
z5 

• -a 
• * 'I' 
w~ 
>~ 
a:; 

!; 
::,5: 

(/)~ 

~ a 
0~ 

z! 
< I 

~ Ji 
-
g 
u 
ijj 
~ 
0 

"'" w"' • I-"' I- <r C z -,:,: 
=> => o o~ 
u 3::~ 
~ zct 
_, wz 
., :c J ,- ~ 

,:>-

@ ., 
u 
3 

LL 
0 



CITY OF ELKO 
CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO ORDINANCE NO. 830 

JOYGLOBAL SURFACE MINING INC., ED & SHARON NETHERTON 
ANNEXATION 

Exhibit "C" 

Development Department: 

1. The property owners shall receive approval for a zone designation for the property to be 
consistent with the Land Use designation in the City of Elko Master Plan. 

Utility Department: 

1. Joy Global Surface Mining shall extend the water main on P&H Drive the full frontage of 
the APN 006-09N-004 (Joy), 007 & 009 (Netherton), and make a point of connection in 
West Idaho Street. Water service (potable and fire protection) shall be extended within 
180 days of annexation of the properties and the existing facility shall be connected to the 
City water system at that time; or, the water main shall be extended in conjunction with 
development of a new facility provided that Joy Global Surface Mining has applied for 
and received a Building Permit from the City and is actively engaged in constructing the 
new facility within the stipulated 180 days. Extension of water service and connection to 
the City water system may be extended by the length of time required for development of 
a new facility and will be required to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy for a new 
facility. 

2. Joy Global Surface Mining shall file applications with Nevada Division of Water 
Resources to transfer all City water rights back to the City as stipulated in its agreement 
with the City dated November 1, 2013. The total water rights stipulated in the agreement 
is 58-acre feet. The same point of diversion shall be listed on the application. The 
application to transfer the water rights shall be filed no later than 60 days after extension 
of the water main in P & H drive and connection to either the existing facility or a newly 
developed facility. 

3. The existing well shall be dedicated to the City of Elko no later than 90 days after the 
water rights have been transferred to the City. An easement shall be granted to the City of 
Elko to include access to the well, the wellsite including a 20' perimeter outside of the 
well house, and Joy Global Surface Mining shall also grant to the City of Elko a 20' wide 
utility easement westerly to the westerly property boundary at the time of well dedication. 

4. Joy Global Surface Mining shall extend dry sewer mains at the time of new facility 
development or expansion of the existing use. 

5. The City shall not be responsible for operation of the existing water supply system 
pending the extension of water service by Joy Global Surface Mining as stipulated in 
Item 1. 

6. Cross connections between the existing water system and the City's water system will not 
be allowed. All points of cross connection are to be properly abandoned under City 
approval. 



CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocity.com 
Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov 

1751 College Avenue · Elko, Nevada 89801 · (775) 777-7160 · Fax (775) 777-7219 

CITY OF ELKO 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REPORT 

Regular Meeting of April 3, 2018 

WHEREAS, the following item was reviewed and considered by the Elko City Planning 
Commission on April 3, 2018 per City Code Section 3-2-4 C.: 

Annexation No. 1-18 filed by Legend Engineering on behalf of Ed and Sharon Netherton and 
JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc., consisting of approximately 32.74 acres of property located 
southwest of the intersection of West Idaho Street and P&H Drive, and matters related 
thereto. 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, upon review and consideration of the application and 
supporting data, public input and testimony, forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt 
an ordinance which conditionally approves Annexation No. 1-18 subject to the conditions listed 
in the City of Elko Staff Report dated March 19, 2018 listed as follows: 

Development Department: 

1. The property owners shall receive approval for a zone designation for the property to be 
consistent with the Land Use designation in the City of Elko Master Plan. 

Utility Department: 

1. Joy Global Surface Mining shall extend the water main on P&H Drive the full frontage of 
the APN 006-09N-004 (Joy), 007 & 009 (Netherton), and make a point of connection in 
West Idaho Street. Water service (potable and fire protection) shall be extended within 
180 days of annexation of the properties and the existing facility shall be connected to the 
City water system at that time; or, the water main shall be extended in conjunction with 
development of a new facility provided that Joy Global Surface Mining has applied for 
and received a Building Permit from the City and is actively engaged in constructing the 
new facility within the stipulated 180 days. Extension of water service and connection to 
the City water system may be extended by the length of time required for development of 
a new facility and will be required to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy for a new 
facility. 

2. Joy Global Surface Mining shall file applications with Nevada Division of Water 
Resources to transfer all City water rights back to the City as stipulated in its agreement 
with the City dated November 1, 2013. The total water rights stipulated in the agreement 
is 58 acre feet. The same point of diversion shall be listed on the application. The 
application to transfer the water rights shall be filed no later than 60 days after extension 
of the water main in P & H drive and connection to either the existing facility or a newly 
developed facility. 



3. The existing well shall be dedicated to the City of Elko no later than 90 days after the 
water rights have been transferred to the City. An easement shall be granted to the City of 
Elko to include access to the well, the wellsite including a 20' perimeter outside of the 
well house, and also a 20' wide utility easement westerly to the westerly property 
boundary at the time of well dedication. 

4. Joy Global Surface Mining shall extend dry sewer mains at the time of new facility 
development or expansion of the existing use. 

5. The City shall not be responsible for operation of the existing water supply system 
pending the extension of water service by Joy Global Surface Mining as stipulated in 
Item 1. 

6. Cross connections between the existing water system and the City's water system will not 
be allowed. All points of cross connection are to be properly abandoned under City 
approval. 

Engineering Department; 

1. Revisions to legal description to be completed prior to Council Approval: 
a. Description beings at the northwest corner, not¼ corner. 
b. State a basis of bearings on the description. 
c. The description should state who prepared it, and if it is by a licensed surveyor, it 

must be stamped and signed. 
2. Revisions to map to be complete prior to Council approval: 

a. Show the location of the northwest corner of Section 30 as stated in the description. 
b. Label the parcels by APN, and the streets by name. 

The Planning Commission's findings to support its recommendation are the petitioner is not 
requesting an amendment to the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The existing land use 
of one of the properties is consistent with the Master Plan. The remaining properties are vacant. 
The annexation and subsequent zone classification of the properties must conform to the Master 
Plan. The proposed annexation and existing land uses are compatible with the Transportation 
Component of the Master Plan. The proposed annexation is consistent with the goals, objectives 
and supports long range planning as outlined in the Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water 
Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation 
Potential Report dated November 2012. The proposed annexation is in conformance with the 
City's Airport Master Plan. In conformance with NRS 268.636(1) the property owners have 
submitted a map showing a boundary contiguous to the City of approximately 35%. In 
conformance with NRS 268.646(2), inclusive, it has been determined that the proposed 
annexation satisfies considerations and/or concerns identified as minimum factors for 
consideration under. In conformance with NRS 268.646(3), it has been determined that the 
proposed annexation will not have any long-term adverse impacts on adjacent areas nor will the 
proposed annexation and development of the property have an adverse influence on the local 
government structure of the County or the City. In conformance with NRS 268.646(4), it has 
been determined that the proposed annexation will not place a burden of the availability of water, 
the requirement for water or have a negative impact on other natural resources in the area. In 
addition, the City will receive 58 acre feet of water rights upon annexation of the properties. In 
conformance with NRS 268.646(5), it has been determined that the area proposed for annexation 
does not fall under the jurisdiction of the Bureau of Land Management. In conformance with 
NRS 268.646(6), it has been determined that the City of Elko is not required, nor does it have an 



---------------------------

annexation program adopted and certified pursuant to NRS 268.625. The proposed annexation is 
consistent with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan and the adopted Development 
Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation 
Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report dated November 2012. In conformance with 
NRS 268.663(3), although not required, it has been determined that all portions of County Roads 
that provide primary access to the area have been or will be annexed into the City and will 
become City Streets. The annexation application identifies the zoning classification as Light 
Industrial District. At this time, a zone application has not been filed in conjunction with the 
annexation petition. Future zone designation must conform with Section 3-2-4 of City Code. The 
proposed annexation is in conformance with the City's Wellhead Protection Plan. Annexation of 
the property provides an immediate accrual to the tax base for the City. Annexation of the 
property provides an opportunity for expanded Light Industrial Uses. The area proposed for 
annexation is not localized or isolated. Other, required, utilities will be installed at developer 
expense to facilitate development of the properties. The topography of the area is well suited for 
the proposed light industrial land uses. Expanded Uses on the properties will result in a positive 
economic impact to the community. 

Attest: 

CC: Applicant 
Jeremy Draper, Development Manager (via email) 
Shanell Owen, City Clerk 
Ryan Limberg, Utility Director 
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer 



----------

RECEIVED 

FEB 2 2 2018 
CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

1751 College Avenue" Elko" Nevada" 89801 

(775) 777-7160 ~ (775) 777-7119 fax 

APPLICATION FOR ANNEXATION 

Tne c1ppkant ( '1 OC! :. o: ciil pro:)crt:.1 o•.vners \ nereby peui,r,s the El~o City Counc,I to annex to :ne 

City of Elko certc:i n real property uy ::miinance. to ~)e adopted pursuant to NRS 268.670. Said 

property petit,or~ecJ for annexat on ,s le~al1y descnbed as fol!ows: 1At:8ch if necessary) 

A:tached to the end of this document. ------------------------ --- --· ________ ,_, ______ _ -----·--- ----------

ASSESSOR PARCEL NUr,,1BER ;S _ QQ609NQQ4, 00609NQQ9, 00609NQQ7 
-- - -- -··- --- -·--··- ·-·-·-·--·--··-----·-------·-------·-•-·----- --

JoyGlobal Surface Mining Inc. '"2..+~ ~ (775) 748-4650 
(Pmt Name) Sig1aium Talel]tme Number 
4400 P&H Drive Elko:i NV 89E!01 

Mallh'J Ad:Jress 

----- --·-----·- ---·----·~---- ------------------
{ P:·int Nrime l 

-·----------·-····•···---·-------·····-·· -·····-···--···----- ····•·-·-·--·-··---- ·----------------------------·--· 

Revised 12 04 15 Page 1 



FILING REQUIREMENTS: 

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form 
must be complete and signed. Applications go before the City Council, Planning Commission, and 
back to City Council twice, and will take a minimum of 8 weeks. 

Fee: 10 acres or less $500.00, greater than 10 acres through 50 acres $750.00, greater than 50 
acres $1,250.00. The filing fee shall be paid in full prior to consideration of the annexation request 
by the Planning Commission. 

Annexation Map: An annexation map or record of survey of the area proposed for annexation 
provided by a properly licensed surveyor. Such map shall include the proposed acreage to be 
annexed, and the length and percentage of common boundary (at least 15%) with the corporate 
limits of the City. If the property abuts a road not already in the City limits, at least one half of the 
road must be included in the map and legal description (see N.R.S. 268.663). 

Legal Description: A complete legal description of all property proposed for annexation. 

Plot Plan: If the property is improved, a surveyed plot plan showing property lines, existing 
buildings, building setbacks, parking and loading areas and any other pertinent information. 

Note: One .pdf (email is okay) of the entire application must be submitted, as well as one set of 
legible, reproducible plans 8 ½" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 
24" x 36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted. 

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation 
to support this Annexation request 

1. Identify the existing zoning classification of the property: Light Industrial (LI) 

2. Identify the zoning classification being requested upon annexation: Light Industrial (LI) 
(A separate zone change application must be submitted for the requested classification.) 

3. Explain in detail the type and nature of the use anticipated for the property. 

Approximately 180,000 S.F. heavy equipment rental, repair and parts facility. 

4. Identify any unique physical features or characteristics associated with the property. 

The property is currently occupied by a 40,000 S.F. repair facility. 

Revised 12/04/15 Page 2 



5. Identify the type and extent of City infrastructure anticipated for service to the property such as 
streets, sewer, and water service. 

P&H drive will be improved and culinary water extended as well 

as dry sewer for future connnection. 

6. Identify any water rights which will support the annexed property: _______ _ 

Existing well will be capped and water rights transferred to city. 

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 3 through 6) 

Revised 12/04/15 Page 3 



By My Signature below: 

l ✓ I I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property only for the sole purpose of 

inspection said property as part of this application process. 

D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of 

this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.} 

I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request 

by the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it 
in and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses. 

I✓ I I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my 

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is 
scheduled. 

I ✓ I I have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the 

best of my ability. 

Applicant/ Agent_L_o_n_n_y_R_e_e_d ___________ _ 
(Please print or type) 

Mailing Address 52 West 100 North 
Street Address or P.O. Box 

Heber City, UT 84032 
City, State, Zip Code 

Phone Number: ( 435) 654-4828 

Email address: lonny@legendengineering.com 

SIGNATURE: ~~~==~~<:~!!!!!!!!!!II-----------

FOR OFFICE USE Ojl Y 

File No.: \ - \ <o Date Filed: 2 /22 l I B Fee .Paid: ',ODD rt_# 1424 

Revised 12/04/15 Page4 


	5/8/18 Agenda
	4/24/18 Minutes
	II-A - Funds Transfer
	III-D - Type III Fire Apparatus
	III-E - LEPC Grant
	IV-A - Wanrack
	IV-B - Sewer Line Installation
	V-A - RDA Fund Expenditure
	V-B - Ordinance No. 829
	VI-A - Elko Farmer's Market
	VII-A - Ordinance No. 828
	VII-B - Ordinance No. 830



